






      
 

Middleton City Council Special Meeting October 5, 2022 Page 1 
 

 
MIDDLETON CITY COUNCIL – SPECIAL MEETING 

DECEMBER 2, 2022 
 
The Middleton City Council Meeting was called to order on November 30, 2022, at 5:32 p.m. by 
Mayor Steve Rule.  
 
Roll Call:  
City Council: Council President Kiser, Council Members Huggins, Council Member Murray, and 
Council Member Tim O’Meara were present.  
 
Mayor Rule, City Attorney Douglas Waterman, City Administrator Ms. Crofts, Public Works 
Director Mr. Van Gilder and Deputy Clerks Ms. Reynolds and Ms. Day were present. 
 
Action Items  

A. Approve Agenda 
 
Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser to approve the Agenda as posted on November 
23, 2022, at 3:45 p.m.  Motion seconded by Council Member O’Meara and approved 
unanimously by all the board members. 
 
1. Consent Agenda (items of routine administrative business) (Action Items) 

a. Consider approving minutes for City Council November 16, 2022, Regular 
meeting. 

b. Consider ratifying payroll for November 10, 2022, in the amount of 
$150,249.61 

c. Consider approving accounts payable through November 18, 2022, in the 
amount of $227,983.04. 

 
Mayor Rule called items and Council President Kiser stated he had reviewed the accounts 
payable.  No questions by Council. 

 
Motion: Motioned by Council President Kiser to approve Consent Agenda Items 1 a-c. 
Motion seconded by Council Member O’Meara and approved unanimously. 

 
2. Public Hearing: Consider for adoption the Urban Renewal Plan for the Middleton 

East District Urban Renewal Project (the “Plan”) of the Urban Renewal Agency of 
the City of Middleton, Idaho, also known as the Middleton Urban Renewal Agency 
(the “Agency”). 

   
Mayor Rule opened public hearing at 5:34 p.m. 
 
Mayor Rule called item and Ms. Conrad from Elam & Burke presented power point of 
Urban Renewal Plan for the Middleton East District Urban Renewal Project (the “plan”). 
 
Mayor Rules opened for public comment at 6:06 p.m. 
 
Mike M asked about establishing boundaries for city growth and a short description of 
what Urban Renewal is. 
 
Ms. Crofts give a brief explanation of how the base rate works and that is will help attract 



      
 

Middleton City Council Special Meeting October 5, 2022 Page 2 
 

new business to Middleton and it will help offset other costs. 
 
Council Present Kiser advised that Urban Renewal board is separate from the city and 
the city has no control over the funding from Urban Renewal. 
 
Tony B asked what the downside would be for Urban Renewal. 
 
Ms. Conrad advised that there have been some changes in Idaho State Statute within 
the last 10 years regarding levies and tort levies and the increment value school districts  
can receive.  Urban Renewal has very little impact on that. 
 
Mayor Rule closed public comment at 6:14 p.m. 
 
Discussion by Council. 
 
Motion: Motioned by Council President Kiser to approve the adoption the Urban 
Renewal Plan for the Middleton East District Urban Renewal Project (the “Plan”) of the 
Urban Renewal Agency of the City of Middleton, Idaho, also known as the Middleton 
Urban Renewal Agency (the “Agency”). Motion seconded by Council Member Huggins. 

 
Roll Call: Kiser – Yes, Huggins – Yes, Murray – Yes, O’Meara – Yes. Approved 
unanimously. 

3. Consider adopting ORDINANCE NO. 672: AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, IDAHO, APPROVING THE URBAN RENEWAL PLAN 
FOR THE MIDDLETON EAST DISTRICT URBAN RENEWAL PROJECT, WHICH 
PLAN INCLUDES REVENUE ALLOCATION FINANCING PROVISIONS; 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY CLERK TO TRANSMIT A COPY OF THIS ORDINANCE 
AND OTHER REQUIRED INFORMATION TO COUNTY AND STATE OFFICIALS AND 
THE AFFECTED TAXING ENTITIES; PROVIDING SEVERABILITY, CODIFICATION, 
AND PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY; APPROVING THE SUMMARY OF THE 
ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR WAIVER OF THE READING RULES; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
Motion:  Motioned by Council President Kiser to approve ORDINANCE NO. 672: AN 
ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, IDAHO, 
APPROVING THE URBAN RENEWAL PLAN FOR THE MIDDLETON EAST DISTRICT 
URBAN RENEWAL PROJECT, WHICH PLAN INCLUDES REVENUE ALLOCATION 
FINANCING PROVISIONS; AUTHORIZING THE CITY CLERK TO TRANSMIT A COPY 
OF THIS ORDINANCE AND OTHER REQUIRED INFORMATION TO COUNTY AND 
STATE OFFICIALS AND THE AFFECTED TAXING ENTITIES; PROVIDING 
SEVERABILITY, CODIFICATION, AND PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY; APPROVING 
THE SUMMARY OF THE ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR WAIVER OF THE READING 
RULES; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  Motion seconded by Council 
Member Huggins. 
 

Roll Call: Kiser – Yes, Huggins – Yes, Murray – Yes, O’Meara – Yes. Approved 
unanimous. 

 
 



      
 

Middleton City Council Special Meeting October 5, 2022 Page 3 
 

4. Consider approving RESOLUTION NO. 478-22:  A RESOLUTION BY THE MAYOR 
AND THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, IDAHO, TO PROVIDE FOR AN 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
UNDER IDAHO CODE SECTION 50-2906(3)(b) BETWEEN CANYON COUNTY, 
IDAHO, AND THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, IDAHO; PROVIDING FOR AREAS 
OUTSIDE THE CITY LIMITS TO BE INCLUDED WITHIN AN URBAN 
RENEWAL/REVENUE ALLOCATION AREA; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
Motion: Motioned by Council President Kiser to approve RESOLUTION NO. 478-22:  A 
RESOLUTION BY THE MAYOR AND THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, 
IDAHO, TO PROVIDE FOR AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR ROLES 
AND RESPONSIBILITIES UNDER IDAHO CODE SECTION 50-2906(3)(b) BETWEEN 
CANYON COUNTY, IDAHO, AND THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, IDAHO; PROVIDING 
FOR AREAS OUTSIDE THE CITY LIMITS TO BE INCLUDED WITHIN AN URBAN 
RENEWAL/REVENUE ALLOCATION AREA; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  
Motion seconded by Council Member Huggins. 
 
Roll Call: Kiser – Yes, Huggins – Yes, Murray – Yes, O’Meara – Yes. Approved 
unanimous. 

Mayor Rule closed Public Hearing at 6:40 p.m. 
 
Mayor and Council Comments 
 
No Comment 
 

Adjourn: Mayor adjourned the Special Meeting at 6:44 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
             
ATTEST:      Mayor Steve Rule   
 
      
Amber Day, Deputy Clerk 
Minutes Approved: December 2, 2022 
 
 

 

 

 



 

EXHIBIT “1” 



12/2/2022

1

Middleton East Urban Renewal District

Meghan Sullivan Conrad; Abbey 
Germaine

Elam & Burke, P.A.

Jason Van Gilder, P.E.
Public Works Director

Becky Crofts
City Administrator

City Council 
November 30, 2022 

Consideration of the Urban Renewal 
Plan for the Middleton East District 
Urban Renewal Project Approval 

Ordinance 

Plan 
Approval 
Process

• March 21, 2022 – Agency Board adopted Resolution No. 02‐22 accepting the Eligibility 
Study: MURA East for the Middleton Urban Renewal Agency, prepared by Hamilton, 
Michaelson & Hilty, LLP (the “Report”) and thereafter submitted the Report to the Canyon 
County Board of County Commissioners and the City Council for their Consideration.* 

• June 2, 2022 ‐ Presentation to BOCC concerning two (2) proposed new urban renewal 
districts: East District and the West District.

• June 29, 2022 – Canyon County Board of County Commissioners adopts Resolution No. 
22‐144 accepting the Report

• July 6, 2022– City Council adopts Resolution No. 472‐22, adopting the Report and directs 
Agency to commence preparation of a plan

• September 6, 2022 – Board of County Commissioners Workshop to discuss RAA 
Boundary and Project List

• September 7, 2022 ‐ Joint City Council, P&Z, and Agency Board Workshop 

• October 4, 2022 – Board of County Commissioners Workshop to discuss RAA Plan and 
Project List

• October 12, 2022 – Agency Board adopted Resolution No. 07‐22 approving the Urban 
Renewal Plan for the Middleton East District Urban Renewal Project recommending 
approval of the Plan and directing transmittal of the Plan to the  Mayor and City Clerk to 
take the necessary action to process the Plan.

• October 17, 2022 ‐ City Planning and Zoning Commission meeting to find the proposed 
Plan conforms to the City’s Comprehensive Plan (Resolution No. 476‐22)

• October 27, 2022 – Board of County Commissioners approve Intergovernmental 
Agreement and Transfer of Powers Ordinance (Ord. No. 22‐022)

• October 28, 2022 – Notice of public hearing published in the Idaho Press and the Plan  
submitted to the affected taxing districts. 

• November 11, 2022 – Second notice of public hearing published in the Idaho Press  

• November 30, 2022 – City Council public hearing, consider public comment, and City 
Council Ordinance approving Plan 

*Originally, two (2) areas were studied for eligibility, MURA East and MURA West. After 
discussion with the Board of County Commissioners and the City it was determined that the 
MURA West area would not be pursued this year. 

MURA East ‐
Plan 
Elements 

Idaho Code § 50‐2905 identifies what information the Plan must include with specificity as follows:

(1)  A statement describing the total assessed valuation of the base assessment roll of the 
revenue allocation area and the total assessed valuation of all taxable property within the 
municipality; 

• Section 502.3

(2)  A statement listing the kind, number, and location of all proposed public works or 
improvements within the revenue allocation area;

• Section 301 and Attachment 5

(3) An economic feasibility study;

• Attachment 5

(4) A detailed list of estimated project costs;

• Attachment 5

(5) A fiscal impact statement showing the impact of the revenue allocation area, both until 
and after the bonds are repaid, upon all taxing districts levying taxes upon property on the revenue 
allocation area;

• Section 502.8 and Attachment 5

(6) A description of the methods of financing all estimated project costs and the time when 
related costs or monetary obligations are to be incurred;

• Sections 303, 304, 309, 501, 502, 504 and Attachment 5

(7) A termination date for the plan and the revenue allocation area as provided for in 
section 50‐2903(20), Idaho Code. In determining the termination date, the plan shall recognize 
that the agency shall receive allocation of revenues in the calendar year following the last year of 
the revenue allocation provision described in the urban renewal plan; and

• Section 800

(8) A description of the disposition or retention of any assets of the agency upon the 
termination date. Provided however, nothing herein shall prevent the agency from retaining assets 
or revenues generated from such assets as long as the agency shall have resources other than 
revenue allocation funds to operate and manage such assets.

• Section 800

Zoning and Future Land Use 

Infrastructure 
Improvements 

Infrastructure Improvements Prioritization
Class 1 – Highest Priority

Middleton Road Corridor

Class 2 – Priority Projects – Funded within Revenue Projections

Water Utility Loop Beneath Boise River
Recycle Water Treatment Equipment and Initial Distribution Pipes
High Pressure Natural Gas Extension

Class 2A – Priority Projects – Likely to be Within Revenue Projections

River Walk Park Initial Development

Class 3 – Key Projects – Possible if revenues exceed expectations.

Hawthorne & Crane Creek Area
Riverwalk Park Expansion

Class 4 – Projects – Unlikely to be funded

City Shops 
Boise River Bridge 
Duff Intersection
Recycle Water Distribution Piping Expansion
Various Utility Improvements
River Walk Park – Final Expansion

Class 5 – Low Priority Projects

Regional Power Grid Upgrade
Boise Street Reconstruction
Water, Sewer, Roads, and Trails within Project Development Areas.
Additional Trail System

Class 1 and Class 2 Improvements

1 2 3

4 5 6

7 8 9



12/2/2022

2

Class 2a Improvements

Economic Feasibility Study I.C. § 50‐2905

• Idaho Code requires that in order to adopt an urban renewal plan with a 
revenue allocation area, the plan must include an economic feasibility 
study. 

• This feasibility study must show that considering the estimated project 
costs and the anticipated tax increment revenue, the plan is feasible as 
it relates to the ability to fund the proposed projects. I.C. § 50‐2905(4); 
(5). 

Anticipated Revenues 

Figure 4.  Revenue Model ‐ Incremental Revenues (2023 ‐ 2042)

Tax Year Base Value Base Value Revenue Taxable Value of Project Increases Taxable Value Deductions of Improvements Cumulative Taxable Assessed Value  Assumed Levy Gross Incremental Revenue

2023 64,383,386  406,132  0.00874336

2024 64,383,386  406,132  $0  $0  $0  0.00874336 $0 

2025 64,383,386  406,132  $0  $0  $0  0.00874336 $0 

2026 64,383,386  406,132  $136,276,500  $629,400  $135,647,100  0.00874336 $1,186,012 

2027 64,383,386  406,132  $107,137,800  $0  $242,784,900  0.00874336 $2,122,757 

2028 64,383,386  406,132  $64,266,320  $0  $307,051,220  0.00874336 $2,684,660 

2029 64,383,386  406,132  $53,179,700  $0  $360,230,920  0.00874336 $3,149,630 

2030 64,383,386  406,132  $111,932,760  $147,200  $472,016,480  0.00874336 $4,127,011 

2031 64,383,386  406,132  $58,418,800  $0  $530,435,280  0.00874336 $4,637,788 

2032 64,383,386  406,132  $48,041,800  $0  $578,477,080  0.00874336 $5,057,835 

2033 64,383,386  406,132  $22,460,000  $0  $600,937,080  0.00874336 $5,254,211 

2034 64,383,386  406,132  $42,000,000  $1,062,200  $641,874,880  0.00874336 $5,612,145 

2035 64,383,386  406,132  $3,117,000  $0  $644,991,880  0.00874336 $5,639,398 

2036 64,383,386  406,132  $43,440,200  $0  $688,432,080  0.00874336 $6,019,212 

2037 64,383,386  406,132  $2,577,600  $0  $691,009,680  0.00874336 $6,041,748 

2038 64,383,386  406,132  $40,000,000  $0  $731,009,680  0.00874336 $6,391,483 

2039 64,383,386  406,132  $0  $0  $731,009,680  0.00874336 $6,391,483 

2040 64,383,386  406,132  $0  $0  $731,009,680  0.00874336 $6,391,483 

2041 64,383,386  406,132  $0  $0  $731,009,680  0.00874336 $6,391,483 

2042 64,383,386  406,132  $0  $0  $731,009,680  0.00874336 $6,391,483 

2043 64,383,386  406,132  $0  $0  $731,009,680  0.00874336 $6,391,483 

$732,848,480  $1,838,800  $731,009,680  $89,881,305 

Anticipated Discounted Revenues 

Figure 4b. Net Incremental Revenues (Less Operating Costs)

Undiscounted Discounted 

First Quarter $5,468,429 $4,450,164

Second Quarter $20,976,475 $14,617,817

Third Quarter $28,453,986 $16,412,429

Fourth Quarter $30,707,415 $14,597,472

Total $85,606,305 $50,077,883

Assumed discount rate:  4%

Estimated 
Project 
Costs 

Priority Class 1 URD funded project costs are 
estimated at ‐ $25.3M

Priority Class 2 URD funded project costs are 
estimated at ‐ $19.8M

Priority Class 2a – identifies $24.4M in public 
infrastructure costs which would be eligible 
for funding should excess revenues exist. 

Other Items

• Agricultural Operation Consents‐ completed
• Maps and legal descriptions have been updated 
• 10 % Valuation Analysis completed – 5.2% of 
total taxable value
• Limitations on Amendments to the Plan – I.C. 
50‐2903A 
• Base reset 
• Exceptions 

Next Steps – Plan Adoption 

• Publication of the ordinance summary; recordation of ordinance and separately 
recorded map/legal; transmittal of documents to County officials, STC, and affected 
taxing districts. Deadline to complete tasks 12/31/2022 Questions & Discussion

Action: 

• Suggested Motion: Move to approve Ordinance No. 672 approving the 
Urban Renewal Plan for the Middleton East District Urban Renewal Project 

10 11 12

13 14 15

16 17 18







 
 
 

1 
 

 

Middleton City Council 
Findings of Facts, Conclusions of Law, and Decision & Order 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
In the Matter of the Application of Patrick Connor/Hubble Homes for preliminary plat and 
Development Agreement Termination with respect to the Waterford East Subdivision located at 
0 Foothills Road (Tax Parcel Nos. R338540 & R33854011):   
 

A. Findings of Fact:   
 

1. Hearing Facts: See Staff Report for the hearing date of November 16, 2022, which 
Report is attached hereto as Exhibit “A’ and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

2. Process Facts: See Staff Report for the hearing date of November 16, 2022, Exhibit 
“A”. 

 
3. Application and Property Facts: See Staff Report for the hearing date of November 16,  

2022, Exhibit “A”. 
 

4. Required Findings per Middleton City Code 1-14-2(E)(7), Idaho State Statue Title 67, 
Chapter 65, Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction and Middleton Supplement 
thereto, Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-15, 5-1, 5-3, and 5-4:  See Staff Report for the 
hearing date of November 16, 2022, Exhibit “A”. 
 

B. Conclusions of Law: 
 

1. That the City of Middleton has exercised the powers conferred upon it by the “Local 
Land Use Planning Act of 1975,” codified at Chapter 65, Title 67, Idaho Code (I.C. §67-
6503). 
 

2. That due consideration has been given to the comments received from the 
governmental subdivisions providing services in the City of Middleton planning 
jurisdiction, comments received from individuals of the public, and comments from City 
Planning Staff and City Engineer. 

 
3. That notice of the application and public hearing was given according to law.   

 
4. That City Council’s public hearing was conducted according to law, and the City has 

kept a record of the application and related documents.  
 

5. That codes and standards applicable to the application are the Idaho Standards for 
Public Works Construction, the Middleton Supplement to the Idaho Standards for 
Public Works Construction, and Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-15, 5-1, 5-2, 5-3, and 5-4 
and Idaho Code Secs., 67-6503, 67-6513, 67-6511, and 50-1301 through 50-1329. 

 
6. That public facilities and services required by the proposed development will not 

impose expense upon the public if the attached conditions of approval are imposed.  
 

7. That this order is subject to the Conditions of Approval set forth in the attached Staff 



             
        

2 
 

Report for the hearing date of November 16, 2022, Exhibit “A”. 
 

C. Decision and Order: 
 

Pursuant to the City Council’s authority as provided in Middleton City Code 1-5-2, and based 
upon the above Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law, it is hereby decided and ordered: 
 

1. That the application of Patrick Connor/Hubble Homes for Preliminary Plat with respect 
to the Waterford East Subdivision is approved subject to the conditions of approval set 
forth in the Staff Report for the November 16, 2022, public hearing.  
 

2. That the application of Patrick Connor/Hubble Homes for Development Agreement 
Termination with respect to the Waterford East Subdivision is approved subject to the 
conditions of approval set forth in the Staff Report for the November 16, 2022, public 
hearing. 
 
 
 

 
WRITTEN ORDER APPROVED ON: December _____, 2022. 
 
 
 
            
      Steven J. Rule 
      Mayor, City of Middleton 
 
Attest: 
 
      
Roberta Stewart 
Planning and Zoning Official 

 
 
 
 
Please take notice that pursuant to MCC 1-14-2(E)(10), applicant shall have 14 days after a 
signed final decision to request reconsideration by the final-decision maker. Such request 
must identify specific deficiencies in the final decision. Failure to request reconsideration 
may invalidate a subsequent judicial appeal. Additionally, pursuant to Idaho State Statute 
67-6521, any affected person aggrieved by a final decision may, within 28 days after all 
remedies have been exhausted under local ordinances, seek judicial review as provided in 
chapter 52, Title 67.  

 
Finally, please take notice that Applicant has a right to request a regulatory taking analysis 
pursuant to Idaho State Statute section 67-8003. 
 

 

https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title67/T67CH80/SECT67-8003




 

 
 

 
City Council and the Planning and Zoning Commission 

 
Regularly Scheduled Meetings in 2023 

 
 

All meetings are at 1103 W Main Street, Middleton, Idaho unless otherwise advised. 
Please contact the City Clerk to arrange for language or access assistance. 

 
City Council meetings begin at 5:30 p.m.  

Planning and Zoning meetings begin at 5:30 p.m.  
 

 
2023 

Months City Council Planning & Zoning 
January 4th, 18th 9th  
February 1st, 15th  13th  
March 1st, 15th  13th  
April 5th, 19th    10th  
May 3rd, 17th  8th  
June 7th, 21st  12th  
July 5th, 19th  10th 
August 2nd, 16th  14th  
September 6th, 20th   11th  
October 4th, 18th  16th (3RD   Monday)  
November 1st, 15th   13th  
December 6th, 20th  11th  

 

CITY OF MIDDLETON 
P.O. Box 487, 1103 W Main Street, Middleton, ID  83644 

208-585-3133  Fax (208) 585-9601 
citmid@middletonidaho.us    

www.middleton.id.gov 





10132 SF
9405 SF

9742 SF

9506 SF9384 SF
9761 SF

8025 SF
8025 SF

8025 SF

1493 SF1466 SF

8029 SF8025 SF

8346 SF

8025 SF
8092 SF

8025 SF

8594 SF

10949 SF

9345 SF

9339 SF

9333 SF

3732 SF

9325 SF

9255 SF

10944 SF

9059 SF 9384 SF 9387 SF 9390 SF 9393 SF 1744 SF

8839 SF

8789 SF

8247 SF

9417 SF

12088 SF

9254 SF 9075 SF 9078 SF 9081 SF 9084 SF

66096 SF

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

910
111213

141

234567

8

9 10 11 12 13 14
11 10 9

8

7

6

5
432

115

16

17

18

19

20 21 22 23 24

25

1

2

3

8015 SF

27350 SF

8798 SF

9473 SF

8698 SF

9458 SF9460 SF

0' 25' 100' 150'50'

1

BRIDGER CREEK SUBDIVISION
LOCATED IN THE NW 1/4 OF THE SW 1/4 OF SECTION 36
TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 3 WEST, BOISE MERIDIAN,

CITY OF MIDDLETON, CANYON COUNTY, IDAHO
2022

1
1

LEGEND

HAYHOOK STREET

SU
N

D
O

G
 A

V
EN

U
E

JUPITER STREET

EM
M

ET
T

 R
O

A
D

SA
D

D
L
E 

P
EA

K
 A

V
EN

U
E

BA
SI

S 
O

F 
BE

AR
IN

G
S

1/4 COR.
35 36

S 1/16 COR.

35 36

SEC. COR.
2 1

UNPLATTED

UNPLATTED

UNPLATTED

POINT OF
BEGINNING

D
EL

 R
O

SA
R

IO
 E

ST
AT

ES
C

R
O

SS
FI

R
E 

R
AN

C
H

 S
U

BD
IV

IS
IO

N

BOOK_____________ , PAGE_____________

SURVEYOR'S NARRATIVE

SHEET NO. 1 OF 4
WWW.TO-ENGINEERS.COM

332 N. BROADMORE WAY
NAMPA, IDAHO 83687-5123

PHONE: (208) 442-6300

SW 1/16

N
. R

O
P
ER

 A
V

EN
U

E

11-21-22



BRIDGER CREEK SUBDIVISION

NOTES

SHEET NO. 2 OF 4
WWW.TO-ENGINEERS.COM

332 N. BROADMORE WAY
NAMPA, IDAHO 83687-5123

PHONE: (208) 442-6300

11-21-22









 

1 
 

             STAFF REVIEW AND REPORT 
             Middleton City Council 
 
 

 

 

 
 

Hidden Mill Subdivision  
 
 

     
 
 
 

A. Public Hearing Date: December 7, 2022 (Public Hearing after Request for 
Reconsideration was granted on November 2, 2022).  

B. Project Description: Subdivision with 20 single family buildable lots, two common 
lots, and two private lane lots on 6.65 acres of vacant land located north of 
Bridgewater Creek Subdivision (Tax Parcels No. R33891010). 

C. Applications: Developer/Owner has submitted an application for Preliminary Plat. A 
separate administrative application for floodplain permit is proceeding simultaneously 
with this preliminary plat application. 

Developer brought this preliminary plat application before City Council on September 
21, 2022.  Council denied the application based upon information regarding 
overcrowding in the Middleton School District. Council stated that Applicant may gain 
approval once Applicant meets with School District staff to discuss mitigation 
measures to relieve overcrowding. 

Developer/Applicant subsequently met with School District Staff and timely submitted 
a “Request for Reconsideration” of the denial.  The request was heard on November 2, 
2022, and City Council granted the Request, triggering the need for this new public 
hearing before City Council. 

 

 



             
        

2 
 

D. Current Zoning & Property Condition:  The property is within City limits.  It is an infill 
project zoned R-3 (Single-Family Residential). It is surrounded primarily by City 
property zoned R-3. City property zoned R-4 is located to the north. 

                      

 

E. City Services: City water and sewer are located immediately south in the Bridgewater 
Creek Subdivision.  

 
 



             
        

3 
 

F.  Traffic, Access & Streets:  Road access will be through the Bridgewater Creek 
Subdivision to the south.  

          
  

Developer/Builder will contribute to surrounding road improvements by paying $5,050 
to the Mid-Star Transportation Impact program for each building permit issued.  

 
G. Pathway, Sidewalks & Open Space: A 10’ wide paved pathway will run along the Mill 

Slough. (See pathway highlighted in yellow below.) Two benches and pet waste 
station will be strategically installed along the side of the pathway. The pathway will 
connect to the existing pathways on each side of the subdivision, and it will be 
encumbered by a public access easement, filling in one more section of the City’s 
pathway plan. The Subdivision HOA and/or Developer will be responsible for 
maintaining and repairing the public pathway.  
 
Open space for the development is 22% if one considers only the pathway and 
gathering area with benches.  It is 27% if the 2nd large grassy retention area is 
included.  Minimum open space required is 5%. 
 

                  



             
        

4 
 

H. Middleton Rural Fire District: Deputy Chief Victor Islas of Middleton Rural Fire 
District has requested developer to install a fire suppression sprinkler system in each 
home to mitigate for lack of a 2nd access. This will result in the subdivision meeting 
code requirements.  The developer has agreed to this condition. 
 

I. Schools:  The Hidden Mill Subdivision is in the Middleton School District #134. 
Elementary Students living in the subdivision will attend Heights Elementary. Recently 
Superintendent Gee stated that Heights Elementary is at 134% capacity, but there are 
solutions that the District is considering to alleviate overcrowding, including year round 
school, revision of elementary school boundaries to equalize the school population, 
increased use of portables, and remodels of existing schools. 
 
The City has no jurisdiction or control over the School system.  Instead, the City can 
only support and collaborate with the School officials to try to address the over-
crowding problem.  In Idaho, new schools are generally built with bonds passed by the 
residents. In effect, the residents decide whether new schools will be built or not be 
built. Residents in Middleton and the surrounding County have not approved bonds for 
new schools for a number of years. 
 

J. Preliminary Plat Application: The subdivision contains 20 home lots, 2 common lots, 
and 2 private drive lots, all to be completed in a single phase. 
 

      
[A full-size copy of the pre-plat is attached as Exhibit “A”.] 

 
 



             
        

5 
 

Applicant is requesting a variance to not place the “perimeter fence” on the actual 
subdivision perimeter as required by MCC 5-4-11-2.  Council may grant waivers or 
exceptions to City standards and dimensions when considering a preliminary plat. 
(MCC 1-15-2). 
 

 
 
A good portion of the perimeter boundary is located in the middle of the slough so the 
fence cannot be placed on the outer boundary. It is physically impossible. Therefore, 
Applicant is requesting that the perimeter fence be placed on the rear boundary of 
individual home lots.  This also helps to open up the pathway corridor and the 
spacious greenspace gathering area in the northwest corner of the project. The fence 
along the path will be “open vision” fencing such as wrought iron. (See blue highlight 
below.)  The rest of the fencing will be 6’ privacy fence. (See red highlight below.) 
 

  
 
Per City code, the sole criteria City Council should consider when deciding whether to 
approve or deny a pre-plat is: 
 

1. Does the pre-plat comply with R-3 Zoning? 
2. Does the pre-plat meet the technical standards of our City Code. 

 



             
        

6 
 

FINDINGS: 
 
Planning Staff finds that the preliminary plat complies with all standards set forth in 
City and State codes except for the fencing which is part of the waiver request directly 
above. 
 
Additionally, City Engineer, Amy Woodruff, has recommended approval of the 
preliminary Plat.  (See Recommendation Letter attached as Exhibit “B”.) 
 
            

K. Comprehensive Plan & Land Use Map: Applicant’s project complies with the 
Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map. The intended use is Residential which is an 
allowable use in the Mixed-Use area (green) shown on the Land Use Map.    

                                   
 

Additionally, Applicant’s project complies with the Goals, Objectives, and Strategies of 
the 2019 Middleton Comprehensive Plan as follows: 

a. Goal 2: Preserve and protect private property rights as required by Idaho law. 
b. Goals 3: The project provides safe transportation services by creating on-site 

sidewalks and pathways as extensions or connections to public pathways or 
sidewalks.  

c. Goal 4: The project will establish a good quality of life with development that 
pays through impact fees and property taxes for the public services it receives 
when infrastructure is installed. 

d. Goals 10, 22 and 23: the addition of pathways increases recreational activity 
and promotes walkability, social interaction, and health in the Community. 

e. Goal 11: The project will allow dwelling types that match residents’ lifestyles by 
promoting in-fill housing improvements.  

 
L. Comments from City Engineer and City Staff:  See attached as Exhibit “C”. 

Staff Comments dated 4/5/2022 
 

M. Comments from Agencies: See comments from MSD #134, Drainage Ditch #2, ITD 
and Middleton Rural Fire attached as Exhibit “D”.   
 
Of note, when City Council denied Applicant’s preliminary plat application at the 
September 21, 2022, hearing, City Council noted that Applicant may obtain approval 



             
        

7 
 

once they met with School District Staff to discuss a way to mitigate overcrowding in 
the Schools.  Applicant met with School District Staff, and Middleton School District 
submitted a 2nd comment letter memorializing the meeting they had with Applicant.  
The District set forth mitigating measures that Applicant and School District agreed 
upon.  The agreement is outside of City purview and will be a private agreement 
between only Applicant and MSD #134.  (See 2nd letter attached as Exhibit “E”.)   
 

N. Comments Received from Surrounding Landowners: See attached Exhibit “F” 
 

O. Notices:        Dates: 
 
Neighborhood Meeting      11/1/2021     

Newspaper Notification      11/22/2022  
 Radius notification mailed to Landowners within 500’  11/21/2022  
 Circulation to Agencies      11/21/2022  
 Sign Posting property      11/21/2022  

 
P. Applicant/Owner:  Wade Thomas, IAG, LLC (successor in interest “IAG Hidden Mill, 

LLC”) 800 W. Main St., Suite 1460, Boise, Idaho 83702.  Representative is Bob Unger 
of Unger Enterprises. 
 

Q. Applicable Codes and Standards:  
Idaho Code Secs., 67-6503, 67-6509, 67-6511, 67-6513, 50-1301 through 50-1329. 
Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, the Middleton Supplement to the 
Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction. Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-15, 5-1, 
5-2, 5-3, and 5-4. 

 
R. Planning & Zoning Recommendations & Approvals: The Planning & Zoning 

Commission heard the Hidden Mill application at the August 8, 2022, public hearing. 
The Commission recommended that City Council approve the application for 
Preliminary Plat subject to the conditions detailed in the Staff Report and subject to 
Applicant meeting with the School District to discuss possible ways to assist with 
school overcrowding. (Copy of P&Z Commission FCR attached as Exhibit “G”) 
 

S. Conclusions and Recommended Conditions of Approval: 
 
According to Idaho State Law and the Middleton City Code, any land use decision City 
Council makes must be based upon Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law.  

 
Findings of Facts: Planning Staff has set forth the Findings of Facts above. If the 
Council agrees with the findings of facts in the staff report and those presented at the 
hearing on this matter, then Council may affirm the findings of facts while making a 
motion on the application.  
 
Conclusions of Law: Planning Staff finds that the City Council has the authority to 
hear this application and to approve or deny it, with or without conditions. Planning 



             
        

8 
 

Staff also finds that all public notice requirements were met, and Staff identified 
portions of the Idaho State Code and Middleton City Code to be considered in making 
a decision on the application. If the public hearing is held and conducted in compliance 
with the Idaho State Code and Middleton City Code, then the Council may affirm these 
conclusions of law while making a motion on the application.  
 
If the Council is inclined to approve the Hidden Mill Preliminary Plat application based 
upon the above Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law, then Planning Staff 
recommends that any approval be subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. City of Middleton municipal domestic water, fire flow and sanitary sewer 
services are to be extended to serve the subdivision. 

2. All City Engineer review comments are to be completed and approved.  
3. All City Planner comments to be completed and approved. 
4. All comments from MRFD to be completed and approved. 
5. All Floodplain Administrator comments are to be completed and approved. 
6. Pathway along the slough is to be 10 ft wide with a public access easement.  

Developer/HOA to maintain and repair the public pathway. 
7. All landscaping and amenities to be installed in compliance with the submitted 

landscape plan and preliminary plat. 
8. Developer shall create a plan for operation, maintenance, and repair of 

stormwater facilities (O&M Plan) contained on the project site. The O&M Plan 
shall be recorded with the CC&Rs. Developer and/or HOA must maintain and 
operate the subdivision stormwater facilities in compliance with the O&M Plan. 

9. Sewer and water capacity to be reserved at the time the City approves the 
construction drawings for the project.  

 
Lastly, if the Council denies the application, Council should state on the record what 
Applicant can do, if anything, to gain Council approval. 

  

Prepared by: Roberta Stewart – Planning & Zoning Official   Dated: 11/30/2022 

 

 

 

 

 



             
        

9 
 

 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

 

Proposed Preliminary Plat 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



N89°44'52" 446.83'

N
1°

47
'2

9"
E 

42
2.

67
'

MW

MW

MW

SS
SS

SS

SS

T T
T T

IV

WVWV

6    5
7    8

CP&F NO.
2021-078748

6    E 1/16

7
CP&F NO.

2004-22693

MW

SS

IV

T

WV

09/13/2022



N
8°37'44"W

 195.25'

9 10 11 12 13 14 15
1

2

3

7 66 57

8

T
T

IV

WVWV

T

MW

MW

MW

1

13

12

11
10

9 8 7

5

6

T

SS

N
0°23'36"W

 296.05'

N42
°4

0'
44

"E
 82

.66
'

S89°24'42"E 75.83' S22°14'29"W
25.05'

S71°16'52"E 490.24'

S89°48'07"E 225.66'

N
20

°1
4'

00
"E

 7
8.

09
'

N
6°20'29"W

 95.09'

S1
°4

7'
29

"W
 2

68
.6

9'

N89°44'52"W 828.30'

N69°29'41"E

49.09'

1

SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE
RIM=2399.85'

 12" RCP INV=2394.48'
8" RCP INV(E)=2394.86'

SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE
RIM=2401.46'
8" RCP INV(W)=2397.29'
8" RCP INV(N)=2397.39'
8" RCP INV(S)=2397.43'

SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE
RIM=2401.49'

8" RCP INV(S)=2397.79'

S89°45'46"E
21.12'

±291,529 S.F.
±6.69 ACRES

S89°48'07"E
50.26'

S70°21'37"W 340.03'

S0
°3

6'
24

"W
 1

26
.4

0'

N
1°

47
'2

9"
E 

42
2.

67
'

2

CO
BB

LE
ST

O
N

E 
CT

.

℄ MILL SLOUGH

BRID
GEW

A
TER W

A
Y

1

SS

SS

N
8°35'53"W

 58.02'

FLOODWAY

AE ZONE

SS

S89°44'13"E 376.38'

S1
°3

9'
45

"W
 6

15
.4

0'

617.03' 92.11'26.00'26.00'67.16'

10.71'

S89°44'13"E 107.50'

N
24°08'48"W

 400.81'

MW

MW

MW

SS
SS

SS

SS

T T
T T

IV

WVWV

SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE
RIM=2398.03'

12" RCP INV(W)=2395.00'
12" RCP INV(S)=2394.97'

PROJECT BENCHMARK
FOUND 5/8" IRON PIN
NAVD88 ELEV.=2401.67'

N61°30'41"W
17.72'

S89°44'26"E
6.73'

S7°20'33"E 106.33'

S89°45'46"E 318.13' S89°45'46"E 243.56'
CREEKSIDE CT. BRIDGEWATER WAY

S0
°3

6'
24

"W
 1

43
.9

5'

N85°50'03"W 154.83'

REAL POINT OF BEGINNING

℄
 M

ILL SLO
U

GH

9

2220 21

24

2319

18

7

13
11

14

1

8

2

16

3

17

4

5

6

10

12

15

122.98' 402.20' 347.76'
6    E 1/16

7
CP&F NO.

2004-22693

N89°44'52" 446.83' 6    5
7    8

CP&F NO.
2021-078748

09/13/2022



             
        

10 
 

 

 

EXHIBIT “B” 

 

City Engineer Recommendation of Approval 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





             
        

11 
 

 

EXHIBIT “C” 

 

Engineering & Planning Comments 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





 

                                                                                                                                                  T (208) 918-4859 

                                                                                                                                                                910 Main Street, Ste 314 
                                                                                                                                                          Boise, ID 83702 

                                                                                                                                     nasland.com 
 

Civil Engineering          Consulting          Land Planning 

MEMORANDUM  
June 03, 2022 
NE No. 321-105.1 
 
To: Jennica Reynolds & Amy Woodruff 
 Planning & Zoning 
 City of Middleton 
 1103 W. Main St, 
 Middleton, ID 83644 
 
From:  Cory Schrack, PE 
 
RE: Final Resubmittal Responses for the Hidden Mill Subdivision – Preliminary Plat 
 

The following responses in green are based on the City Engineer comments dated May 23, 2022. 
 
City Engineer Comments (4/5/2022) 
 
MCC 5-4-4.2. g. Show floodplain and floodway on the plat. This information is not discernable.  
The FEMA AE Zone and Regulatory Floodway are shown on the Preliminary Plat, refer to the ‘Legend’ on 
PP-01 and hatches/callouts on sheet PP-02. The hatch for the AE Zone are ‘small boxes’ while the 
Floodway are ‘small plus signs’, see below for additional information. 
 

 
 

 



 

                                                                                                                                                  T (208) 918-4859 

                                                                                                                                                                910 Main Street, Ste 314 
                                                                                                                                                          Boise, ID 83702 

                                                                                                                                     nasland.com 
 

Civil Engineering          Consulting          Land Planning 

 
MCC 5-4-4.2. h. 

1. Dimension rights of way. Keep the 52ft right of way for Cobblestone through the culdesac then 
transition to 50ft from Hidden Mill limits.  
The right-of-way dimension at the entrance to the subdivision is 52’, a dimension was added to 
illustrate this. The cul-de-sac radius remained at 50’ (per section 5-4-10-2.E) which is the same 
radius for the existing Creekside Ct and Cobblestone Ct cul-de-sacs, see below for additional 
information. Hidden Mill Court remained at 50’ and will be per the City of Middleton Typical 
Local Road Section shown on sheet PP-02.  
 

 
 
 



 

                                                                                                                                                  T (208) 918-4859 

                                                                                                                                                                910 Main Street, Ste 314 
                                                                                                                                                          Boise, ID 83702 

                                                                                                                                     nasland.com 
 

Civil Engineering          Consulting          Land Planning 

 
 

 
2. Show existing easements for Mill Slough. If the Mill Slough easement is consistent through the 

limits then modify language to reflect 50ft from centerline of Mill Slough.  
The Mill Slough easement is 50’ wide from the centerline as shown on the Preliminary Plat, refer 
to the ‘Legend’ on sheet PP-01 and linework/callouts/dimensions on sheet PP-02. See below for 
additional information.  
 

  
 

 
MCC 5-4-4.2 a and 1. The boundary has a bearing in error on west side. Add the section corner and ties 
to PP-02.  
The boundary bearing typo was revised on the Preliminary Plat and the section corner and ties were 
added to sheet PP-02.   
 
  



 

                                                                                                                                                  T (208) 918-4859 

                                                                                                                                                                910 Main Street, Ste 314 
                                                                                                                                                          Boise, ID 83702 

                                                                                                                                     nasland.com 
 

Civil Engineering          Consulting          Land Planning 

MCC 5-4-4.3. a 
1. There is not sufficient sewer depth as shown. There is less than one (1) foot of cover. Add a note 

regarding the sewer and site fill: Up to three feet of site fill will be required for sewer 
installation.  
Based on topographic field survey, provided by Valley Land Surveying, the sewer point of 
connection at the southwest corner of the site has more than 1 foot of cover and is 
approximately 3’ deep (2398.03RIM/2394.97IE), refer to sheet PP-02 and see below for 
additional information. Similar to Bridgewater Creek Subdivision, site fill is anticipated for this 
project in order to maintain a minimum of 3ft of cover over the proposed sewer mains. Note 
#20 on PP-01 was revised to include the following, “All sanitary sewer mains shall have a 
minimum of 3ft of cover per the City of Middleton Supplement to the ISPWC.”  
 

 





 

 
 

 

CITY OF MIDDLETON 
P.O. Box 487     1103 W Main Street, Middleton, ID  83644 

Tele (208) 585-3133     Fax (208) 585-9601 

citmid@middletonidaho.us  www.middleton.id.gov 

PLANNER COMMENTS – HIDDEN MILL PRELIMINARY  

 

 

 

April 5, 2022 

 

1. Add note that you will add a 10’ wide asphalt pathway with a 20’ public easement along the 

drain.  The green path area on the Transportation, Schools and Recreation Map shows a 

pathway as part of the Comprehensive Plan. You are already planning on doing the path and 

it is shown on the plat. Please just make sure it matches the 10’ wide asphalt paths it 

connects to on the east and south.  

 
2. If possible reduce plat to no more than 3 pages. 

3. Provide updated landscape plan. 

4. Private Drives are not calculated in the open space. Please remove from calculation. I find 

38,131 SF of open space or 13%. Please revise table. 

5. Add note: All existing wells shall be abandoned per IDWR regulations. All Septic Systems shall 

be completely removed and the area recompacted per geotechnical report. 

6. Change Note 15 to read: Fiber optic to be provided to each lot during joint trench 

construction per the City of Middleton supplement to the ISPWC.  

7. Combine notes 1 and 17. Add “all interior side yard lot lines…” 

8. Edit note 7 to read: Domestic and fire protection water shall be provided by the City of 

Middleton. 

9. Add note: Sanitary sewer collection shall be provided by the City of Middleton.  

10. Edit note 14 to read: All building setbacks and dimensional standards shall be in compliance 

with R-3 zoning at time of building permit issuance. 

11. Show all public and private easements on preliminary plat. 

12. Remove note 10 

13. Remove notes 3 and 4. 

14. Lot 6 does not have minimum of 75’ wide 

15. Please add at least 2 benches and 1 pet waste station to some location on either or both of 

your common area lots 22 or 14. 

 

 



2 | P a g e  

 

16. Perimeter fence. Please see the following. Red shows where fence should go.  Please modify 

note 22 on the Preliminary Plat to describe the new fencing and state it will be a waiver from 

code. FYI, this waiver will also be a request at the public hearing. 

 

 
 

17. You need to continue to work with the Fire Department and City to come up with a solution 

for a 2nd access. You may consider reaching out to the Tiechert’s, the property owner to the 

east. They have a cross access easement and may be willing to discuss bollards and an 

emergency only access. Please discuss with Fire Deputy Chief Islas for options.  

 

 

 

 

Sincerely,  

Jennica Reynolds 
Middleton City  

Deputy Clerk, Planning 

 

 



             
        

12 
 

 

EXHIBIT "D” 

 

Agency Comments 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

		Middleton	School	District	#134	
Every	Child	Learning	Every	Day	

 
 
 

City of Middleton--Public Hearing Notice Response 
General Response for All New Development 

Middleton School District is currently experiencing significant growth in its student 
population.  Currently Middleton School District has 2 of our 3 elementary schools over 
capacity.  Heights Elementary is at 134% of capacity with three portable units.  Mill 
Creek Elementary is at 123% of capacity with 2 portables (soon to be 4).    We are 
nearing capacity, but have not superseded at this point, at our high school (94%) and 
middle school (85%).  As it stands now there is a need for additional facilities in our school 
district, primarily at the elementary grades.  We have significant concerns of the 
continued growth and our ability to meet the future facility needs of our district at the 
secondary level (Middleton Middle School and Middleton High School). 

We have completed a demographic study performed for our school district boundaries 
and the data suggests for every new home we could expect between 0.5 and 0.7 (with an 
average of .559) students to come to our school.  That is the factor/rate we use to make 
our projection of student impact for each development. 

We encourage the city to be judicious in their approval process recognizing that each new 
development brings new students to our school and will increase the burden placed on 
taxpayers within the school district.  New facilities, primarily an elementary school, are 
needed now, but additional students continue to increase that need.  

Hidden Mill (Middleton) 

Students living in the subdivision as planned would be in the attendance zones for Mill 
Creek Elementary, Middleton Middle School, and Middleton High School.  With 20 total 
lots, we would anticipate, upon completion, an increase of 10-14 students between Mill 
Creek Elementary, Middleton Middle School, and Middleton High School.  To put this in 
perspective, that equates to less than 1 classroom of students (ave. 25 students).   

In addition to the increase in student population, based on the location, bussing would be 
provided for school students attending Middleton Middle School and Middleton High 
School.  Bussing would not be provided for Mill Creek Elementary students.  On 
September 15th, 2022, Bob Unger, representing the developers, met with district 
employees and addressed the safe routes to school, indicating that there would be a 
sidewalk/path included that would connect to the existing sidewalk network allowing for 
safe routes to school.   

Questions, clarifications, or comments should be directed to: 

Marc Gee, Superintendent. (mgee@msd134.org) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Marc Gee 
Superintendent 

 
Lisa Pennington 

Assistant Superintendent 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

5 South Viking Avenue 
Middleton, ID 83644 

(208) 585-3027 
msd134.org 



Middleton	School	District	#134	
Every	Child	Learning	Every	Day	

 

Middleton School District Office:    5 S. Viking Ave, Middleton, ID 83644          Phone:  208-585-3027 
Marc C. Gee, Superintendent             Lisa Pennington, Asst. Superintendent          Alicia Krantz, Business Manager 

       mgee@msd134.org                                   lpennington@msd134.org                             akrantz@msd134.org 
 

		
Middleton School District #134  

City of Middleton--Public Hearing Notice Response 
General Response for New Development 

Middleton School District is currently experiencing significant growth in its student population.  
Currently Middleton School District has 2 of our 3 elementary schools over capacity.  Heights Elementary is 
at 134% of capacity with three portable units.  Mill Creek Elementary is at 123% of capacity with 2 
portables (soon to be 4).    We are nearing capacity, but have not superseded at this point, at our high school 
(91%) and middle school (85%).  As it stands now there is a need for additional facilities in our school 
district, primarily at the elementary grades.  However, we have significant concerns of the continued 
growth and our ability to meet the future facility needs of our district at the secondary level (Middleton 
Middle School and Middleton High School). 

We have completed demographic study performed for our school district boundaries and data suggests 
that for every new home we could expect between 0.5 and 0.7 (with an average of .569) students to 
come to our schools.  That is the factor/rate we use to make our projection of student impact for each 
development. 

Hidden Mill Subdivision 
Elementary students living in the subdivision as planned would be in the attendance zone for Mill Creek 
Elementary School.  With 20 lots we anticipate the following breakdown of student increase in our 
schools: 

Grade Range Factor # of students 
Elementary (K-5) 0.219 4.38 
Middle (6-8) 0.139 2.78 
High (9-12) 0.211 4.22 
Total 0.569 11.38 

 

Representatives of Hidden Mill Subdivision have met with school district administration and discussed 
ways to mitigate the impact of these students on the physical facilities and operations of the school 
district.  Based on district analysis (see attached Analysis of Real Estate Development Impact on 
Middleton School District) and discussion with developer representatives we have identified areas where 
the developers of the Hidden Mill Subdivision could assist in the mitigation of growth in the school 
system.   

First, bussing would be provided for school students attending Middleton Middle School and Middleton 
High School. Bussing would not be provided for Mill Creek Elementary students. The developers have 
indicated that there would be a sidewalk/path included that would connect to the existing sidewalk 
network allowing for safe routes to Mill Creek Elementary School.  



Middleton	School	District	#134	
Every	Child	Learning	Every	Day	

 

Middleton School District Office:    5 S. Viking Ave, Middleton, ID 83644          Phone:  208-585-3027 
Marc C. Gee, Superintendent             Lisa Pennington, Asst. Superintendent          Alicia Krantz, Business Manager 

       mgee@msd134.org                                   lpennington@msd134.org                             akrantz@msd134.org 
 

 

Second, the developers and school district officials are in the process of developing a Memorandum of 
Understanding regarding the expected financial impact resulting from these additional elementary 
students.  With the addition of elementary students into a school that is over capacity, our analysis 
indicates that $1,114.60 per lot, or $5,089.52 per elementary student, is the amount necessary to 
account for the elementary growth due to this development.  The developer has indicated that they are 
willing to voluntarily address this financial impact as part of the City of Middleton’s subdivision approval 
process.  

For questions or comments, please contact Marc Gee, Superintendent (contact information in footer). 

 

_____________________________ _October 14, 2022_________________ 

Marc Gee, Superintendent Date 



From: Jennica Reynolds
To: Roberta Stewart
Subject: FW: Agency Notice Middleton - Hidden Mill - Public Hearing 12.7.2022
Date: Monday, November 21, 2022 5:18:27 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image003.png

ITD Response Below.
 

Jennica Reynolds
City of Middleton
Deputy Clerk, Planning
208-585-3133
jreynolds@middletoncity.com
 

 
 
 

From: Niki Benyakhlef <Niki.Benyakhlef@itd.idaho.gov> 
Sent: Monday, November 21, 2022 2:36 PM
To: Jennica Reynolds <jreynolds@middletoncity.com>
Subject: RE: Agency Notice Middleton - Hidden Mill - Public Hearing 12.7.2022
 

Good Afternoon, 

After careful review of the transmittal submitted to ITD on November 21, 2022 regarding
Hidden Mill – Public Hearing,  the Department has no comments or concerns to make at this
time. 

Thank you,
 

Niki Benyakhlef
Development Services Coordinator
 
 
District 3 Development Services
O: 208.334.8337
C: 208.296.9750
Email: niki.benyakhlef@itd.idaho.gov
Website: itd.idaho.gov

 
 

From: Jennica Reynolds <jreynolds@middletoncity.com> 

mailto:jreynolds@middletoncity.com
mailto:rstewart@middletoncity.com
mailto:jreynolds@middletoncity.com
mailto:niki.benyakhlef@itd.idaho.gov
https://itd.idaho.gov/
mailto:jreynolds@middletoncity.com






Sent: Monday, November 21, 2022 10:29 AM
To: Alicia Krantz - MSD <akrantz@msd134.org>; Canyon County Paramedics
<MStowell@ccparamedics.com>; Chris Grooms <cgrooms@middletoncity.com>; COMPASS
<gis@compassidaho.org>; Deann Gerthung (deann.gerthung@canyoncounty.id.gov)
<deann.gerthung@canyoncounty.id.gov>; Idaho Power - Mike Ybarguen
<MYbarguen@idahopower.com>; D3 Development Services
<D3Development.Services@itd.idaho.gov>; Julie Collette <gmprdjulie@gmail.com>;
Kerry.Schmidt@intgas.com; Lacey Grooms - MSD <lgrooms@msd134.org>; Marc Gee - MSD
<mgee@msd134.org>; Middleton/Star Fire <permits@starfirerescue.org>; Monica Taylor -
Intermountain Gass <monica.taylor@intgas.com>; Southwest District Health - Mitch Kiester
<Mitch.Kiester@phd3.idaho.gov>; vislas@starfirerescue.org; westerninfo@idwr.idaho.gov;
zoninginfo@canyoncounty.id.gov; Middleton Mill Ditch Co <irrigation.mm.mi@gmail.com>;
Middleton Mill - Sawtooth Law <bryce@sawtoothlaw.com>; Sparklight - Franchise
<cheryl.goettsche@sparklight.biz>
Cc: Roberta Stewart <rstewart@middletoncity.com>
Subject: Agency Notice Middleton - Hidden Mill - Public Hearing 12.7.2022
 
CAUTION: This email originated outside the State of Idaho network. Verify links and attachments BEFORE you
click or open, even if you recognize and/or trust the sender. Contact your agency service desk with any
concerns.
 

Please see the attached Agency Notice for Middleton City Council public hearing 12/7/2022.
 

Jennica Reynolds
City of Middleton
Deputy Clerk, Planning
208-585-3133
jreynolds@middletoncity.com
 

 
 
 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: The contents of this email message and any attachments are
intended solely for the addressee(s) and may contain Personal Information from a DMV file
which is legally protected from disclosure under both state and Federal law. Be advised that
Personal Information may only be disclosed to third parties under the provisions of Idaho
Code section 49-203. If you are not the intended recipient of this message, or if this message
has been addressed to you in error, please immediately delete this message and any
attachments, and alert the sender.

mailto:akrantz@msd134.org
mailto:MStowell@ccparamedics.com
mailto:cgrooms@middletoncity.com
mailto:gis@compassidaho.org
mailto:deann.gerthung@canyoncounty.id.gov
mailto:deann.gerthung@canyoncounty.id.gov
mailto:MYbarguen@idahopower.com
mailto:D3Development.Services@itd.idaho.gov
mailto:gmprdjulie@gmail.com
mailto:Kerry.Schmidt@intgas.com
mailto:lgrooms@msd134.org
mailto:mgee@msd134.org
mailto:permits@starfirerescue.org
mailto:monica.taylor@intgas.com
mailto:Mitch.Kiester@phd3.idaho.gov
mailto:vislas@starfirerescue.org
mailto:westerninfo@idwr.idaho.gov
mailto:zoninginfo@canyoncounty.id.gov
mailto:irrigation.mm.mi@gmail.com
mailto:bryce@sawtoothlaw.com
mailto:cheryl.goettsche@sparklight.biz
mailto:rstewart@middletoncity.com
mailto:jreynolds@middletoncity.com


 

Project:  The Hidden Mill Subdivision                                                                                                     Page 1 of 3 

 

 

 

 

DATE:    April 8, 2022 

TO:    Middleton City Planning and Zoning  

   Middleton City Council   

FROM:   Victor Islas, Deputy Chief  

SUBJECT:  Fire District Review  

PROJECT NAME:  The Hidden Mill Subdivision      

Fire District Summary Report:  
 

1. Overview This development can be serviced by the Middleton Rural Fire District.  This 
development shall comply with the 2018 International Fire Code (IFC) and any codes set forth by 
the City of Middleton, Idaho.   

 
2. Fire Response Time:  This development will be served by the Middleton Rural Fire District Station 

53, located at 302 E. Main St., Middleton, ID 83644.  Station 53 is 0.7 miles with a travel time of 
2 minutes under ideal driving conditions to the entrance of the Bridgewater Subdivision.   

 
3. Accessibility: Roadway Access, Traffic, Radio Coverage  

a. Access roads shall be provided and maintained following Appendix D and Section 503 of 
the IFC. Access shall include adequate roadway widths, signage, turnarounds, and turning 
radius for fire apparatus.  

b. Access road design shall be designed and constructed to allow for evacuation 
simultaneously with emergency response operations.  

c. All access roads in this development shall remain clear and unobstructed during 
construction of the development. Additional parking restrictions may be required as to 
always maintain access for emergency vehicles. Hydrants shall always remain 
unobstructed per city code.  

d. One- or two-family dwelling residential developments: Developments of one- or two-
family dwellings where the number of dwelling units exceeds 30 shall provide with at least 
two separate and approved fire apparatus access roads. With this purposed development 
utilizing the Bridgewater Subdivision main entrance the entrance will now be used by over 
30 homes. (Bridgewater = 21 single family lots, The Hidden Mill Subdivision = 20 Single 
family lots)  

i. Option – Provide secondary access.   
ii. Option – Provide secondary emergency access only.  

iii. Option - Where there are more than 30 dwelling units on a single public or private 
fire apparatus access road and all dwelling units are equipped throughout with an 
approved automatic sprinkler system in accordance with section 903.3.1.1, 903.1.2 
or 903.3.1.3, access from two directions shall not be required.  

 



 

Project:  The Hidden Mill Subdivision                                                                                                     Page 2 of 3 

 

 
 
 
 
 

e. The fire district requires that Autoturn models be submitted for review.  Autoturn models 
should be reflect the utilization of a 36’ long fire engine and a 50’ long ladder truck. 

f. Traffic calming devices will require approval by the Fire District 
g. An unobstructed vertical clearance of no less than 13 feet 6 inches shall be always 

maintained.   
h. Dead-end fire apparatus access roads (Common driveways & streets) in excess of 150 ft 

shall be provided with width and turnaround provisions in accordance with Table D103.4 
of IFC.  

i. Signs – Fire lane signs as specified in IFC secion D103.6 shall be posted on one side of the 
fire apparatus access roads more than 26 feet wide and less than 32 feet wide starting at the 
entrance of Bridgewater Subdivision. (See attached picture)  

j. The applicant shall work with City of Middleton and Middleton Rural Fire District to 
provide an address identification plan and signage which meets the requirements set forth 
by each agency. Addressing shall be placed in a position that is plainly legible and visible 
from the street or road fronting the property, as set forth in International Fire Code Section 
505.1 

k. All residential, commercial, and industrial buildings within the City shall have approved 
address numbers, building numbers, or approved building identification placed in a 
position that is plainly legible and visible from the street or road fronting the property. 
These numbers shall contrast with their background. When required by the fire code 
official, address numbers shall be provided in additional approved locations to facilitate 
emergency response.  

l. Address numbers shall have a minimum stroke width of one-half inch (0.5"), and of a color 
contrasting with the background. The required height of each address number shall be 
calculated by the distance of the addressed building from the road, as follows: 

 

m. Upon commencement of initial construction of a new structure, a clear visible freestanding 
sign or post hall be erected and maintained in place until the permanent address numerals  
are attached or otherwise displaced upon the premises at completion.  
 

4. Water Supply: Water supply requirements will be followed as described in Appendix B of the 
2018 International Fire Code unless agreed upon by the Fire District.  

a. Fire Flow: One-  and two-fami ly  dwellings not exceeding 3,600 square feet require a 
fire-flow of 1,000 gallons per minute for a duration of 1 hours to service the entire project. 
One-  and  two- fami ly  dwellings in excess of 3,600 square feet require a minimum fire 
flow as specified in Appendix B of the International Fire Code. 

 
 

Less than one hundred feet (100’)  6” 

one hundred feet to one hundred fifty feet (100 - 150') 8” 

one hundred fifty-one feet to two hundred feet (151 - 200') 10” 

two hundred one feet to two hundred fifty-one feet (201 - 251') 12” 



 

Project:  The Hidden Mill Subdivision                                                                                                     Page 3 of 3 

 

 
 
 
 
 

b. Automatic Fire Sprinklers as option due to access.  Will be in accordance with IFC and AHJ 
for review, approval and permitting.  

c. Water Supply: Acceptance of the water supply for fire protection will be by the Fire District 
and water quality by the City of Middleton for bacteria testing.  

d. Water Supply: Final Approval of the fire hydrant locations shall be by the Middleton Rural 
Fire District or their designee in accordance with International Fire Code Section (IFC) 
508.5.4 as follows:  

i. Fire hydrants shall have a Storz LDH connection in place of the 4 ½” outlet. The 
Storz connection may be integrated into the hydrant, or an approved adapter may 
be used on the 4 1/2" outlet.  

ii. Fire hydrants shall have the Storz outlet face the main street or parking lot drive 
aisle.  

iii. Fire hydrants shall be placed on corners when spacing permits.  
iv. Fire hydrants shall not have any vertical obstructions to outlets within 10’. 
v. Fire hydrants shall be placed 18” above finished grade to the center of the Storz 

outlet.  
vi. Fire hydrants shall be provided to meet the requirements of the City of Middleton 

Water Standards.  
vii. Show all proposed or existing hydrants for all new construction or additions to 

existing buildings within 1,000 feet of the project. 
 

5. Inspections: Final inspection by the Fire District of the above listed including hydrant flow must 
be completed before building permits are issued 
 

6. Additional Comments:  
a. Side Setback as per City Code.  Any modification to setback will require review and 

approval by the Fire District. 
b. Streetlights shall be turned on once residential building begins, Lighting is essential in 

assisting first responders with identifying entrances safely while responding to calls for 
service.  

 
 
 



N
8°37'44"W

 195.25'

9 10 11 12 13 14 15
1

2

3

8

7 66 57

4

8

1 2A 2B

T
T

IV

WVWV

T

MW

MW

MW

14

1

13

12

11
10

9 8 7

5

6

T

SS

N
0°23'36"W

 296.05'

N42
°4

0'
44

"E
 82

.66
'

S89°24'42"E 75.83' S22°14'29"W
25.05'

S71°16'52"E 490.24'

S89°48'07"E 225.66'

N
20

°1
4'

00
"E

 7
8.

09
'

N
6°20'29"W

 95.09'

S1
°4

7'
29

"W
 2

68
.6

9'

N89°45'46"W 828.30'

N69°29'41"E

49.09'

1

S64°56'17"E50.00'
S89°45'46"E

21.12'

S89°48'07"E
50.26'

S70°21'37"W 340.03'

S0
°3

6'
24

"W
 1

26
.4

0'

S1
°4

7'
29

"W
 4

22
.6

7'

MOUNTAIN LOOP STREET

2

CO
BB

LE
ST

O
N

E 
CT

.

℄ MILL SLOUGH

BRID
GEW

A
TER W

A
Y

1

SS

SS

N
8°35'53"W

 58.02'

S89°44'13"E 376.38'

S1
°3

9'
45

"W
 6

15
.4

0'

617.03' 92.11'26.00'26.00'67.16'

10.71'

S89°44'13"E 107.50'

N
24°08'48"W

 400.81'

MW

MW

MW

SS
SS

SS

SS

T T
T T

IV

WVWV

N61°30'41"W
17.72'

S89°44'26"E
6.73'

S7°20'33"E 106.33'

S89°45'46"E 318.13' S89°45'46"E 243.56'
CREEKSIDE CT. BRIDGEWATER WAY

S0
°3

6'
24

"W
 1

43
.9

5'

N85°50'03"W 154.83'

24

1917 18

21

2016
15

22

5

6

8

10

13

7

11
914

23

12

4

2

3

1

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRIDGEWATER CREEK SUBDIVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 2 R.O.S. INST. NO. 2013-022365

AutoCAD SHX Text
R.O.S. INST. NO. 200663758

AutoCAD SHX Text
R.O.S. INST. NO. 200663758

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOUNTAIN VIEW SUBDIVISION UNIT NO. 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
OLD MILL STREAM SUBDIVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 1 R.O.S. INST. NO. 2013-022365

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOUNTAIN VIEW HOA R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAHN R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEARSON R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREEK R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPARKS FM TR R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERIC R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
HEROUX R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
SORENSEN R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENTCO NO 2 LLC R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEICHERT R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOOTE R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRIDGEWATER CREEK HOA R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOWOTNY R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOMMER R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF MIDDLETON R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOUNTAIN VIEW HOA R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
75.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
75.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIVATE LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIVATE LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMON LOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE LOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIDDEN MILL COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENTRANCE/EXIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREEKSIDE COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRIDGEWATER WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRIDGEWATER WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOUNTAIN LOOP STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
COBBLESTONE CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
NE JOB #: DATE: DRAWN BY: CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
321-105.1 03/23/2022 MN CS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIDDEN MILL SUBDIVISION PRELIMINARY PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORIGINAL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
03/23/2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
MN

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
17727

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
120

AutoCAD SHX Text
160

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE   1" =  40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCK TO LOCK TIME

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%U36' LONG FIRE ENGINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIDTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEERING ANGLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
:

AutoCAD SHX Text
:

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.33

AutoCAD SHX Text
:

AutoCAD SHX Text
48.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
:

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.33

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
36.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE ACCESS EXHIBIT - 36' LONG FIRE ENGINE



N
8°37'44"W

 195.25'

9 10 11 12 13 14 15
1

2

3

8

7 66 57

4

8

1 2A 2B

T
T

IV

WVWV

T

MW

MW

MW

14

1

13

12

11
10

9 8 7

5

6

T

SS

N
0°23'36"W

 296.05'

N42
°4

0'
44

"E
 82

.66
'

S89°24'42"E 75.83' S22°14'29"W
25.05'

S71°16'52"E 490.24'

S89°48'07"E 225.66'

N
20

°1
4'

00
"E

 7
8.

09
'

N
6°20'29"W

 95.09'

S1
°4

7'
29

"W
 2

68
.6

9'

N89°45'46"W 828.30'

N69°29'41"E

49.09'

1

S64°56'17"E50.00'
S89°45'46"E

21.12'

S89°48'07"E
50.26'

S70°21'37"W 340.03'

S0
°3

6'
24

"W
 1

26
.4

0'

S1
°4

7'
29

"W
 4

22
.6

7'

MOUNTAIN LOOP STREET

2

CO
BB

LE
ST

O
N

E 
CT

.

℄ MILL SLOUGH

BRID
GEW

A
TER W

A
Y

1

SS

SS

N
8°35'53"W

 58.02'

S89°44'13"E 376.38'

S1
°3

9'
45

"W
 6

15
.4

0'

617.03' 92.11'26.00'26.00'67.16'

10.71'

S89°44'13"E 107.50'

N
24°08'48"W

 400.81'

MW

MW

MW

SS
SS

SS

SS

T T
T T

IV

WVWV

N61°30'41"W
17.72'

S89°44'26"E
6.73'

S7°20'33"E 106.33'

S89°45'46"E 318.13' S89°45'46"E 243.56'
CREEKSIDE CT. BRIDGEWATER WAY

S0
°3

6'
24

"W
 1

43
.9

5'

N85°50'03"W 154.83'

24

1917 18

21

2016
15

22

5

6

8

10

13

7

11
914

23

12

4

2

3

1

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRIDGEWATER CREEK SUBDIVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 2 R.O.S. INST. NO. 2013-022365

AutoCAD SHX Text
R.O.S. INST. NO. 200663758

AutoCAD SHX Text
R.O.S. INST. NO. 200663758

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOUNTAIN VIEW SUBDIVISION UNIT NO. 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
OLD MILL STREAM SUBDIVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 1 R.O.S. INST. NO. 2013-022365

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOUNTAIN VIEW HOA R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAHN R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEARSON R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREEK R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPARKS FM TR R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERIC R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
HEROUX R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
SORENSEN R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENTCO NO 2 LLC R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEICHERT R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOOTE R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRIDGEWATER CREEK HOA R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOWOTNY R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOMMER R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF MIDDLETON R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOUNTAIN VIEW HOA R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
75.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
75.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIVATE LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIVATE LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMON LOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE LOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENTRANCE/EXIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIDDEN MILL COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREEKSIDE COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRIDGEWATER WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRIDGEWATER WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOUNTAIN LOOP STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
COBBLESTONE CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRST UNIT WIDTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAILER WIDTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRST UNIT TRACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAILER TRACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
:

AutoCAD SHX Text
:

AutoCAD SHX Text
:

AutoCAD SHX Text
:

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEERING ANGLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCK TO LOCK TIME

AutoCAD SHX Text
:

AutoCAD SHX Text
:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARTICULATING ANGLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
:

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.97

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
70.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%U50' LONG LADDER TRUCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NE JOB #: DATE: DRAWN BY: CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
321-105.1 03/23/2022 MN CS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIDDEN MILL SUBDIVISION PRELIMINARY PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORIGINAL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
03/23/2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
MN

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
17727

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
120

AutoCAD SHX Text
160

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE   1" =  40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE ACCESS EXHIBIT - 50' LONG FIRE ENGINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.00



N
8°37'44"W

 195.25'

9 10 11 12 13 14 15
1

2

3

459

8

7 66 57

4

3

8

1 2A 2B

T
T

IV

WVWV

T

MW

MW

MW

1

13

12

11
10

9 8 7

5

6

T

SS

N
0°23'36"W

 296.05'

N42
°4

0'
44

"E
 82

.66
'

S89°24'42"E 75.83' S22°14'29"W
25.05'

S71°16'52"E 490.24'

S89°48'07"E 225.66'

N
20

°1
4'

00
"E

 7
8.

09
'

N
6°20'29"W

 95.09'

S1
°4

7'
29

"W
 2

68
.6

9'

N89°45'46"W 828.30'

N69°29'41"E

49.09'

1

S64°56'17"E50.00'
S89°45'46"E

21.12'

122.98' 402.20'
446.83'

S89°48'07"E
50.26'

S70°21'37"W 340.03'

S0
°3

6'
24

"W
 1

26
.4

0'

S1
°4

7'
29

"W
 4

22
.6

7'

MOUNTAIN LOOP STREET

2

CO
BB

LE
ST

O
N

E 
CT

.

℄ MILL SLOUGH

BRID
GEW

A
TER W

A
Y

1

SS

SS

N
8°35'53"W

 58.02'

347.76'

S89°44'13"E 376.38'

S1
°3

9'
45

"W
 6

15
.4

0'

617.03' 92.11'26.00'26.00'67.16'

10.71'

S89°44'13"E 107.50'

N
24°08'48"W

 400.81'

MW

MW

MW

SS
SS

SS

SS

T T
T T

IV

WVWV

N61°30'41"W
17.72'

S89°44'26"E
6.73'

S7°20'33"E 106.33'

S89°45'46"E 318.13' S89°45'46"E 243.56'
CREEKSIDE CT. BRIDGEWATER WAY

S0
°3

6'
24

"W
 1

43
.9

5'

N85°50'03"W 154.83'

24

1917 18

21

2016
15

22

5

6

8

10

13

7

11
914

23

12

4

2

3

1

CORNELL STREET

CO
BB

LE
ST

O
N

E 
CT

.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRIDGEWATER CREEK SUBDIVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 2 R.O.S. INST. NO. 2013-022365

AutoCAD SHX Text
R.O.S. INST. NO. 200663758

AutoCAD SHX Text
R.O.S. INST. NO. 200663758

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOUNTAIN VIEW SUBDIVISION UNIT NO. 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
OLD MILL STREAM SUBDIVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
R.O.S. INST. NO. 2020-0076325

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 1 R.O.S. INST. NO. 2013-022365

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOUNTAIN VIEW HOA R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAHN R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEARSON R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREEK R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPARKS FM TR R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERIC R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
HEROUX R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
SORENSEN R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENTCO NO 2 LLC R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEICHERT R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOOTE R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRIDGEWATER CREEK HOA R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOWOTNY R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOMMER R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF MIDDLETON R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOUNTAIN VIEW HOA R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 BENCHES AND 1 PET  WASTE STATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
AUTOMATIC SPRINKLER SYSTEMS

AutoCAD SHX Text
AUTOMATIC SPRINKLER SYSTEMS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NE JOB #: DATE: DRAWN BY: CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
321-105.1 03/23/2022 MN CS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIDDEN MILL SUBDIVISION PRELIMINARY PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORIGINAL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
03/23/2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
MN

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
17727

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
120

AutoCAD SHX Text
160

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE   1" =  40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C0.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE ACCESS EXHIBIT - FIRE SPRINKLER LOTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
39

AutoCAD SHX Text
41

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET INDEX SHEET DESCRIPTION    SHEET     SHEET     FIRE SPRINKLER LOTS      C0.0  C0.0 36' LONG FIRE ENGINE    C1.0  C1.0 50' LONG FIRE ENGINE     C1.1    C1.1  C1.1 PRIVATE DRIVE      C1.2 C1.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
34

AutoCAD SHX Text
38

AutoCAD SHX Text
37

AutoCAD SHX Text
36

AutoCAD SHX Text
35



MW

MW

MW

SS
SS

S
S

S
S

T T
T T

IV

WVWV

MW

S71°16'52"E 490.24'

℄ MILL SLOUGH
MW

24

22

8

10

13

7

11

914

23

12

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIVATE LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIVATE LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMON LOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE LOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
NE JOB #: DATE: DRAWN BY: CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
321-105.1 03/23/2022 MN CS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIDDEN MILL SUBDIVISION PRELIMINARY PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORIGINAL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
03/23/2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
MN

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
17727

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE ACCESS EXHIBIT - PRIVATE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETAIL A

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEY MAP NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIDDEN MILL COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIDDEN MILL COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREEKSIDE COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text
COBBLESTONE CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRIDGEWATER WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETAIL A 1"=20' SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE   1" =  20'



             
        

13 
 

 

EXHIBIT "E” 

 

2nd letter submitted by MSD #134 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Middleton	School	District	#134	
Every	Child	Learning	Every	Day	

 

Middleton School District Office:    5 S. Viking Ave, Middleton, ID 83644          Phone:  208-585-3027 
Marc C. Gee, Superintendent             Lisa Pennington, Asst. Superintendent          Alicia Krantz, Business Manager 

       mgee@msd134.org                                   lpennington@msd134.org                             akrantz@msd134.org 
 

		
Middleton School District #134  

City of Middleton--Public Hearing Notice Response 
General Response for New Development 

Middleton School District is currently experiencing significant growth in its student population.  
Currently Middleton School District has 2 of our 3 elementary schools over capacity.  Heights Elementary is 
at 134% of capacity with three portable units.  Mill Creek Elementary is at 123% of capacity with 2 
portables (soon to be 4).    We are nearing capacity, but have not superseded at this point, at our high school 
(91%) and middle school (85%).  As it stands now there is a need for additional facilities in our school 
district, primarily at the elementary grades.  However, we have significant concerns of the continued 
growth and our ability to meet the future facility needs of our district at the secondary level (Middleton 
Middle School and Middleton High School). 

We have completed demographic study performed for our school district boundaries and data suggests 
that for every new home we could expect between 0.5 and 0.7 (with an average of .569) students to 
come to our schools.  That is the factor/rate we use to make our projection of student impact for each 
development. 

Hidden Mill Subdivision 
Elementary students living in the subdivision as planned would be in the attendance zone for Mill Creek 
Elementary School.  With 20 lots we anticipate the following breakdown of student increase in our 
schools: 

Grade Range Factor # of students 
Elementary (K-5) 0.219 4.38 
Middle (6-8) 0.139 2.78 
High (9-12) 0.211 4.22 
Total 0.569 11.38 

 

Representatives of Hidden Mill Subdivision have met with school district administration and discussed 
ways to mitigate the impact of these students on the physical facilities and operations of the school 
district.  Based on district analysis (see attached Analysis of Real Estate Development Impact on 
Middleton School District) and discussion with developer representatives we have identified areas where 
the developers of the Hidden Mill Subdivision could assist in the mitigation of growth in the school 
system.   

First, bussing would be provided for school students attending Middleton Middle School and Middleton 
High School. Bussing would not be provided for Mill Creek Elementary students. The developers have 
indicated that there would be a sidewalk/path included that would connect to the existing sidewalk 
network allowing for safe routes to Mill Creek Elementary School.  



Middleton	School	District	#134	
Every	Child	Learning	Every	Day	

 

Middleton School District Office:    5 S. Viking Ave, Middleton, ID 83644          Phone:  208-585-3027 
Marc C. Gee, Superintendent             Lisa Pennington, Asst. Superintendent          Alicia Krantz, Business Manager 

       mgee@msd134.org                                   lpennington@msd134.org                             akrantz@msd134.org 
 

 

Second, the developers and school district officials are in the process of developing a Memorandum of 
Understanding regarding the expected financial impact resulting from these additional elementary 
students.  With the addition of elementary students into a school that is over capacity, our analysis 
indicates that $1,114.60 per lot, or $5,089.52 per elementary student, is the amount necessary to 
account for the elementary growth due to this development.  The developer has indicated that they are 
willing to voluntarily address this financial impact as part of the City of Middleton’s subdivision approval 
process.  

For questions or comments, please contact Marc Gee, Superintendent (contact information in footer). 

 

_____________________________ _October 14, 2022_________________ 

Marc Gee, Superintendent Date 



             
        

14 
 

 

EXHIBIT "F” 

 

Landowner comments 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

June 4, 2022 

 

Planning and Zoning Department 

City of Middleton 

P.O. Box 487 

Middleton, ID 83644 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

I am writing you concerning the public hearing notice sent via mail regarding Hidden Mill 

Preliminary Plat. It is my understanding that there is a public hearing to be held in regard to a 

proposed development of twenty residential lots and four common lots in the Hidden Mill 

Subdivision. I wish to express my comments and concerns prior to the public hearing concerning 

this matter. 

 

I own the lot next to the designated area of this proposed development. I would support this 

development if the following terms were considered and met. First, I would ask the developer if 

we could tap into the existing utilities for our use, particularly the water and sewer utilities. 

Second, I would respectfully request that the developer build a privacy fence between the entire 

length of my lot and the proposed development at his or her sole expense on or before October 

30, 2022. Third, should the developer want to extend the existing paved trail behind his or her 

development, that would be acceptable at the expense of the developer, even if it is built on or 

near my property. Finally, there is a private drive to my lot, and I would request that access to the 

new development does not utilize the private road to my building lot. 

 

It has been a pleasure to have the opportunity to discuss this matter with your department. I am 

appreciative of the time and effort that is being put into making this project worthwhile, both for 

the developer as well as the current residents and landowners in the area. Also attached is an 

image that depicts the location of my lot (circled in yellow) in relation to the proposed 

development site. Please let me know if you have any additional questions regarding my 

comments, requests, or property. 

 

Thank you, 

 

Brent Schwab 

505-695-3792 

brentschwab@gmail.com 

 

 



 







             
        

15 
 

 

EXHIBIT "G” 

 

P&Z Commission FCR 









 
 
 

1 
 

             STAFF REVIEW AND REPORT 
                           Middleton City Council 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

Black Powder Subdivision 
Snapshot Summary 

 

            
                                        

   



             
        

2 
 

A. City Council Public Hearing Date: December 7, 2022 (Continued from 
November 16, 2022.) 
  

B. Project Description: Single Family residential subdivision located at 0 Cemetery 
Road, Middleton (tax parcel no., R38207).  Project contains 105 single family home 
lots and 17 common lots on 40.28 acres of vacant land. Amenities include park with 
play structure, lawn, benches and shade structure with picnic tables.  

 
C. Application Requests:  Applications include (1) annexation and rezone to R-3 (Single 

Family Residential), (2) Preliminary Plat, and (3) Development Agreement. 
  
D. Current Zoning & Property Condition:  The property is currently vacant land in 

Canyon County zoned “Agricultural.”  It is contiguous to Middleton City limits and is 
surrounded on three sides by City property zoned R-3.  To the north is County 
property zoned Agricultural. 

 

             
E. City Services:  Water and sewer are immediately adjacent to the project site.  Sewer 

will connect through the sewer line installed in W. Highlands Phase 17.  Water will 
connect to a large water main located in Cemetery Road.    

                    



             
        

3 
 

Sewer and water capacity are already included in the City’s current capacity analyses. 
Capacity will not be formally reserved until the construction drawings are approved by 
City Engineer.    
 

F. Pathway, Open Space & Amenities:  Developer has provided open space in the form 
of a large landscaped common lot with play structure, benches, pathways, and shade 
structure with picnic tables.   
 

 
 
There are also wide landscaped areas with pathways that separate the rear yards of 
the interior homes.  The common lots create a spacious landscaped buffer between 
homes while serving as connecting pathways. 
 
 

 
 
These landscape pathways combined with the landscaped park area equal 6% open 
space. The City Code requires only a minimum of 5% open space. 



             
        

4 
 

G. Traffic, Access & Streets:   
 
The primary access for the subdivision will be off of Cemetery Road and the future half 
road portion of Meadow Park Street. Stub roads to the east and south will connect into 
Phases 17 and 19 of the W. Highlands Subdivision.   
 

                      
  
City streets are primarily built by Developers. The Black Powder Developer, at its own 
cost, will be required to construct the frontage improvements along Cemetery Road 
and construct the brand new ½ road section of future Meadow Park Street. 
  
The intersection of Cemetery Road and State Hwy 44 is of concern to City Engineer 
and City Staff. Additionally, A review of Black Powder’s Traffic Study reveals that in 
2023 the Cemetery Road/Hwy 44 intersection will operate at a Level of Service “D” 
(“LOS” D) at peak hours due to a difficult left turn lane.  (TIS page 8 & 27, attached 
hereto as Exhibit “A”.) City Code requires intersections in Middleton to operate at a 
LOS “C”, so this intersection will shortly be below minimum standards.  To fix the 
“deficiency” at Cemetery Road and SH44, the Traffic Study recommended a traffic 
signal. 
 
It should be noted that the Traffic Study also states that all other intersections studied 
operate at acceptable standards in 2023 and will require no mitigation.  
 
Developer will be contributing, in part, to the improvements of the Cemetery & SH44 
intersection via its Mid-Star Transportation Impact Fee payments.  The fees to be 
collected will total approximately $530,250.00, and the fees will be used for 
improvements at Cemetery Road and other surrounding intersections and roadways.    
 



             
        

5 
 

However, recognizing that SH44 & Cemetery Road pose a particular problem, 
Developer has agreed to pay an additional $150,000.00 as a “Voluntary Payment” 
over and above Mid-Star fees.  Although the transportation money can be used for any 
transportation project the City chooses, the monies will be justified by, and intended 
for, improvements to the intersection of SH44 & Cemetery Road.  (See Proposed 
Development Agreement provision 3.4.) 
 
City Council has recently commissioned a traffic study to consider the intersections 
along the SH44 corridor.  The Traffic Study project is a collaboration between 
Middleton and ITD to determine if interim traffic signals are warranted at various SH44 
intersections. The Report should be completed in January or February 2023.  If it 
reveals that the Cemetery Road and SH44 intersection requires an “interim traffic 
signal”, Developer’s $150,000 payment will assist in getting that signal constructed. 
 
To further help with road improvements, Developer has also agreed to pay all Mid-Star 
impact fees “up front” at each Phase’s final plat rather than piecemeal at building 
permit. The goal is to accelerate the funding of the Mid-Star program.  Paragraph 3.5 
of the proposed Development Agreement provides that City has the option to request 
the fees be paid up front at each phase, but the City does not have to require the 
accelerated payments.  (City may not want an up-front payment if Mid-Star fees will 
increase at a subsequent point in time.)   
 
Finally, the portion of Meadow Park Street to be constructed by Developer will lead to 
the future Meadow Park School Site. As a condition of approval, Developer should be 
required to stripe a crosswalk across Cemetery Road to ensure safe pedestrian 
access for kids walking to school.    
                

               
 

H. Schools:  The Black Powder Subdivision is in the Middleton School District #134. 
Elementary school children will attend the Heights Elementary School. Superintendent 
Marc Gee reported recently that Heights Elementary is at 134% capacity. However, he 
also noted that the school district is working on some solutions, including year round 



             
        

6 
 

school, revisions of elementary school boundaries, use of portables, and requesting 
new bonds.  
 
The City has no jurisdiction or control over the School system.  Instead, the City can 
only support and collaborate with the School officials to try to address the over-
crowding problem experienced by the schools.  State law does not allow impact fees 
to fund new schools. In Idaho, new schools are generally built with bonds passed by 
the residents. In effect, the residents decide whether new schools will be built or not be 
built. Residents in Middleton and the surrounding County have not approved bonds for 
new schools for a number of years.   
 

I. Annexation and Rezone:  Applicants are requesting that the 40 acre project parcel be 
annexed into the City of Middleton with a zone change from County “Agricultural” to 
City R-3 (Single Family Residential). 
 
There are two findings that must be made before Annexation can be approved: (1) the 
property must be contiguous to City limits and (2) the annexation is deemed to be an 
“orderly development” of the City allowing “efficient and economical extension” of City 
services such as sewer, water, police/fire protection, schools and roadway system. 
(Idaho Code 50-222.)   
 
An application for rezone requires two findings before City Council can approve the 
applications: (1) the rezone will not adversely affect the City’s delivery of services and 
(2) the rezone request is not in conflict with the Comprehensive Plan. (Idaho Code 67-
6511) 
 
FINDINGS:   
 
With respect to annexation, Planning Staff finds that Applicant’s project meets the 
criteria of contiguity and requirement that city sewer and water be adjacent and readily 
available. Middleton Rural Fire Department has not submitted comments or otherwise 
noted a problem with the subdivision. Heights Elementary is at 134% capacity, but the 
school district is actively working on solutions to relieve the overcrowding.   
 
As to traffic, the Traffic Study for the project noted that all intersections operate at 
acceptable levels except Cemetery & Hwy 44 at peak hours. An interim traffic signal 
would rectify the deficiency, and Developer has agreed to pay an additional $150,000 
towards the construction of that signal.  
 
As to the rezone application, Planning Staff finds that the rezone will not adversely 
affect the City’s ability to deliver sewer and water. Traffic and schools are impacted, 
however, as noted above. 
 
Finally, as will be shown below, Applicant’s project both complies with and conflicts 
with the City’s Comprehensive Plan. 



             
        

7 
 

 
J. Preliminary Plat Application:   The preliminary plat shows two phases of 

development. It also complies with all the standards and dimensions set forth in City 
Code for the R-3 Zone. Applicant is not requesting any variances from Codes and 
Standards.  Finally, the preliminary plat provides less density than permitted in City 
Code. Black Powder’s density is 2.61 homes per gross acre, which is less than the 3 
homes per gross acre allowed by code. (MCC 5-4-1, Table 2).  
  

                
 
                [A full copy of the proposed preliminary plat is attached as Exhibit “B”.] 
                            
Findings: 
 
Planning Staff finds that the preliminary plat complies with all dimensional standards 
and requirements of the Middleton City Code, ISPWC, Supplement to ISPWC, and 
Idaho State Code.   
 

K. Development Agreement:  Applications for annexation/rezone are generally 
accompanied by an application for Development Agreement (“DA”). Attached as 
Exhibit “C” is the proposed Development Agreement.  The Developer has used the 
City’s DA form, and only Article III regarding conditions of development has been 
altered to add the following conditions: 
 



             
        

8 
 

1. Developer will develop the community generally consistent with the concept 
plans attached to the DA.  (Para. 3.3) 

2. Developer to stripe a crosswalk at the intersection of Cemetery Road and 
Meadow Park Street to provide safe access across Cemetery Road for 
pedestrians walking to the future Meadow Park School site to the east. (Para. 
3.2) 

3. Developer to provide the following amenities: playground structure, benches, 
and shade structure with at least two picnic tables.(Para. 3.7)  

4. Developer shall improve the half road sections of Cemetery Road and Meadow 
Park Street at its own cost. (Para. 3.1) 

5. Developer to make a voluntary payment of $150,000 to City in light of the fact 
that the intersection of Cemetery Road & Hwy 44 will operate at a Level of 
Service “D” which is below City’s minimum standard of LOS “C”. Although City 
has the right to use the monies on other transportation projects, the payment is 
justified by the “deficiency” at Cemetery Road & Hwy 44 and is intended to 
assist in the construction of an interim traffic signal at that intersection. (Para. 
3.4) 

6. Developers will have two years to obtain final plat approval for Phase 1. 
Developer may seek two 1-year extensions, thereby allowing a total of 4 years 
to bring Phase 1 to final plat approval.  After Phase 1 final plat, Developer will 
have two years to obtain final plat approval for Phase 2. This time period may 
also be extended with two 1-year extensions. Failure to meet these time-lines 
may result in the City terminating the DA and nullifying the preliminary plat.  
(Para. 3.6) 

7. Developer to construct interior local roads in conformance with the road section 
shown on the preliminary plat. City local section contains 5’ wide attached 
sidewalk. Developer will construct roadway with a 5’ wide detached sidewalk 
with 7’ mow strip in between curb and sidewalk.  Developer, HOA, or individual 
lot owners to maintain mow strip even though it will be located in the City’s right 
of way.  (Para. 3.8) 
 
[A full copy of the proposed Development Agreement is attached to this Staff 
Report as Exhibit “C”.] 
 

 
L. Comprehensive Plan & Land Use Map:  Applicant’s project complies with the 

Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map because the proposed R-3 zone 
correlates with the “Residential Use” shown on the Future Land Use Map. 
 



             
        

9 
 

                                                
 

 
Applicant’s project also complies with the following Goals, Objectives, and Strategies 
of the 2019 Middleton Comprehensive Plan: 
 

a. Goal 4: The project will establish a good quality of life with development that 
pays through impact fees and property taxes for the public services it receives. 
Quality lots for residential use also increase the quality of life and general 
welfare of the City as a whole.   

b. Goal 6: Water, sewer, and adjacent road systems have been expanded in an 
orderly manner consistent with population growth.  

c. Goal 10: Project provides playgrounds, pathways and outdoor recreational 
activities. 

d. Goal 11: The housing type matches the residents’ lifestyle in the area the 
project is located.  
 

Applicant’s project, however, is in conflict with Goals #1 and 3 to provide safe roads 
and adequate delivery of services, including adequate schools.  However, contributing 
additional monies for the improvements to Cemetery Road & Hwy 44 mitigate this 
conflict to some degree.   
 

M. Comments Received from Surrounding Landowners:  City has received comments 
from the public. See comments attached as Exhibit “D”. 
 

N. Comments from Agencies:  City received comments from COMPASS, ITD and 
Middleton School District #134. (Copies of Agency comments are attached as Exhibit 
“E”.) 
 

O. Comments from City Engineer and Planning Staff:   Copies of engineering and 
planning staff comments are attached as Exhibit “F”. 
 

Residential Use-
 



             
        

10 
 

P. Application Information:  Applicants are Adam Capell/Toll Brothers and Nicolette 
Womack/Kimley-Horn Engineering (3103 W. Sheryl Dr. #100, Meridian 83642 / 950 W. 
Bannock Street, #1100, Boise, 83702).  Application was accepted on 1/25/2022. 
 
 

Q. Notices & Neighborhood Meeting:    Dates: 
      

Newspaper Notification     11/1/2022 
 

 Radius notice to adjacent landowners   11/1/2022 
  
 Circulation to Agencies     10/31/2022  
 
 Sign Posting property     10/31/2022   

 
Neighborhood Meeting     1/10/2022 
 

 
R. Applicable Codes and Standards: 

  
Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, the Middleton Supplement to the Idaho 
Standards for Public Works Construction, Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-16, 5-1, 5-2, 5-
3, and 5-4, and Idaho Code Title 67, Chapter 65 & Title 50, Chapters 2 and 13.                       
. 

S. P&Z Recommendation: 
 
The Black Powder applications were considered by the P&Z Commission in a public 
hearing held on September 12, 2022.  The Commission recommended denial of all three 
applications based upon the fact that the governing bodies will not have sufficient 
information to make a decision on denial or approval until after the City’s traffic study of 
Hwy 44 is completed in early 2023.  A copy of the Findings of Facts, Conclusions of Law 
& Recommendation is attached as Exhibit “G”. 
 

T. Conclusions and Recommended Conditions of Approval: 
 
City Council is tasked with denying or approving Developer’s applications for 
annexation/rezone, development agreement, and preliminary plat, with or without 
conditions of approval. 
 
Per State law and the Middleton City Code, any decision and final order must be 
based upon findings of facts and conclusions of law.   
 
As to Findings of Facts, Planning Staff has set forth findings of facts above in 
parentheses.   
 



             
        

11 
 

As to Conclusions of Law, Planning Staff finds that the City Council has the authority 
to hear these applications and to approve or deny the applications, with or without 
conditions.  Additionally, Planning Staff notes that all public notice requirements were 
met. Planning Staff further set forth the portions of the Idaho State Code and Middleton 
City Code to be considered in making a decision and order on the applications.       
 
Annexation/Rezone, Preliminary Plat, and Development Agreement Applications: 
If the Council is inclined to recommend approval of the annexation/rezone, preliminary 
plat, and development agreement applications, then Planning Staff recommends that 
any approval be subject to the following conditions:  
 

1. Developer to stripe a crosswalk at the intersection of Meadow Park Street and 
Cemetery Road to ensure a safe route for children to walk east to the future 
Meadow Park School site.  

2. City municipal domestic water, fire flow and sanitary sewer services are to be 
extended to serve the subdivision. 

3. Developer to comply with all terms of the Development Agreement approved for 
the project. 

4. Developer to install landscaping and all amenities in compliance with the 
Landscape Plan and preliminary plat submitted with the application. 

5. Developer shall create a plan for operation, maintenance and repair of 
stormwater facilities (O&M Plan) contained on the project site. The O&M Plan 
shall be recorded with the CC&Rs. Developer and/or HOA must maintain and 
operate the subdivision stormwater facilities in compliance with the O&M Plan. 

6. Developer to construct, at its own cost, all frontage improvements on Cemetery 
Road and Meadow Park Street adjacent to the project parcel. 

7. Owner/Developer to pay all City required pro-rata share traffic fees as required 
by MCC 5-4-3 prior to approval of final plat for Phase 1. 

8. All City Engineer review comments are to be completed and approved. 
9. All Planner comments are to be completed and approved. 
10. All requirements of the Middleton Rural Fire District are to be completed and 

approved. 
11. Sewer and water capacity to be reserved at the time City approves the 

construction drawings for the project. 

Finally, if the Council denies the applications, then the Council should state what the 
applicant could do, if anything, to obtain approval. (Middleton City Code 1-14(E)(8)). 

 

Prepared by Roberta Stewart         Dated: 12/2/2022 
Planning & Zoning Director 

 

 



             
        

12 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 

 

Pages 8 & 27, Black Powder Traffic Study 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Black Powder Subdivision TIS January 2022 
Executive Summary 

  8 Kittelson & Associates, Inc. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Kittelson & Associates, Inc. (Kittelson) has prepared a Transportation Impact Study (TIS) for the Black 

Powder Subdivision in Middleton, Idaho. The Black Powder Subdivision project is located to the west of 

Cemetery Road between Willis Road and Purple Sage Road within the City of Middleton area of influence. 

The proposed site is currently vacant farmland and consists of approximately 37.3 acres. The 

development plan proposes to build approximately 108 single-family homes. The anticipated buildout 

year is 2023. 

The TIS resulted in the following findings and recommendations. 

FINDINGS 

Existing Conditions 

• All study intersections were found to operate at acceptable operating standards during the 

existing weekday AM and PM. 

Year 2023 Background Traffic Conditions 

• Year 2023 background traffic volumes were forecast using a 4% compounded annual growth rate 

on Cemetery Road and an 8% compounded annual growth rate on all other roadways. 

• All study intersections were found to operate at acceptable operating standards during the 2023 

background weekday AM and PM except for: 

o SH 44 / Cemetery Road 

▪ The southbound left-turn is projected to operate at LOS D during the AM and PM 

peak hours, but under capacity. 

• Mitigations required for intersections to meet operational standards under 2023 background 

traffic conditions are required for: 

o SH 44 / Cemetery Road (AM & PM peak hours) 

▪ No mitigation is recommended since all movements are under capacity and meet 

ITD operational standards. However, the LOS can be mitigated to within the City 

of Middleton standards of LOS C through signalizing the intersection. 

 

 



Black Powder Subdivision TIS January 2022 
Transportation Impact Analysis 

  27 Kittelson & Associates, Inc. 

Table 4. Year 2023 Background Intersection Operations - Weekday AM and PM Peak Hour 

No. Intersection 
Intersection 

Control 

Intersection AM/PM Lane 
Group 

AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour 

V/C LOS Delay V/C LOS Delay V/C LOS Delay 

1 Purple Sage Rd / Duff Ln TWSC - - - 

EBLTR 0.01 A 7.5 0.02 A 7.4 

WBLTR 0.02 A 7.6 0.01 A 7.7 

NBLTR 0.11 B 11.6 0.20 B 12.3 

SBLTR 0.08 B 10.8 0.07 B 11.7 

2 SH 44 / Cemetery Rd TWSC - - - 

EBL 0.06 A 9.6 0.12 B 10.5 

SBL 0.40 D 26.1 0.35 D 28.5 

SBR 0.39 C 18.1 0.18 C 16.6 

V/C ratio is defined as vehicle-to-capacity ratio, which calculates the number of vehicles divided by the capacity of the roadway/intersection during 
the peak 15 minutes of the peak hour. LOS stand for Level of Service. Delay is reported in seconds per vehicle. Cells in the table above that are bolded, 
italicized, and highlighted indicate an intersection and/or lane group operating below the jurisdictional standards. 

As shown in Table 4, all study intersections are projected to operate at acceptable operating standards 

during the year 2023 background weekday AM and PM peak hours, except for: 

▪ SH 44 / Cemetery Road (AM & PM peak hour): The southbound left-turn lane group is projected 

to operate at LOS D in both the AM and PM peak hours. 

  



             
        

14 
 

EXHIBIT “B” 

 

Proposed Preliminary Plat 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



APN:
R3820701000

ZONE: R3

ESTATES 81
LLC

APN:
R3757700000

ZONE: R3

MEADOW
PARK
HOME

OWNERS
ASSC. INC

APN:
R3757710000

ZONE: R3

DAN G. WALRATH
APN: R3820800000

ZONE: AG - CANYON COUNTY

APN: R3821001100
ZONE: R3

TOLL SOUTHWEST LLC
FUTURE WEST HIGHLANDS RANCH

PHASE 17

TOLL
SOUTHWEST

LLC

FUTURE
WEST

HIGHLANDS
RANCH
PHASE

20

TOLL
SOUTHWEST

LLC

FUTURE
WEST

HIGHLANDS
RANCH
PHASE

19

MEADOW PARK ST

C
EM

ET
ER

Y 
R

O
A

D

BLOCK 3

BLOCK 8

BLOCK 1 BLOCK 2

BLOCK 5

5
0.50 AC

21802 SF3
0.22 AC
9750 SF

9
0.24 AC

10396 SF

2
0.22 AC
9758 SF

3
0.22 AC
9758 SF

4
0.22 AC
9751 SF

5
0.22 AC
9748 SF

6
0.22 AC
9748 SF

7
0.22 AC
9749 SF

1
0.46 AC

19998 SF 8
0.22 AC
9749 SF

2
0.22 AC
9532 SF

3
0.21 AC
8987 SF

4
0.21 AC
8991 SF

5
0.21 AC
8994 SF

6
0.21 AC
8998 SF

7
0.21 AC
9002 SF

8
0.06 AC
2401 SF

9
0.21 AC
9006 SF

10
0.21 AC
9010 SF

11
0.21 AC
9014 SF

12
0.21 AC
9017 SF

13
0.27 AC

11931 SF

14
0.47 AC

20573 SF

1
0.24 AC

10487 SF
8

0.24 AC
10428 SF

7
0.21 AC
9000 SF

6
0.21 AC
9000 SF

9
0.24 AC

10428 SF

5
0.21 AC
9000 SF

3
0.21 AC
9000 SF

2
0.21 AC
9000 SF

26
0.27 AC

11595 SF

2
0.25 AC

10772 SF

4
0.23 AC
9875 SF

9
0.23 AC
9875 SF

12
0.23 AC
9875 SF

13
0.23 AC
9875 SF

14
0.25 AC

10761 SF

5
0.26 AC

11186 SF

3
0.29 AC

12430 SF
2

0.22 AC
9550 SF

4
0.21 AC
9000 SF

6
0.21 AC
9000 SF

7
1.19 AC

52042 SF

8
0.21 AC
9000 SF

10
0.22 AC
9566 SF

9
0.32 AC

14135 SF

3
0.23 AC
9875 SF

16
0.26 AC

11523 SF

17
0.23 AC
9875 SF

20
0.23 AC
9875 SF

24
0.23 AC
9875 SF

18
0.23 AC
9875 SF

11
0.12 AC
5270 SF

25
0.23 AC
9875 SF

9
0.24 AC

10428 SF

10
0.21 AC
9000 SF

11
0.21 AC
9000 SF

12
0.21 AC
9000 SF

1
0.24 AC

10487 SF

4
0.58 AC
25240 SF

2
0.21 AC
9000 SF

14
0.21 AC
9000 SF

13
0.21 AC
9000 SF

15
0.24 AC

10487 SF

3
0.21 AC
9000 SF 5

0.21 AC
9000 SF

6
0.21 AC
9000 SF

7
0.21 AC
9000 SF

8
0.24 AC

10428 SF

BLOCK 6

BLOCK 7

15
0.24 AC

10487 SF

14
0.21 AC
9000 SF

13
0.21 AC
9000 SF

12
0.21 AC
9000 SF

11
0.21 AC
9000 SF

10
0.21 AC
9000 SF

BLOCK 4

6
0.38 AC

16619 SF

7
0.28 AC

12204 SF

4
0.30 AC

13006 SF

8
0.22 AC
9672 SF

10
0.32 AC

14005 SF

11
0.23 AC
9918 SF

12
0.22 AC
9749 SF

13
0.22 AC
9749 SF

14
0.22 AC
9750 SF

15
0.22 AC
9750 SF

16
0.22 AC
9750 SF17

0.24 AC
10351 SF

8
0.32 AC

13785 SF

6
0.21 AC
9026 SF

7
0.20 AC
8881 SF

3
0.21 AC
9045 SF

5
0.21 AC
9033 SF

4
0.21 AC
9039 SF

2
0.21 AC
9052 SF

9
0.21 AC
9000 SF

12
0.22 AC
9566 SF

11
0.24 AC

10284 SF

1
0.02 AC
1047 SF

10
0.03 AC
1150 SF

5
0.12 AC
5267 SF

23
0.23 AC
9875 SF

22
0.23 AC
9875 SF

21
0.23 AC
9875 SF

19
0.23 AC
9875 SF

6
0.23 AC
9875 SF

7
0.23 AC
9875 SF

8
0.23 AC
9875 SF

10
0.23 AC
9875 SF

1
0.04 AC
1835 SF

4
0.58 AC
25240 SF

1
0.05 AC
2279 SF

15
0.05 AC
2002 SF

18
0.21 AC
9160 SF

17
0.27 AC

11774 SF

16
0.30 AC

13079 SF

15
0.42 AC

18137 SF
1
0.80 AC
34632 SF

2
0.24 AC

10490 SF

1
0.03 AC
1150 SF

FRIAR PLUM ST

B
U

C
K

B
R

U
SH

 A
VE

TA
R

EN
TA

IS
E 

A
VE

HIDDEN ESTATES ST

HIDDEN
ESTATES ST

PHASE 2

PHASE 1

BAY ST

³

³

SILVER LUPINE ST

TRILLIUM ST

C
H

O
K

EC
H

ER
R

Y 
 A

VE

R
O

SE
 H

IP
A

VE

NORTH

PRELIMINARY PLAT DATA

LEGEND

SHEET INDEX
Sheet Number Sheet Title

PRELIMINARY PLAT NOTES

VICINITY MAP

BLACK POWDER
PRELIMINARY PLAT
A PORTION OF THE SE 14 OF SECTION 36,

TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 3 WEST
 CANYON COUNTY, IDAHO

CIVIL ENGINEER/
LAND PLANNER LAND SURVEYOROWNER/DEVELOPER

BENCHMARK & BOUNDARY CERTIFICATION

MULTICORELINK:5005-PP-PRELIMINARY PLAT DETAILS - 02
MULTICORELINK:5005-PP-PRELIMINARY PLAT DETAILS - 02
MULTICORELINK:5005-PP-PRELIMINARY PLAT DETAILS - 02
MULTICORELINK:5005-PP-PRELIMINARY PLAT DETAILS - 02
MULTICORELINK:5005-PP-PRELIMINARY PLAT DETAILS - 02
MULTICORELINK:5005-PP-PRELIMINARY PLAT DETAILS - 02
MULTICORELINK:5005-PP-PRELIMINARY PLAT DETAILS - 02
MULTICORELINK:5005-PP-PRELIMINARY PLAT DETAILS - 02
MULTICORELINK:5005-PP-PRELIMINARY PLAT DETAILS - 02
MULTICORELINK:5005-PP-PRELIMINARY PLAT DETAILS - 02
MULTICORELINK:5005-PP-PRELIMINARY PLAT DETAILS - 02
MULTICORELINK:5005-PP-PRELIMINARY PLAT DETAILS - 02
MULTICORELINK:5005-PP-PRELIMINARY PLAT DETAILS - 02
MULTICORELINK:5005-PP-PRELIMINARY PLAT DETAILS - 02
MULTICORELINK:5005-PP-PRELIMINARY PLAT DETAILS - 02
MULTICORELINK:5005-PP-PRELIMINARY PLAT DETAILS - 02
MULTICORELINK:5005-PP-PRELIMINARY PLAT DETAILS - 02
MULTICORELINK:5005-PP-PRELIMINARY PLAT DETAILS - 02
MULTICORELINK:5005-PP-PRELIMINARY PLAT DETAILS - 02
MULTICORELINK:5005-PP-PRELIMINARY PLAT DETAILS - 02
MULTICORELINK:5005-PP-PRELIMINARY PLAT DETAILS - 02
MULTICORELINK:5005-PP-PRELIMINARY PLAT DETAILS - 02
MULTICORELINK:5005-PP-PRELIMINARY PLAT DETAILS - 02
MULTICORELINK:5005-PP-PRELIMINARY PLAT DETAILS - 02
MULTICORELINK:5005-PP-PRELIMINARY PLAT DETAILS - 02
MULTICORELINK:5005-PP-PRELIMINARY PLAT DETAILS - 02
MULTICORELINK:5005-PP-PRELIMINARY PLAT DETAILS - 02
MULTICORELINK:5005-PP-PRELIMINARY PLAT DETAILS - 02
MULTICORELINK:5005-PP-PRELIMINARY PLAT DETAILS - 02
MULTICORELINK:5005-PP-PRELIMINARY PLAT DETAILS - 02
MULTICORELINK:5005-PP-PRELIMINARY PLAT DETAILS - 02
MULTICORELINK:5005-PP-PRELIMINARY PLAT DETAILS - 02
MULTICORELINK:5005-PP-PRELIMINARY PLAT DETAILS - 02
MULTICORELINK:5005-PP-PRELIMINARY PLAT DETAILS - 02
MULTICORELINK:5005-PP-PRELIMINARY PLAT DETAILS - 02
MULTICORELINK:5005-PP-PRELIMINARY PLAT DETAILS - 02
MULTICORELINK:5005-PP-PRELIMINARY PLAT DETAILS - 02
MULTICORELINK:5005-PP-PRELIMINARY PLAT DETAILS - 02


LOT AREA TABLE

LOT NUMBER

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

BLOCK NUMBER

BLOCK 5

BLOCK 5

BLOCK 5

BLOCK 5

BLOCK 5

BLOCK 5

BLOCK 5

BLOCK 5

BLOCK 5

BLOCK 5

BLOCK 5

BLOCK 5

LOT AREA (SF)

1,835

9,550

12,430

9,000

11,186

9,000

52,042

9,000

9,000

9,566

10,284

9,566

LOT AREA (AC

0.04

0.22

0.29

0.21

0.26

0.21

1.19

0.21

0.21

0.22

0.24

0.22

LOT AREA TABLE

LOT NUMBER

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

BLOCK NUMBER

BLOCK 1

BLOCK 1

BLOCK 1

BLOCK 1

BLOCK 1

BLOCK 1

BLOCK 1

BLOCK 1

BLOCK 1

BLOCK 1

LOT AREA (SF)

19,998

9,758

9,758

9,751

9,748

9,748

9,749

9,749

10,396

1,150

LOT AREA (AC

0.46

0.22

0.22

0.22

0.22

0.22

0.22

0.22

0.24

0.03

LOT AREA TABLE

LOT NUMBER

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

BLOCK NUMBER

BLOCK 3

BLOCK 3

BLOCK 3

BLOCK 3

BLOCK 3

BLOCK 3

BLOCK 3

BLOCK 3

BLOCK 3

BLOCK 3

BLOCK 3

BLOCK 3

BLOCK 3

BLOCK 3

BLOCK 3

BLOCK 3

BLOCK 3

BLOCK 3

LOT AREA (SF)

1,047

9,532

8,987

8,991

8,994

8,998

9,002

2,401

9,006

9,010

9,014

9,017

11,931

20,573

18,137

13,079

11,774

9,160

LOT AREA (AC

0.02

0.22

0.21

0.21

0.21

0.21

0.21

0.06

0.21

0.21

0.21

0.21

0.27

0.47

0.42

0.30

0.27

0.21

LOT AREA TABLE

LOT NUMBER

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

BLOCK NUMBER

BLOCK 4

BLOCK 4

BLOCK 4

BLOCK 4

BLOCK 4

BLOCK 4

BLOCK 4

BLOCK 4

BLOCK 4

BLOCK 4

BLOCK 4

BLOCK 4

BLOCK 4

BLOCK 4

BLOCK 4

LOT AREA (SF)

10,487

9,000

9,000

25,240

9,000

9,000

9,000

10,428

10,428

9,000

9,000

9,000

9,000

9,000

10,487

LOT AREA (AC

0.24

0.21

0.21

0.58

0.21

0.21

0.21

0.24

0.24

0.21

0.21

0.21

0.21

0.21

0.24

LOT AREA TABLE

LOT NUMBER

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

BLOCK NUMBER

BLOCK 6

BLOCK 6

BLOCK 6

BLOCK 6

BLOCK 6

BLOCK 6

BLOCK 6

BLOCK 6

BLOCK 6

BLOCK 6

BLOCK 6

BLOCK 6

BLOCK 6

BLOCK 6

BLOCK 6

LOT AREA (SF)

10,487

9,000

9,000

25,240

9,000

9,000

9,000

10,428

10,428

9,000

9,000

9,000

9,000

9,000

10,487

LOT AREA (AC

0.24

0.21

0.21

0.58

0.21

0.21

0.21

0.24

0.24

0.21

0.21

0.21

0.21

0.21

0.24

LOT AREA TABLE

LOT NUMBER

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

BLOCK NUMBER

BLOCK 7

BLOCK 7

BLOCK 7

BLOCK 7

BLOCK 7

BLOCK 7

BLOCK 7

BLOCK 7

BLOCK 7

BLOCK 7

BLOCK 7

BLOCK 7

BLOCK 7

BLOCK 7

BLOCK 7

BLOCK 7

BLOCK 7

BLOCK 7

BLOCK 7

BLOCK 7

BLOCK 7

BLOCK 7

BLOCK 7

BLOCK 7

BLOCK 7

BLOCK 7

LOT AREA (SF)

2,279

10,772

9,875

9,875

5,267

9,875

9,875

9,875

9,875

9,875

5,270

9,875

9,875

10,761

2,002

11,523

9,875

9,875

9,875

9,875

9,875

9,875

9,875

9,875

9,875

11,595

LOT AREA (AC

0.05

0.25

0.23

0.23

0.12

0.23

0.23

0.23

0.23

0.23

0.12

0.23

0.23

0.25

0.05

0.26

0.23

0.23

0.23

0.23

0.23

0.23

0.23

0.23

0.23

0.27

LOT AREA TABLE

LOT NUMBER

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

BLOCK NUMBER

BLOCK 8

BLOCK 8

BLOCK 8

BLOCK 8

BLOCK 8

BLOCK 8

BLOCK 8

BLOCK 8

BLOCK 8

BLOCK 8

BLOCK 8

BLOCK 8

BLOCK 8

BLOCK 8

BLOCK 8

BLOCK 8

BLOCK 8

LOT AREA (SF)

34,632

9,052

9,045

9,039

9,033

9,026

8,881

13,785

14,135

14,005

9,918

9,749

9,749

9,750

9,750

9,750

10,351

LOT AREA (AC

0.80

0.21

0.21

0.21

0.21

0.21

0.20

0.32

0.32

0.32

0.23

0.22

0.22

0.22

0.22

0.22

0.24

LOT AREA TABLE

LOT NUMBER

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

BLOCK NUMBER

BLOCK 2

BLOCK 2

BLOCK 2

BLOCK 2

BLOCK 2

BLOCK 2

BLOCK 2

BLOCK 2

BLOCK 2

LOT AREA (SF)

1,150

10,490

9,750

13,006

21,802

16,619

12,204

9,672

10,442

LOT AREA (AC

0.03

0.24

0.22

0.30

0.50

0.38

0.28

0.22

0.24



             
        

15 
 

EXHIBIT “C” 

 

Proposed Development Agreement 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
Development Agreement – Black Powder Subdivision 
Page 1 

After Recording, mail to 
Middleton City Administrator 
1103 W. Main St. 
Middleton, ID 83644 
 
 
              

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

This Development Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into by and between the 
CITY OF MIDDLETON, a municipal corporation in the State of Idaho (“City”); and Toll 
Southwest LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, (“Developer”). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, Developer owns approximately forty (40) acres of real property located 
at 0 Cemetery Road (Tax Parcel No. R382070), Middleton, Canyon County, Idaho, legally 
described in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference 
(“Property”); and 

WHEREAS, Developer intends to improve the Property with a multi-phase single-
family residential development commonly known as the Black Powder Subdivision 
(“Project”), according to the Middleton City Code and the City’s public works standards at 
the time(s) the Property is improved; and 

WHEREAS, the City, pursuant to Idaho Code § 67-6511A, has the authority to annex 
and rezone the Property and to enter into a development agreement for the purpose of 
allowing, by agreement, a specific development to proceed in a specific area and for a specific 
purpose or use which is appropriate in the area, but for which all allowed uses for the 
requested zoning may not be appropriate pursuant to the Idaho Code and Middleton City 
Code. 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency 
of which is hereby acknowledged, and in consideration of the recitals above, which are 
incorporated below, and the mutual covenants, representations, and performances herein 
bargained for, relied on, and expected, the parties agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I 
LEGAL AUTHORITY 

This Agreement is made pursuant to and in accordance with the provisions of Idaho 
Code § 67-6511A and Middleton City Code, Title 5, Chapter 2. 



 
Development Agreement – Black Powder Subdivision 
Page 2 

ARTICLE II 
ANNEXATION AND ZONING ORDINANCE 

The City will adopt an ordinance to annex and rezone the Property from Canyon 
County Agricultural to City of Middleton R-3 (Single Family Residential). The Ordinance will 
become effective after it is approved, signed, published and recorded according to law, all of 
which actions the City will perform at the City’s expense and with the Developer’s 
cooperation. 

ARTICLE III 
CONDITIONS OF DEVELOPMENT 

3.1 Frontage Improvements. Developer shall, at its own cost, improve the fifty 
foot (50’) half-road section of the west half of Cemetery Road, a collector roadway, abutting 
the Property and dedicate the full fifty foot (50’) right of way from centerline and improve 
the fifty foot (50’) half-road section of the south half of Meadow Park Street, a collector 
roadway, and dedicate the full fifty foot (50’) right of way from centerline all per City 
standards and codes. 

3.2 Cross-Walk. Developer to stripe a crosswalk at the intersection of Cemetery 
Road and Meadow Park Street to provide safe access across Cemetery Road to the future 
Meadow Park School to the east of the Property. 

3.3 Concept Plan: The conceptual site plan for the Project is attached hereto and 
incorporated herein as Exhibit B (“Concept Plan”). The Property shall be developed 
substantially consistent with the Concept Plan. 

3.4 Voluntary Roadway Payment: Developer agrees to voluntarily pay to the 
City $150,000.00 (the “Voluntary Payment”) as a condition precedent to recording the first 
final plat for the Project. The Voluntary Payment may be used by the City for any 
transportation infrastructure project within the City at the City’s sole discretion, but the 
expectation of the parties is that the Voluntary Payment will be used at the State Highway 44 
and Cemetery Road intersection. Payment of the Voluntary Fee is in addition to fees that will 
be assessed against the Project under City Ordinance Number 591 (transportation impact 
fee), as may be amended. 

3.5 Prepayment of Transportation Impact Fees. City may elect to have 
Developer prepay, as a condition to record a final plat within the Project, the City’s then-
current Idaho Development Impact Fee Act (I.C. § 67-8201-16) compliant transportation 
impact fee for the number of residential units in such final plat. If City does not make such 
election, Developer shall pay transportation impact fees at the time required by the City’s 
then-current Idaho Development Impact Fee Act (I.C. § 67-8201-16) compliant 
transportation impact fee ordinance.  

3.6 Final Plat Requirements: Notwithstanding the provisions in Article IV of this 
Agreement, Developer shall obtain City Engineer’s signature on the Phase 1 final plat within 
two (2) years of the preliminary plat approval for the Project. Said signature shall be 



 
Development Agreement – Black Powder Subdivision 
Page 3 

processed expeditiously by City and in no event later than six (6) months from the time the 
Developer submits a “Completion Packet” with all items required by the Supplement to the 
ISPWC and final plat application. The six (6) month period will not be triggered if any 
information required by the Supplement is missing. 

3.6.1 Developer may obtain a one (1) year extension to obtain the City 
Engineer’s signature on Phase 1 final plat by submitting an administrative 
written request for extension to the Middleton Planning & Zoning Official 
before the expiration of the initial two-year period, which approval shall not 
be withheld if Developer submits its request in a timely manner. Thereafter, 
City Council may approve an additional time extension of one (1) year if 
developer submits a written request for extension prior to the expiration of 
the previous extension period. Neither approval shall require a public hearing 
before City Council. 

3.6.2 If Developer does not obtain City Engineer’s signature on the final plat 
for Phase 1 within the time frame noted above, City may, at its sole discretion, 
terminate this Agreement after complying with the Middleton City Code 
provisions for legal notice and public hearing. The zoning for the Property 
shall remain R-3. Additionally, the preliminary plat will automatically become 
null and void. City may seek termination of the Agreement at any time after 
the noted time periods expire, and City’s delay in terminating this Agreement 
shall not constitute a waiver of its right to terminate. 

3.6.3 After final plat approval for the first phase of the Project, Developer 
shall obtain City Engineer’s signature on the final plat for each subsequent 
phase in two (2) year intervals (subject to the requirement by the City to 
process such applications expeditiously and in no event later than six months 
from the time Developer submits a fully completed “Completion Packet” 
application and final plat application). Developer may obtain two (2) 
additional one-year extensions using the procedure as outlined above in 
paragraph  3.5.1. If Developer fails to comply with said timelines, the portions 
of the preliminary plat yet to be final platted will become null and void. The 
zoning for the unplatted area shall remain R-3 (single family residential) 
zoning. 

3.7 Amenities: Developer shall provide the following amenities for the Project: 
Playground structures, benches, and shade structure with at least two (2) picnic tables. 

3.8 Project Local Street Design: City’s Local Roadway Typical Section per the 
City’s Supplement to ISPWC generally requires a fifty foot (50’) right of way that contains 
five foot (5’) attached sidewalks. Developer, however, shall construct local roadways within 
the Project and dedicate right-of-way pursuant to the street section shown in the approved 
preliminary plat, and as depicted on Exhibit C, attached hereto and incorporated herein, 
which street section contains a detached five foot (5’) sidewalk with seven foot (7’) shoulder 
or mow strip. Developer, or is assigns shall be responsible for maintaining and repairing the 



 
Development Agreement – Black Powder Subdivision 
Page 4 

seven foot (7’) mow strip. The City shall not be responsible for the installation, repair, or 
maintenance of said mow strip, but City shall cooperate with Developer in all respects to 
permit access to and allow work for maintenance and repair within the mow strip. 

ARTICLE IV 
FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH AGREEMENT 

4.1 Subject to the notice and opportunity to cure provisions herein, if the 
Developer fails to comply with any of the terms or conditions in this Agreement, then the 
portion(s) of this Agreement pertaining to the breach may be modified or terminated by the 
Middleton City Council, after complying with the notice and hearing requirement contained 
in Middleton City Code and Idaho Code. 

4.1.1 If after a breach, the City Council determines that the terms of this 
Agreement applicable to the breach should be modified, the term(s) of this 
Agreement shall be amended and the Developer shall comply with the 
amended terms. 

4.1.2 Any breach waived by the City shall apply solely to the breach waived 
and shall not bar any other rights or remedies of the City or apply to any 
subsequent breach of any such or other covenants and conditions. 

4.2 If after a breach, the zoning shall remain R-3 and Developer hereby consents 
to such zoning. 

4.3 Upon a breach of this Agreement, any of the parties in any court of competent 
jurisdiction, by action or proceeding at law or in equity, may secure the specific performance 
of the covenants and agreements herein contained, may be awarded damages for failure of 
performance of both, or may obtain rescission, disconnection, and damages for repudiation 
or material failure of performance. 

4.4 NOTICE OF FAILED PERFORMANCE. Upon any failure of any party to this 
Agreement to perform its obligations under this Agreement, the party claiming such failure 
shall notify, in writing, the party alleged to have failed to perform of the alleged failure and 
shall demand performance. No breach of this Agreement may be found to have occurred if 
performance has commenced to the satisfaction of the complaining party with thirty (30) 
days of the receipt of such notice. 

ARTICLE V 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

5.1 This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties respecting the 
Property and supersedes all prior discussions and written and verbal agreements between 
the parties respecting the Property. 



 
Development Agreement – Black Powder Subdivision 
Page 5 

5.2 Any amendment or addendum to this Agreement shall be in writing and made 
only after the City has complied with the notice and hearing provisions of Idaho Code § 67-
6509 and Middleton City Code Title 5, Chapter 2. 

5.3 Any notice that a party may desire or is required to give to another party must 
be in writing and shall be given by one of the following: personal delivery, by mailing the 
same registered or certified mail with a return receipt requested. Notice shall be deemed 
given upon delivery if by personal delivery, upon re in the United States mail if sent by mail. 
Notice shall be given to the parties at the following addresses or such other address and to 
such other persons as the parties may designate in writing after giving notice: 

Middleton: City Clerk 
City of Middleton 
P.O. Box 487 
Middleton, Idaho 83644 

Developer: Toll Southwest LLC 
3103 West Sheryl Drive, Suite 100 
Meridian, ID 83642 
Attn: Adam Capell 

With Copy to: Toll Brothers 
725 W. Town and Country Road 
Orange, California 92868 
Attn: Legal Department 

5.4 If either party shall fail to perform under this Agreement and said failure is 
cured with the assistance of an attorney for the other party, as a part of curing said failure, 
the reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred by the other party shall be reimbursed to the other 
party upon demand. In the event a suit or action is filed by either party against the other to 
interpret or enforce this Agreement, the nonprevailing party to such litigation agrees to pay 
to the prevailing party all costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred 
therein, including the same with respect to an appeal. 

5.5 This Agreement shall be effective after being fully executed and recorded in 
the real property records of Canyon County. This Agreement shall be executed only upon its 
approval by the City Council. After its execution, the Agreement shall be recorded in the office 
of the County Recorded at the expense of the City. 

5.6 Each commitment and restriction described in this Agreement shall be a 
burden on the Property and run with the land and shall be appurtenant to and for the benefit 
of the Property. 

5.6.1 This Agreement shall be binding on the City and Developer, and their 
respective heirs, administrators, executors, agents, legal representatives, 
successors and assigns. Provided, however, that if all or any portion of the 
Property is divided, then each owner of a legal lot shall only be responsible for 



 
Development Agreement – Black Powder Subdivision 
Page 6 

duties and obligations or breaches as to their respective portion of the 
Property. 

5.6.2 The new owner of the Property or any portion thereof (including, 
without limitation, any owner who acquires its interest by foreclosure, 
trustee’s sale or otherwise) shall be liable for all commitments and other 
obligations arising under this Agreement with respect only to such owner’s 
portion of the Property. 

5.7 The Property that is the subject of this Agreement is located in Canyon County, 
Idaho and the terms of this Agreement shall be construed according to the laws of the State 
of Idaho in effect at this time this Agreement is executed. Any action brought in connection 
with this Agreement shall be brought in a court of competent jurisdiction located in Canyon 
County, Idaho. 

5.8 If any term, provision, commitment or restriction of this Agreement or the 
application thereof to any party or circumstance shall to any extent be held invalid or 
unenforceable, the remainder of this instrument shall remain in full force and effect. 

5.9 Time is of the essence for performance of each obligation in this Agreement. 

[Signatures on following pages] 

  



 
Development Agreement – Black Powder Subdivision 
Page 7 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto caused this Agreement to be executed, on 
the day and year first above written. 

Dated this _____ day of ___________________, 2022 and effective upon annexation and 
rezoning of the Property. 

CITY OF MIDDLETON     ATTEST 

By:         By:      
       Steven J. Rule, Mayor            Becky Crofts, City Clerk 

State of IDAHO ) 
   ss. 
County of Canyon ) 

I, a notary public, do hereby certify that on this ______ day of _______________, 2022, personally 
appeared before me Steven J. Rule, who declared that he is the Mayor of the City of Middleton, 
Idaho and signed this Development Agreement as Mayor of the City of Middleton. 

       
Notary Public 
My Commission Expires:    

 

  



 
Development Agreement – Black Powder Subdivision 
Page 8 

State of Idaho  ) 
   ss. 
County of   ) 

 

DEVELOPER 

By:      
Its:      

 

 

  

I, a notary public, do hereby certify that on this ______ day of _______________, 2022, personally 
appeared before me ____________________________________________________________ who declared that 
he/she signed this Development Agreement in the capacity of _________________________________ 
for Toll Southwest, LLC. 

       
Notary Public 
My Commission Expires:    

 

 



 
Development Agreement – Black Powder 
Page 9 

EXHIBIT “A” 

Legal Description of Property 

[see following two (2) pages] 

  



 
Development Agreement – Black Powder 
Page 10 

 

  



 
Development Agreement – Black Powder 
Page 11 

 

  



 
Development Agreement – Black Powder 
Page 12 

EXHIBIT “B” 

Concept Plan 

[see following one (1) page] 

 

  



 
Development Agreement – Black Powder 
Page 13 

 
  



 
Development Agreement – Black Powder 
Page 14 

 
EXHIBIT “C” 

Project Local Street Design 

[see following one (1) page] 

 

  



 
Development Agreement – Black Powder 
Page 15 

  

 



             
        

16 
 

EXHIBIT “D” 

 

Comments from Public 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



From: Derek Towery
To: Roberta Stewart
Subject: R38207 development
Date: Saturday, November 5, 2022 5:25:54 PM

Good afternoon. I urge you to decline the proposal of 105 homes being built on this 40.28 acres.
With the recent influx of residents to the community and the lack of infrastructure development, the acceptance of
this would only hinder the current residents more. The schools are already overflowing, the roads are next to
impossible to travel at points and we do not have the quantity of grocery stores available to support more residents.

Thank you!
Derek Towery
(702)336-7929

mailto:derektowery@hotmail.com
mailto:rstewart@middletoncity.com


             
        

17 
 

EXHIBIT “E” 

 

Comments from Agencies 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Communities in Motion 2050 Development Review
The Community Planning Association of Southwest Idaho (COMPASS) 
is the metropolitan planning organization (MPO) for Ada and Canyon 
Counties. COMPASS has developed this review as a tool for local 
governments to evaluate whether land developments are consistent with 
the goals of Communities in Motion 2050 (CIM 2050), the regional long-
range transportation plan for Ada and Canyon Counties. This checklist is 
not intended to be prescriptive, but rather a guidance document based 
on CIM 2050 goals.

Development Name:

CIM Vision Category:

CIM Corridor:

Safety  
Level of Stress measures how 
safe and comfortable a bicyclist 
or pedestrian would feel on a 
corridor and considers multimodal 
infrastructure number of vehicle 
lanes, and travel speeds.

Pedestrian level of stress 
Bicycle level of stress

Economic Vitality  
These tools evaluate whether the 
location of the proposal supports 
economic vitality by growing near 
existing public services. 

Activity Center Access  
Farmland Preservation 
Net Fiscal Impact   
Within CIM Forecast

Convenience
Residents who live or work 
less than 1/2 mile from critical 
services have more transportation 
choices, especially for vulnerable 
populations.

Nearest bus stop
Nearest public school
Nearest public park

Quality of Life
Checked boxes indicate that 
additional information is attached.

Active Transportation

Automobile Transportation

Public Transportation

Roadway Capacity

New Jobs:

Improves performance

Comments:
Communities in Motion 2050 

2020 Change in Motion Report
Development Review Process

Web: www.compassidaho.org    
Email: info@compassidaho.org

New Households:

Reduces performanceDoes not improve or 
reduce performance



Fiscal Impact Analysis Supplemental for the 
Development Review Checklist

The purpose of the fiscal impact analysis is to better estimate expected revenues and costs to local 
governments as a result of new development so that the public, stakeholders, and the decision-
makers can better manage growth. Capital and operating expenditures are determined by various 
factors that determine service and infrastructure needs, including persons per household, student 
generation rates, lot sizes, street frontages, vehicle trip and trip adjustment factors, average trip 
lengths, construction values, income, discretionary spending, and employment densities.

The COMPASS Development Checklist considers the level of fiscal benefits, how many public agencies 
benefit or are burdened by additional growth, and how long the proposal will take to achieve a fiscal 
break-even point, if at all. More information about the COMPASS Fiscal Impact Tool is available at: 
www.compassidaho.org/prodserv/fiscalimpact.htm.

Overall Net Fiscal Impact

Net Fiscal Impact, by Agency

City

Highway District

Break Even:

County

School District



From: Jennica Reynolds
To: Roberta Stewart
Subject: FW: Notice - Black Powder PZ
Date: Wednesday, August 24, 2022 8:47:56 AM
Attachments: image001.png

image004.png
image002.png

 
 
Thanks so much,
Jennica Reynolds
City of Middleton
Deputy Clerk, Planning
208-585-3133
jreynolds@middletoncity.com
 

 
 
 

From: Vincent Trimboli <Vincent.Trimboli@itd.idaho.gov> 
Sent: Tuesday, August 23, 2022 8:48 PM
To: Jennica Reynolds <jreynolds@middletoncity.com>
Subject: RE: Notice - Black Powder PZ
 
ITD does not anticipate any significant traffic impacts to the State Highway system from this
development and has no objections to the proposal development.
 
 
Vincent Trimboli
District 3, Planning and Development Services Manager
Office: 208.334.8817
Cell: 208.949.3712 
 

 
 
 

From: Jennica Reynolds <jreynolds@middletoncity.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, August 23, 2022 11:24 AM

mailto:jreynolds@middletoncity.com
mailto:rstewart@middletoncity.com
mailto:jreynolds@middletoncity.com
mailto:jreynolds@middletoncity.com





To: Alicia Krantz - MSD <akrantz@msd134.org>; Canyon County Paramedics
<MStowell@ccparamedics.com>; Chris Grooms <cgrooms@middletoncity.com>; COMPASS
<gis@compassidaho.org>; Deann Gerthung (deann.gerthung@canyoncounty.id.gov)
<deann.gerthung@canyoncounty.id.gov>; Idaho Power - Mike Ybarguen
<MYbarguen@idahopower.com>; D3 Development Services
<D3Development.Services@itd.idaho.gov>; Julie Collette <gmprdjulie@gmail.com>; Lacey Grooms -
MSD <lgrooms@msd134.org>; Marc Gee - MSD <mgee@msd134.org>; Middleton/Star Fire
<permits@starfirerescue.org>; Monica Taylor - Intermountain Gass <monica.taylor@intgas.com>;
Southwest District Health - Mitch Kiester <Mitch.Kiester@phd3.idaho.gov>; vislas@starfirerescue.org;
westerninfo@idwr.idaho.gov; zoninginfo@canyoncounty.id.gov; carl@blackcanyonirrigation.com;
Don Popoff- BCID <dpopoff@rh2.com>; Chris Hopper <chopper@canyonhd4.org>; Lenny Riccio
<lriccio@canyonhd4.org>; Sparklight - Franchise <cheryl.goettsche@sparklight.biz>
Cc: Roberta Stewart <rstewart@middletoncity.com>
Subject: Notice - Black Powder PZ
 
CAUTION: This email originated outside the State of Idaho network. Verify links and attachments BEFORE you
click or open, even if you recognize and/or trust the sender. Contact your agency service desk with any concerns.
 

Please see the attached notice for Public Hearing.
 
Thanks so much,
Jennica Reynolds
City of Middleton
Deputy Clerk, Planning
208-585-3133
jreynolds@middletoncity.com
 

 
 
 

mailto:akrantz@msd134.org
mailto:MStowell@ccparamedics.com
mailto:cgrooms@middletoncity.com
mailto:gis@compassidaho.org
mailto:deann.gerthung@canyoncounty.id.gov
mailto:deann.gerthung@canyoncounty.id.gov
mailto:MYbarguen@idahopower.com
mailto:D3Development.Services@itd.idaho.gov
mailto:gmprdjulie@gmail.com
mailto:lgrooms@msd134.org
mailto:mgee@msd134.org
mailto:permits@starfirerescue.org
mailto:monica.taylor@intgas.com
mailto:Mitch.Kiester@phd3.idaho.gov
mailto:vislas@starfirerescue.org
mailto:westerninfo@idwr.idaho.gov
mailto:zoninginfo@canyoncounty.id.gov
mailto:carl@blackcanyonirrigation.com
mailto:dpopoff@rh2.com
mailto:chopper@canyonhd4.org
mailto:lriccio@canyonhd4.org
mailto:cheryl.goettsche@sparklight.biz
mailto:rstewart@middletoncity.com
mailto:jreynolds@middletoncity.com


From: Niki Benyakhlef
To: Roberta Stewart
Subject: RE: Notice - Black Powder Subdivision - Middleton City Council
Date: Monday, November 14, 2022 12:10:45 PM
Attachments: image003.png

image005.png

Good Afternoon, Roberta –

ITD has no comments or concerns to make at this time. This may change once development
and site plans are finalized and disbursed.  

Thank you,
 

Niki Benyakhlef
Development Services Coordinator
 
 
District 3 Development Services
O: 208.334.8337
C: 208.296.9750
Email: niki.benyakhlef@itd.idaho.gov
Website: itd.idaho.gov

 
 

From: Roberta Stewart <rstewart@middletoncity.com> 
Sent: Monday, October 31, 2022 3:43 PM
To: Jennica Reynolds <jreynolds@middletoncity.com>; Alicia Krantz - MSD <akrantz@msd134.org>;
Canyon County Paramedics <MStowell@ccparamedics.com>; Chris Grooms
<cgrooms@middletoncity.com>; COMPASS <gis@compassidaho.org>; Deann Gerthung
(deann.gerthung@canyoncounty.id.gov) <deann.gerthung@canyoncounty.id.gov>; Idaho Power -
Mike Ybarguen <MYbarguen@idahopower.com>; D3 Development Services
<D3Development.Services@itd.idaho.gov>; Julie Collette <gmprdjulie@gmail.com>; Lacey Grooms -
MSD <lgrooms@msd134.org>; Marc Gee - MSD <mgee@msd134.org>; Middleton/Star Fire
<permits@starfirerescue.org>; Monica Taylor - Intermountain Gass <monica.taylor@intgas.com>;
Southwest District Health - Mitch Kiester <Mitch.Kiester@phd3.idaho.gov>;
vislas@starfirerescue.org; westerninfo@idwr.idaho.gov; zoninginfo@canyoncounty.id.gov;
carl@blackcanyonirrigation.com; Don Popoff- BCID <dpopoff@rh2.com>; Chris Hopper
<chopper@canyonhd4.org>; Lenny Riccio <lriccio@canyonhd4.org>; Sparklight - Franchise
<cheryl.goettsche@sparklight.biz>
Subject: RE: Notice - Black Powder Subdivision - Middleton City Council
 
CAUTION: This email originated outside the State of Idaho network. Verify links and attachments BEFORE you
click or open, even if you recognize and/or trust the sender. Contact your agency service desk with any
concerns.
 

Hello all: please find attached the notice for the Black Powder Subdivision public hearing. Thanks, 
 
 

mailto:Niki.Benyakhlef@itd.idaho.gov
mailto:rstewart@middletoncity.com
mailto:niki.benyakhlef@itd.idaho.gov
https://itd.idaho.gov/
mailto:rstewart@middletoncity.com
mailto:jreynolds@middletoncity.com
mailto:akrantz@msd134.org
mailto:MStowell@ccparamedics.com
mailto:cgrooms@middletoncity.com
mailto:gis@compassidaho.org
mailto:deann.gerthung@canyoncounty.id.gov
mailto:deann.gerthung@canyoncounty.id.gov
mailto:MYbarguen@idahopower.com
mailto:D3Development.Services@itd.idaho.gov
mailto:gmprdjulie@gmail.com
mailto:lgrooms@msd134.org
mailto:mgee@msd134.org
mailto:permits@starfirerescue.org
mailto:monica.taylor@intgas.com
mailto:Mitch.Kiester@phd3.idaho.gov
mailto:vislas@starfirerescue.org
mailto:westerninfo@idwr.idaho.gov
mailto:zoninginfo@canyoncounty.id.gov
mailto:carl@blackcanyonirrigation.com
mailto:dpopoff@rh2.com
mailto:chopper@canyonhd4.org
mailto:lriccio@canyonhd4.org
mailto:cheryl.goettsche@sparklight.biz




Roberta L. Stewart
 
PLANNING & ZONING OFFICIAL
City of Middleton, Planning & Zoning
1103 W. Main St.
P.O. Box 487
Middleton, ID 83644
 
Tele - (208) 585-3133
Fax – (208) 585-9601
rstewart@middletoncity.com   
 
www.middleton.id.gov
 

 

From: Jennica Reynolds <jreynolds@middletoncity.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, August 23, 2022 11:24 AM
To: Alicia Krantz - MSD <akrantz@msd134.org>; Canyon County Paramedics
<MStowell@ccparamedics.com>; Chris Grooms <cgrooms@middletoncity.com>; COMPASS
<gis@compassidaho.org>; Deann Gerthung (deann.gerthung@canyoncounty.id.gov)
<deann.gerthung@canyoncounty.id.gov>; Idaho Power - Mike Ybarguen
<MYbarguen@idahopower.com>; ITD - Development <D3Development.services@ITD.idaho.gov>;
Julie Collette <gmprdjulie@gmail.com>; Lacey Grooms - MSD <lgrooms@msd134.org>; Marc Gee -
MSD <mgee@msd134.org>; Middleton/Star Fire <permits@starfirerescue.org>; Monica Taylor -
Intermountain Gass <monica.taylor@intgas.com>; Southwest District Health - Mitch Kiester
<Mitch.Kiester@phd3.idaho.gov>; vislas@starfirerescue.org; westerninfo@idwr.idaho.gov;
zoninginfo@canyoncounty.id.gov; carl@blackcanyonirrigation.com; Don Popoff- BCID
<dpopoff@rh2.com>; Chris Hopper <chopper@canyonhd4.org>; Lenny Riccio
<lriccio@canyonhd4.org>; Sparklight - Franchise <cheryl.goettsche@sparklight.biz>
Cc: Roberta Stewart <rstewart@middletoncity.com>
Subject: Notice - Black Powder PZ
 
Please see the attached notice for Public Hearing.
 
Thanks so much,
Jennica Reynolds
City of Middleton
Deputy Clerk, Planning

mailto:rstewart@middletoncity.com
https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/SQedCv2vxZH2ZwNOfXU5pS?domain=middleton.id.gov/
mailto:jreynolds@middletoncity.com
mailto:akrantz@msd134.org
mailto:MStowell@ccparamedics.com
mailto:cgrooms@middletoncity.com
mailto:gis@compassidaho.org
mailto:deann.gerthung@canyoncounty.id.gov
mailto:deann.gerthung@canyoncounty.id.gov
mailto:MYbarguen@idahopower.com
mailto:D3Development.services@ITD.idaho.gov
mailto:gmprdjulie@gmail.com
mailto:lgrooms@msd134.org
mailto:mgee@msd134.org
mailto:permits@starfirerescue.org
mailto:monica.taylor@intgas.com
mailto:Mitch.Kiester@phd3.idaho.gov
mailto:vislas@starfirerescue.org
mailto:westerninfo@idwr.idaho.gov
mailto:zoninginfo@canyoncounty.id.gov
mailto:carl@blackcanyonirrigation.com
mailto:dpopoff@rh2.com
mailto:chopper@canyonhd4.org
mailto:lriccio@canyonhd4.org
mailto:cheryl.goettsche@sparklight.biz
mailto:rstewart@middletoncity.com


208-585-3133
jreynolds@middletoncity.com
 

 
 
 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: The contents of this email message and any attachments are
intended solely for the addressee(s) and may contain Personal Information from a DMV file
which is legally protected from disclosure under both state and Federal law. Be advised that
Personal Information may only be disclosed to third parties under the provisions of Idaho
Code section 49-203. If you are not the intended recipient of this message, or if this message
has been addressed to you in error, please immediately delete this message and any
attachments, and alert the sender.

mailto:jreynolds@middletoncity.com


 
 

 

		Middleton	School	District	#134	
Every	Child	Learning	Every	Day	

 
 
 

Middleton School District #134  

City of Middleton--Public Hearing Notice Response 
General Response for All New Development 

Middleton School District is currently experiencing significant growth in its student 
population.  As it is now, we have 2 of our 3 elementary schools over capacity.  
Heights Elementary is 134% of capacity with three portable units.  Mill Creek 
Elementary is 123% of capacity with 2 portables (soon to be 4).    We are nearing 
capacity, but have not superseded at this point, at our high school (94%) and middle 
school (85%).  As it stands now there is a need for additional facilities in our school 
district, primarily at the elementary grades.  However, we have significant concerns of 
the continued growth and our ability to meet the future facility needs of our district 
at the secondary level (Middleton Middle School and Middleton High School). 

We have completed a demographic study performed for our school district 
boundaries and the data suggests that for every new home we could expect between 
0.5 and 0.7 (with an average of .559)** students to come to our school.  That is the 
factor/rate we use to make our projection of student impact for each development. 

We encourage the city to be judicious in their approval process recognizing that each 
new development brings new students to our school and will increase the burden 
placed on taxpayers within the school district.  New facilities, primarily an elementary 
school, are needed now, but additional students continue to increase that need.  

**Please note a change in this rate from previous correspondence 

Black Powder Subdivision 

Students living in the subdivision as planned would be in the attendance zones for 
Middleton Heights Elementary school, our most overcrowded school (though borders 
may change in order to equalize student loads at all lementary schools) .  With 105 
total lots, we would anticipate, upon completion, an increase of 53-74 students 
between Heights Elementary, Middleton Middle School, and Middleton High School.  
To put this in perspective, that equates to approximately 2-3 classrooms of students 
(ave. 25 students).  Every classroom at Heights Elementary right now has an initial 
cost of $125,000 just for the portable unit that would be required to house the 
students.  That does not include the costs of other materials required (ie desks, 
chairs, curricular materials, etc).  

In addition to the increase in student population, based on the location, bussing 
would be provided for middle school students, though that may change based on the 
design of the plat and its connection to a safe walking route to the other schools. 
Having not seen the design of the subdivision we would recommend the developers 
meet with the school district officials and transportation officials to ensure adequate 
access for bussing to the area. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Marc Gee 
Superintendent 

 
Lisa Pennington 

Assistant Superintendent 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

5 South Viking Avenue 
Middleton, ID 83644 

(208) 585-3027 
msd134.org 



             
        

18 
 

EXHIBIT “F” 

 

Comments from City Engineer & Planner 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 









 

CITY OF MIDDLETON 
P.O. Box 487     1103 W Main Street, Middleton, ID  83644 

Tele (208) 585-3133     Fax (208) 585-9601 
citmid@middletonidaho.us  www.middleton.id.gov 

 
Black Powder Subdivision – Planner Comments 
(Review of Preliminary Plat dated 1/24/2022) 

 
 
June 1, 2022 
 

1. We need 2 sets of updated labels.  On January 19, 2022, the City Council approved 
Ordinance 659, which expanded the area for “landowner notice”.  Prior to 1/19/2022 it was 
300’ from perimeter boundary. As of 1/19/2022, it is 500’ from perimeter boundary.  Your 
application submittal date of 1/25/2022 is after the effective 1/19/2022 date. 

2. Confirm that Road “H” will tie into revised W. Highlands #19 (W. Bay Street”).  Does not 
match the W. Highland’s pre-plat.  

3. Add proper names to the streets and reserve them with Tony Almeida at Canyon County.  
Looks like Road H should be W. Bay Street to tie into W. Highlands #19.  Road “I” should be 
N. Tarantaise Ave., to tie into W. Highlands Phase 17.  Road “A” should be W. Meadow Park 
Blvd., to match the existing street across Cemetery Road.  Create names for all the other 
alphabet streets. 

4. Change W. Meadow Park Street on the northern boundary to just “Meadow Park Street”, not 
“W. Meadow Park Street”. 

5. Reserve Subdivision name with Tony Almeida at Canyon County. 
6. Add to Lot 7, Block 5 descriptive notes and/or icons showing the play structure, lawn area, 

and shade structure.  Show benches too, please.  Just transfer over what you show on 
landscape plan. 

7. Remove your “Typical residential street section” and add in the Middleton local residential 
street section found in Appendix B to Middleton’s Supplement to ISPWC. 

8. Remove your Meadow Park Street Section and ask City Engineer Amy Woodruff which section 
from the Middleton Supplement to ISPWC Appendix B should be inserted in its place. I 
suspect it will be the 3-lane urban roadway, but she may inform you that it is the 5 lane 
urban roadway. 

9. Remove Page 2 Lot Area tables and add the square footage to each individual lot on page 1.   
10. You can probably contain your existing conditions page 4 with the engineering pages 5 and 6 

to condense the pre-plat a little more.  Amy Woodruff may require even more condensing.  
11. Add dimension to traffic buffer lots L9/B2, L1/B8 and L18/B3.  Per 5-4-10-2, the common 

lot/traffic buffer must be 24’ wide. It does not look like these common lots are more than 21’ 
wide.  

12. Add number of lots by phase to “Preliminary Plat Data” on page 1. 
13. Show mailbox clusters on pre-plat. Currently only shown on landscape plan. 
14. Blend Note 9 about common lots with Note 12.  Identify all common lots by lot and block, 

then note that they are actually “common lots”, then state that they are owned by HOA.  If 
some of the lots you identify in Note 12 are not common lots (like a ditch lot…etc) then 
identify the nature of the lot.  Also, on Note 12, correct mis-numbered common lot, Lot 
17/Block 3.  It should be Lot 18, Block 3, not Lot 17, Block 3.  

15. Add note: “Developer to stripe crosswalk at intersection of Cemetery Road and Meadow Park 
St., to provide safe access across Cemetery Road to the future Meadow Park School to the 
east.”  

rstewart
Typewritten Text
need to get traffic berm shown correcty for meadow park too



 
 
 
 

2 
 

16. Change Note 1 to state: “Building setbacks and dimensional standards in this subdivision 
shall be in compliance with the Cit of Middleton standards at time of building permit 
issuance.”  

17. Remove Note 13 right to farm.  Does not apply in City limits. 
18. Add note: “Domestic and fire protection water shall be provided by the City of Middleton. 
19. Add Note: “Sanitary sewer collection shall be provided by the City of Middleton” 
20. Add note: “Irrigation ditches through the project shall be piped where they cross roadways 

with all structures located beyond any public right-of-way.  All irrigation and drainage 
facilities shall be located outside of the right-of-way.” 

21. Add note: “Sewer and water capacity shall be reserved when City approves Construction 
Drawings.” 

22. Delete Note 2 about Middleton generic easements and state instead the easement language 
directly below in items 23 and 24.  

23. Add note: “All lots have a permanent easement for public/private utilities and pedestrian 
walkways over the 10 feet adjacent to any public right-of-way. The easement shall not 
preclude the construction of hard-surfaced driveways and walkways to the lot.” 

24. Add note: “Unless otherwise shown and dimensioned, all lots are hereby designated as 
having a permanent easement for public/private utilities, drainage, and irrigation over the 5-
feet adjacent to any interior lot line and over 10-feet adjacent to any rear lot line or 
subdivision boundary.” 

25. Add note: “This subdivision is subject to the provisions of Development Agreement recorded 
in the records of Canyon County as Instrument #____________________.”  

26. Update Traffic Study with pro-rata/proportionate share calculations as indicated in my 
additional email dated 6/1/2022. 

 
 
 
 

Roberta L. Stewart 
Middleton Planning & Zoning Director 
 



 

CITY OF MIDDLETON 
P.O. Box 487     1103 W Main Street, Middleton, ID  83644 

Tele (208) 585-3133     Fax (208) 585-9601 
citmid@middletonidaho.us  www.middleton.id.gov 

 
Black Powder Subdivision – Planner Comments 

(Review of Revised Preliminary Plat received 8/22/2022) 
 
 
August 30, 2022 
 

1. The roadway section for Meadow Park Street should match the road section shown on page 
2 for Cemetery Road.  Both, per code, must include the 24’ wide traffic buffer with 3’ berm 
and 6’ fence.  Please swap out the erroneous section shown for Meadow Park. 

2. Reserve all street names and subdivision names with Tony Almeida at Canyon County. 
3. Change Note 1 to state: “Building setbacks and dimensional standards in this subdivision 

shall be in compliance with the City of Middleton standards at time of building permit 
issuance.”   (You are missing the last 6 words: “at time of building permit issuance”) 

4. Add note: “The Homeowners’ Association (HOA) owns and manages the common areas, 
which include stormwater facilities.  A plan for operation, maintenance, and repair of 
stormwater facilities (O&M Plan) has been prepared for all stormwater facilities maintained 
by the HOA. The O&M Plan shall be recorded with the CC&Rs. The O&M Plan shall be used 
for maintenance and operation of the stormwater facilities.” 

 
 
 
 

Roberta L. Stewart 
Middleton Planning & Zoning Director 
 



             
        

19 
 

EXHIBIT “G” 

 

P&Z Commission Recommendation 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT “B” 











 

1 
 

             STAFF REVIEW AND REPORT 
                            Middleton City Council 

 
 

 

 

 

Proposed Amendments to Middleton City Code 
 

       

A. City Council Public Hearing Date: December 7, 2022 

B. Application Request: Request from City of Middleton for amendment and revision to the 
following Middleton City Code sections:  (a) 1-14-1; (b) 4-5-7; (c) MCC 4-5-11; (d) MCC 5-
4-1, Table 1; (e) MCC 5-4-4; (f) 5-4-7; (g) 5-4-10-2; (h) 5-4-10-6; and (i) 5-4-10-7. 

C. Requested Code Changes: 

1. Flex Spaces (MCC 1-3-1, 5-4-1, Table 1, & 4-5-11): 

Because of the changing nature of commercial goods and services, many Cities are 
adding to their code a “hybrid” land use generally known as “flex space” or “flex 
building.”  A flex space is a building or project that combines a light industrial use with 
a commercial, office, and/or retail use.  The front of a flex space building should be 
attractive and appear commercial or retail, while the back may include industrial roll up 
doors and a space for warehousing and light manufacturing.   

Basically, “Pretty on the front. Ugly in the rear.”   

A typical flex space user would be a flooring company with a customer showroom up 
front but a distribution warehouse in the rear.  It is made for someone who experiences 



             
        

2 
 

consumer traffic but still needs space for light processing, warehousing, or 
manufacturing.  

A flex space project will also allow a unique mix of businesses to exist next to one 
another. A flex space project may have a custom cabinet shop next to a crossfit gym 
next to an indoor/outdoor restaurant. Any mixture of commercial and light industrial 
uses will work.  It is a “twilight zone” that neither an “Industrial Zone” nor “Commercial 
Zone” can completely address on its own.  Some visual examples are below: 

   
     

   

  

 

 

     

 

 

 

 



             
        

3 
 

 

Before “Flex Space” can be added to City Code as a land use, it must be defined in 
the “Definition” Section of the Code (MCC 1-3-1). After that, the defined term must be 
added to the Land Use Table (MCC 5-4-1, Table 1), where the use is deemed either 
“Allowed”, “Special Use Permit”, or “Prohibited.” 

City Staff proposes the following definition for “Flex Space” (MCC 1-3-1): 

FLEX SPACE:  a building or buildings used for small-scale warehousing and light 

industrial activity which may be combined with office, retail, and/or other commercial 

uses.  Individual units or buildings may be used entirely for a commercial, retail, or 

office use, but any warehousing and/or light industrial use cannot exceed 70% of the 

total square footage of the building or individual unit.  Flex Space does not include 

mini-warehouse storage, individual storage space for rent, or a use that involves a 

high level of truck and loading activity. 

Front and street-side elevations are enhanced with more architectural detail, 

including variations in roof form, building height, and building materials in addition to 

an increased use of glass and architectural features involving wood, faux wood, 

and/or metal.  Entries are easily identifiable with projecting or recessed forms and 

additional architectural detail.   

Loading docks and industrial roll-up/garage doors are located on only the rear and 

non-street sides of the flex space. However, glass sliding doors and architectural 

garage doors enhanced with significant amounts of glass, metal and/or faux wood 

can be located on the front elevation if they enhance the aesthetic of the front 

elevation.     

 



             
        

4 
 

Planning Staff proposes that “Flex Space” be deemed in the Land Use Table as an 
“Allowable” use in the more intensive commercial and industrial zones. However, it 
should be deemed a “Special Use” in the Mixed-Use zone because a Mixed-Use zone 
combines residential homes with commercial businesses.  A special use permit 
process will ensure that the proposed Flex Space use will not be overly intrusive to 
any residential uses within the same zone.   

A new land use will also require a City to consider parking requirements for the new 
use.  In light of that, Staff is proposing a change to the “Parking” code found at MCC 4-
5-11(B).  Staff proposes that for Flex Space, Owner should provide one parking stall 
per 350 s.f. of gross floor space.  This parking requirement is a combination of the low 
number of parking stalls needed for an industrial use and the high number of stalls 
needed for a retail/commercial use.  One stall per 350 s.f., hits that “middle ground” 
between the two types of uses. 

To achieve this, Staff is proposing the following revision to MCC 4-5-11(B): 

                

 

                            Proposed Change to MCC 5-4-1, Table 1 – Land Use Table 

          



             
        

5 
 

2. Mobile Food Truck Service  (MCC 1-3-1 & 5-4-1, Table 1): 

Mobile Food Truck Service is not a land use that is defined in City Code, and it is not a 
“use” that is noted in the Land Use Table with respect to any particular zone.  In order 
to add the use to City Code, we will need to define the use and then add it to the Land 
Use Table found at MCC 5-4-1, Table 1. 

City Staff proposes defining “Mobile Food Truck Service” in the Definitions section 
(MCC 1-3-1) as follows: 

City Staff proposes that Mobile Food Truck Service be “allowed” in any commercial or 
industrial zone; however, it should not be allowed in residential zones where it could 
disturb the peacefulness of a residential neighborhood.  In light of this, the proposed 
changes to the Land Use Table (MCC 5-4-1, Table 1) would look like this: 

 
 

In order to ensure that Food Truck Service would not be intrusive to residential 
neighborhoods found in the “Mixed-Use” Zone, Staff recommends a new “Footnote 9” 
to the Land Use Table as follows: 

This Footnote 9 will also address special events at parks or schools located in a 
residential zone.  Mobile Food Truck Service would be allowed at the park or school IF 
there is a special event at the park or school where food truck service is appropriate. 

9. A Mobile Food Truck in the Mixed-Use (M-U) Zone cannot be parked closer than 
250’ to the nearest residential unit.  Mobile Food Truck Service is an allowed use 
at any school or public park located within any Residential Zone when tied to a 
specific event at the school or park.  

 

MOBILE FOOD TRUCK SERVICE:  A vehicle or a readily portable structure used solely 
for the purpose of preparing and selling food and beverages to the public at large. Food 
trucks used for catering a single event for pay is not included in this definition.   

 



             
        

6 
 

This would apply to such things as a special outdoor market in a City park or end of 
school celebration in the school yard.   

One last consideration, the Land Use Table as proposed will ensure that pizza trucks, 
taco trucks, and coffee trucks cannot “troll” around residential neighborhoods looking 
for customers, but this will also affect the summertime tradition of an ice cream truck 
driving around neighborhoods.   

3. MCC 1-14-1 Neighborhood Meeting Procedures:  MCC 1-14-1 sets forth the 
procedures and timing to complete a Neighborhood Meeting prior to submitting a land 
use application.  During a public hearing in late 2021, Planning Staff proposed a code 
revision to limit Neighborhood Meetings to Monday through Thursday, with a starting 
time between 6 p.m. and 8 p.m.  The proposed revision stated that applicants “may” 
conduct the Neighborhood Meeting during this time period.  During the public hearing, 
Council Member Huggins rightly pointed out that it should state “shall” conduct the 
Neighborhood Meeting during this time period.  Staff agrees and is bringing this 
current proposed revision to fix the problem by replacing the word “may” with the word 
“shall”.  
 

4. Landowner Notice (MCC 5-4-4(A): 
 
Middleton City Code requires all Developers to give notice and hold a neighborhood 
meeting prior to submitting a development application to the City.  For a number of 
years, the Developer was required to give such notice to only those owners/residents 
living within 300’ of the project boundary. In 2021, City Council approved an 
amendment to the Code to require Developers to give notice to landowners/residents 
within 500’ feet of a project boundary. 
 
At the time this change was made to the Code, City Staff failed to make the 
corresponding change to the Preliminary Plat code that requires City Staff to give 
landowner notice.  Currently, MCC 5-4-4(A) requires City Staff to notify landowners 
within 300’ of the project boundary of a new preliminary plat project. Staff is proposing 
that the distance be increased to 500’ to match the increase that was made to the 
Neighborhood Notice code.  The proposed change is as follows: 

Proposed Change: 
 

1-14-1 NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING: 
 
C. Meeting Standards:  
 
1. Neighborhood meetings may shall be conducted Monday through Thursday 
only, except meetings may not be held on a holiday or on the day before a 
holiday. All neighborhood meetings must start between 6 p.m. and 8 p.m.  
 
 



             
        

7 
 

 

5. MCC 4-5-7 Commercial Lot Paving & Stormdrain Requirements: Section 4-5-7 
mandates that all parking lot areas on a commercial/industrial lot be “concrete” or 
“asphalt.”  Recently multiple builders have attempted to use recycled asphalt as a 
“hard surface,” which is not the “hard surface” contemplated by the City Code. 
Therefore, Planning Staff is clarifying that the hard surface of concrete and/or asphalt 
must be actual “paving”.  

The proposed revision further “shored up” language regarding stormwater treatment 
facilities by stating specifically that stormwater facilities must be designed per City 
policy and ordinances. 
 

6. MCC 5-4-7 Surety and Bonding Requirements: City Attorney recently pointed out 
that our current code for bonding did not have a default time limit to ensure that 
bonded improvements were completed in a timely fashion.  City attorney drafted a 
proposed code revision that requires all bonded improvements to be completed within 
12 months of bond issuance.  The proposed revision also provides that City Council 
may approve an extension of the 12 month period if unavoidable delays impact the 
developer and the developer timely applies for an extension.  

 

A.   Application: …The City, at least fifteen (15) calendar days before the initial 

public hearing, shall mail to landowners within five three hundred feet (5300') of the 

external boundaries of the lands to be subdivided a notice that the City received an 

application, the number of acres and proposed number of residential, non-

residential, and total lots, proposed land uses, and the dates and times that the 

application can be reviewed at City offices…. 

 

Proposed Change: 
 
4-5-7: HARD SURFACING: 
 

Off street parking areas, driveways and private roads shall be hard surfaced with 
concrete or asphalt paving and shall have on site stormwater treatment facilities 
designed per the City’s stormwater management policy and ordinance.  

 
 



             
        

8 
 

 

7. MCC 5-4-10-2 Road Standards:  City Staff and Engineer desired to “shore up” or 
clarify language in City Code requiring Developers to complete all frontage 
improvements on roadways adjacent to subdivision projects. The revisions also clarify 
the standards required for the improvements.  In general, City Engineer and Staff 
propose the following revisions: 

a. Clarification that all costs for moving the utilities will be borne by Developer. 
b. Firm statement that Developer shall dedicated all improved right of way to the 

City without compensation. 
c. Frontage improvement will occur on a phase-by-phase basis up to Phase 3. For 

phases 4 and above, all frontage work must be completed by Phase 3. Council 
can, in its sole discretion, mandate that all frontage work be completed by 
phase 1 despite the existence of future phases. (City Code was vague on when 
frontage improvements were due. City engineer has been requiring frontage 
improvements and dedication on a phase-by-phase basis.  This language 
codifies City’s current practice and accelerates all frontage to be completed by 
Phase 3.) 

d. Revisions add “clear cut” technical requirements regarding the extent of the ½ 
road improvements. 

e. Clarified technical street requirements for a new road extended to a landlocked 
parcel.   

f.    Added additional roads and description to the Right of Way matrix. 

Proposed Change 
 
5-4-7: FINAL PLAT: 

A. … 
 
3. The City Council may accept an irrevocable letter of credit, cashier's 

check or other bond guarantee in the amount of one hundred fifty percent (150%) 
of the estimated costs to ensure completion of only landscaping, and irrigation 
system, and fencing improvements in the event that inclement weather precludes 
the successful installation of said improvements. landscaping and irrigation. A 
bonded improvement must be completed within twelve (12) months of the approval 
of the final plat, and the bond will not be released until the improvement is 
completed and approved by the City.  Failure to complete the improvement within 
said time frame shall give the City the authority, at its sole discretion, to exercise 
the bond and complete the improvement with funds derived therefrom. The City 
Council may grant an extension to a developer to accommodate unavoidable 
delays impacting the developer, but only if the developer requests such an 
extension at least sixty (60) days prior to the date on which the improvement is 
required to be completed.  
 
 
 



             
        

9 
 

[See extensive proposed changes on road standards attached as Exhibit “A”] 
 

8. MCC 5-4-10-6:  Traffic Buffers: When a subdivision is located along a collector or 
arterial road, the City requires a 24’ wide landscaped buffer between the busy street 
and the residential lots.  Under the current code, that buffer can be contained in a 
simple easement owned by the HOA or contained in a separate common lot owned by 
the HOA.  When the buffer is contained within an HOA easement, the easement is 
often placed on a private homeowner’s lot, resulting in a problematic inter-mixing of 
the homeowner’s and HOA’s irrigation and landscaping. It can also increase liability to 
a private owner for injuries that occur in the HOA easement on the owner’s private lot, 
and it will also affect the setback analysis and fence placement.   
 
Staff’s proposed revision will remove the easement option and require that the buffer 
be contained in only a common lot.  This will fix the issues described above. 
 
Engineer and Staff have also proposed language to define the dimensions of the 
required berm inside the buffer to ensure City streetscapes have a more uniform look 
in the future. 

 

9. MCC 5-4-10-7 Landscape Buffers:  This section on landscape buffers requires that 
there be a 20’ wide landscape buffer between a residential zone and a C-1 zone 
(“Neighborhood Commercial”).  When the residential zone abuts the heavier 
commercial zones (C-2 and C-3) or an industrial zone, then the landscape buffer is 
widened to 25’.   

The current code language, however, does not describe any buffer between a 
residential zone and the Mixed Use (M-U) zone, which can contain both residential 
and commercial uses.  Therefore, Staff proposes a revision to MCC 5-4-10-7 to base 

Proposed Change:  
 
5-4-10-6: TRAFFIC BUFFER REQUIREMENTS: 
 

The purpose of a traffic buffer is to reduce the visual impact of collector and arterial 
roadways on a residential area. A combination of the following shall be used: a) solid 
fence or wall; b) berm; and c) landscaping. 

A. Buffer Dimensions: Traffic buffers shall be accomplished by a combination 
of berm (varying height: minimum 3 feet, maximum 5 feet; 2.5:1 side slopes 
measured from adjacent street top back of curb) and fence (varying height) 
to a total height of not less than nine feet (9') or greater than eleven feet 
(11') in a twenty four foot (24') (minimum) easement  common lot dedicated 
for traffic buffer area. Traffic buffers shall be harmonious with adjacent 
screening techniques, materials, and colors. 

 
 



             
        

10 
 

the trigger for a buffer on “uses” rather than “zones”. This will automatically incorporate 
the uses in the M-U Zone.  

The proposed revisions do not change the buffers.  The result is still the same. This 
revision merely closes a loophole for commercial uses in the M-U zone. 

 
 

D. Comprehensive Plan:  Any changes to the City’s Zoning Ordinance or Subdivision 
Ordinance should be in compliance with the City’s Comprehensive Plan. (Idaho State 
Statute 67-6511 & MCC 1-14-3.)   

 
Planning Staff finds that all proposed changes are in compliance with the Comprehensive 
Plan because nothing proposed is in conflict with requirements shown on any 
Comprehensive Plan Map. Additionally, none of the proposed changes conflict with any 
“Goals, Objectives or Strategies” set forth in the Comprehensive Plan.  Finally, none of 
the proposed changes conflict with the requirements of LLUPA (the “Local Land Use 
Planning Act found at Idaho State Code, Title 67, Chapter 65). Finally, the proposed 
changes comply with the following Goals, Objectives, and Strategies of the 2019 
Middleton Comprehensive Plan: 
 

a. Goal 3: The proposed changes help provide safe vehicle and pedestrian facilities 
with ample pathways and safe roadway designs. 

b. Goal 4: Proposed changes enhance the quality of life with open space and 
appropriate buffers between residential uses and more intensive uses.  
  

E. Comments Received from Public:  None. 
 
F. Comments from Agencies: Comments were received from Canyon Highway District 4 

and City of Caldwell.  See attached as Exhibit “B”. 

Proposed Change: 
5-4-10-7 LANDSCAPE BUFFERS: 

A. When a commercial land use that is listed as an allowed use or special use 
in the C-1 Zone zoned C-1 (Neighborhood Commercial) of the Land Use 
Schedule (5-4-1, Table 1) directly abuts a residential use, a twenty foot (20’) 
wide landscaped buffer shall be installed between the uses. If deemed 
necessary, the City may require the commercial parcel to include a privacy 
fence and/or berm.  

 
B. When a commercial land use that is listed as an allowed or special use in the 

zoned C-2 or C-3 zones or when any industrial use directly abuts a 
residential use, a twenty five foot (25’) landscape buffer shall be installed 
between the uses. If deemed necessary, the City may require the 
commercial parcel to include a privacy fence and/or berm.  

 



             
        

11 
 

 
G. Notices        Dates: 

      

Newspaper Notification      11/22/2022 
Circulation to Agencies      11/21/2022 
Posted on Website “Public Hearing Tab”   11/21/2022  

 
H. Applicable Codes and Standards: 
  

Idaho State Statue Title 67, Chapter 65. Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction 
and Middleton’s Supplement thereto. Middleton City Code 1-3, 1-14, 4-5, 5-1 and 5-4. 

 
I. Planning & Zoning Commission Recommendations:  The Planning & Zoning 

Commission considered these proposed code amendments in two separate public 
hearings on June 13 & October 17, 2022.   The Commission recommended approval of all 
proposed code amendments with the following additional recommendations: 

 
1. The definition for “Flex Space” in section 1-3-1 should be “tightened up” and 

revised to better define the type of industrial uses versus other uses to be 
contained in the “Flex Space.” 

2. City Council should consider the advisability of allowing “Flex Space” uses in 
the Mixed-Use Zone where residential units are located. 

3. Add the word “paved” before the words “pedestrian facility” in Section 5-4-10-
2(C)(5)(b).  

 
(See Findings of Facts, Conclusions of Law & Recommendations attached as 
Exhibit “B”.) 

 
J. Conclusions and Recommended Conditions of Approval:  Per State law, City Council 

should base any decision on general facts and conclusions of law.   
 

Planning Staff has set forth above findings that the proposed code changes do not conflict 
with the City’s Comprehensive Plan. 
 
As to conclusions of law, Planning Staff finds that City Council has the authority to hear 
this application and to approve or deny the application.  Additionally, Planning Staff finds 
that all public notice requirements were met. Planning Staff further set forth the portions of 
the Idaho State Code and Middleton City Code to be considered in making a decision on 
the application.    
 
If the Council is inclined to approve the proposed code changes, Planning Staff does not 
recommend any conditions of approval.    

Prepared by Middleton P&Z Official, Roberta Stewart   Dated: 12/1/2022  

 



             
        

12 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 

Proposed Changes to MCC 5-4-10-2 – Road Standards 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



             
        

13 
 

PROPOSED CHANGES: 
 
5-4-10-2: ROADS: 
 
   A.   Road Design Requirements: Roads, including collectors as designated by the City of Middleton, 
shall be designed incorporating the principles of balanced blocks, curvilinear layout, City approved 
access points, minimization of cul-de-sacs, and connectivity throughout the development and to 
adjacent properties. 

   B.   Frontage Roads: Where a subdivision/development abuts or contains an existing or proposed 
arterial road, railroad or limited access highway, the City may require frontage roads, or such other 
treatment for the appropriate use of the lot. 

   C.   Adjacent Streets Half Road Dedication: 

1. The developer is responsible for improving all street frontages adjacent to the development 

site or internal to the development as required below, regardless of whether access is taken to 

all of the adjacent streets.   

 

2. All utility relocation costs, including irrigation relocation costs, associated with improving street 

frontages adjacent to the site shall be borne by the developer. 

 

3. Developer/Owner shall dedicate, without compensation, additional right-of-way to provide the 

right-of-way width required by City code and standards.   

 

4. In a phased project, adjacent streets shall be improved and dedicated on a phase-by-phase 

basis up to phase three (3).  Any adjacent street improvements for phases four (4) and above 

shall be constructed and dedicated no later than phase three (3) final plat approval unless 

otherwise approved by City Council.  City Council may, at its discretion, require improvement 

and dedication of all adjacent streets by Phase one (1) final plat approval. 

 

5. Required Improvements: 

 

a. Adjacent Streets (Existing or New):   

 

i. Required improvements to an adjacent street shall consist of pavement 

widening to one-half the required width, including curb, gutter and sidewalk 

(minimum eight (8’) foot detached or five (5’) foot attached), plus twelve (12’) 

feet of additional pavement widening beyond the centerline established for the 

street to provide an adequate roadway surface.  City Council may approve an 

amount less than twelve (12) foot for pavement widening past centerline if the 

one-half road design does not require all of the twelve (12) foot pavement 

allotment to create an adequate roadway surface, but the roadway travel 

surface may not be less than twenty (20’) feet of pavement. Pavement shall be 

crowned at the ultimate centerline. A three (3’) foot wide gravel shoulder and a 

borrow ditch sized to accommodate the roadway storm runoff shall be 

constructed on the unimproved side. The shoulder and borrow on the 

unimproved side may be eliminated if ownership or site conditions prevent or 

unreasonably impede construction of the same.  



             
        

14 
 

 

ii. Minor improvements to existing streets adjacent to a proposed development 

project may be required. These improvements are to correct deficiencies or 

replace deteriorated facilities. Included are sidewalk construction or 

replacement; curb and gutter construction or replacement; replacement of 

unused driveways with curb, gutter and sidewalk; installation or reconstruction 

of pedestrian ramps; pavement repairs; signs; traffic control devices; and other 

similar items. 

 

b. Off-Site Streets:  If the proposed development is not served by a public street that is fully 

improved to City standards (curb, gutter, sidewalk) or with a minimum of thirty (30) feet of 

pavement, then prior to final plat of phase one (1), the developer shall provide thirty (30) 

feet of pavement with three (3) foot gravel shoulders from the site to a public street 

specified by the City; or the developer shall provide twenty four (24) feet of pavement with 

three (3) foot gravel shoulders and a minimum six (6) foot wide detached asphalt/concrete 

paved pedestrian facility, from the site to a public street specified by the City. 

 

      1.    Half road dedications shall be discouraged; provided, however, the City may accept a partial 
road dedication when such road forms the boundary of the proposed subdivision and is deemed to be 
necessary for the orderly development of the neighborhood, and provided the City finds it will be 
appropriate to require the dedication of the remainder of the right-of-way when the adjoining property 
is developed. When a partial road exists adjoining a proposed subdivision, the required right-of-way 
shall be dedicated and the half road shall be treated in the same manner as a full road. 

      2.   Whenever there is an existing half road right-of-way adjacent to a lot to be subdivided, the 
developer shall be required to improve, as a minimum, a half road section plus twelve feet (12'). 

   D.   Rights-Of-Way Width: 

      1.   Road right-of-way width is to be measured from property line to property line (total road right-
of-way) and property line to centerline (half road right-of-way). The minimum rights-of-way for the 
following roads shall be: 

Arterials And Collectors Half Road Right-Of-Way Total Road Right-Of-Way 

Blessinger Road 50 feet 100 feet 

Can-Ada Road 50 feet 100 feet 

Canyon Lane 50 feet 100 feet 

Cemetery Road 50 feet 100 feet 

Concord Street east of 

Hartley Ln. 

50 30 feet 100 60 feet 

Concord Street west of 

Hartley Lane 

40 feet 80 feet 

Cornell Street 50 feet 100 feet 

Douglas Avenue 50 feet 100 feet 



             
        

15 
 

Duff Lane 50 feet 100 feet 

El Paso Road 50 feet 100 feet 

Ember Road 50 feet 100 feet 

Emmett Road 50 feet 100 feet 

Foothills Road 50 feet 100 feet 

Freezeout Road 50 feet 100 feet 

Hall Avenue 50 feet 100 feet 

Hartley Lane 50 feet 100 feet 

Harvard Street 50 feet 100 feet 

Kingsbury Road 50 feet 100 feet 

Landruff Lane 50 feet 100 feet 

Lansing Lane 50 feet 100 feet 

Lee Avenue 50 feet 100 feet 

Meadow Park Street 50 feet 100 feet 

Middleton Road 50 feet 100 feet 

Peel Street 50 feet 100 feet 

Purple Sage Road 50 feet 100 feet 

River Street Sawtooth 

Lake Street 

50 feet 100 feet 

Willis Road 50 feet 100 feet 

Wood Avenue 50 feet 100 feet 

9th Street 50 feet 100 feet 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



             
        

16 
 

EXHIBIT “B” 

 

P&Z Commission FCRs 










	ADP7D4B.tmp
	Roll Call: Kiser – Yes, Huggins – Yes, Murray – Yes, O’Meara – Yes. Approved unanimously.
	Roll Call: Kiser – Yes, Huggins – Yes, Murray – Yes, O’Meara – Yes. Approved unanimous.
	Roll Call: Kiser – Yes, Huggins – Yes, Murray – Yes, O’Meara – Yes. Approved unanimous.

	Hidden Mill City Council 12.7..22.pdf
	Hidden Mill Subdivision
	A. Public Hearing Date: December 7, 2022 (Public Hearing after Request for Reconsideration was granted on November 2, 2022).
	B. Project Description: Subdivision with 20 single family buildable lots, two common lots, and two private lane lots on 6.65 acres of vacant land located north of Bridgewater Creek Subdivision (Tax Parcels No. R33891010).
	C. Applications: Developer/Owner has submitted an application for Preliminary Plat. A separate administrative application for floodplain permit is proceeding simultaneously with this preliminary plat application.
	Developer brought this preliminary plat application before City Council on September 21, 2022.  Council denied the application based upon information regarding overcrowding in the Middleton School District. Council stated that Applicant may gain appro...
	Developer/Applicant subsequently met with School District Staff and timely submitted a “Request for Reconsideration” of the denial.  The request was heard on November 2, 2022, and City Council granted the Request, triggering the need for this new publ...
	D. Current Zoning & Property Condition:  The property is within City limits.  It is an infill project zoned R-3 (Single-Family Residential). It is surrounded primarily by City property zoned R-3. City property zoned R-4 is located to the north.
	Developer/Builder will contribute to surrounding road improvements by paying $5,050 to the Mid-Star Transportation Impact program for each building permit issued.
	G. Pathway, Sidewalks & Open Space: A 10’ wide paved pathway will run along the Mill Slough. (See pathway highlighted in yellow below.) Two benches and pet waste station will be strategically installed along the side of the pathway. The pathway will c...
	Open space for the development is 22% if one considers only the pathway and gathering area with benches.  It is 27% if the 2nd large grassy retention area is included.  Minimum open space required is 5%.
	H. Middleton Rural Fire District: Deputy Chief Victor Islas of Middleton Rural Fire District has requested developer to install a fire suppression sprinkler system in each home to mitigate for lack of a 2nd access. This will result in the subdivision ...
	J. Preliminary Plat Application: The subdivision contains 20 home lots, 2 common lots, and 2 private drive lots, all to be completed in a single phase.
	[A full-size copy of the pre-plat is attached as Exhibit “A”.]
	Applicant is requesting a variance to not place the “perimeter fence” on the actual subdivision perimeter as required by MCC 5-4-11-2.  Council may grant waivers or exceptions to City standards and dimensions when considering a preliminary plat. (MCC ...
	A good portion of the perimeter boundary is located in the middle of the slough so the fence cannot be placed on the outer boundary. It is physically impossible. Therefore, Applicant is requesting that the perimeter fence be placed on the rear boundar...
	FINDINGS:
	Planning Staff finds that the preliminary plat complies with all standards set forth in City and State codes except for the fencing which is part of the waiver request directly above.
	Additionally, City Engineer, Amy Woodruff, has recommended approval of the preliminary Plat.  (See Recommendation Letter attached as Exhibit “B”.)
	F.
	G.
	H.
	I.
	J.
	K. Comprehensive Plan & Land Use Map: Applicant’s project complies with the Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map. The intended use is Residential which is an allowable use in the Mixed-Use area (green) shown on the Land Use Map.
	Additionally, Applicant’s project complies with the Goals, Objectives, and Strategies of the 2019 Middleton Comprehensive Plan as follows:
	a. Goal 2: Preserve and protect private property rights as required by Idaho law.
	b. Goals 3: The project provides safe transportation services by creating on-site sidewalks and pathways as extensions or connections to public pathways or sidewalks.
	c. Goal 4: The project will establish a good quality of life with development that pays through impact fees and property taxes for the public services it receives when infrastructure is installed.
	d. Goals 10, 22 and 23: the addition of pathways increases recreational activity and promotes walkability, social interaction, and health in the Community.
	e. Goal 11: The project will allow dwelling types that match residents’ lifestyles by promoting in-fill housing improvements.
	L. Comments from City Engineer and City Staff:  See attached as Exhibit “C”.
	Staff Comments dated 4/5/2022
	M. Comments from Agencies: See comments from MSD #134, Drainage Ditch #2, ITD and Middleton Rural Fire attached as Exhibit “D”.
	Of note, when City Council denied Applicant’s preliminary plat application at the September 21, 2022, hearing, City Council noted that Applicant may obtain approval once they met with School District Staff to discuss a way to mitigate overcrowding in ...
	N. Comments Received from Surrounding Landowners: See attached Exhibit “F”
	O. Notices:        Dates:
	Neighborhood Meeting      11/1/2021
	Newspaper Notification      11/22/2022
	Radius notification mailed to Landowners within 500’  11/21/2022
	Circulation to Agencies      11/21/2022
	Sign Posting property      11/21/2022
	Q. Applicable Codes and Standards:
	Idaho Code Secs., 67-6503, 67-6509, 67-6511, 67-6513, 50-1301 through 50-1329.
	Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, the Middleton Supplement to the Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction. Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-15, 5-1, 5-2, 5-3, and 5-4.
	R. Planning & Zoning Recommendations & Approvals: The Planning & Zoning Commission heard the Hidden Mill application at the August 8, 2022, public hearing. The Commission recommended that City Council approve the application for Preliminary Plat subje...
	S. Conclusions and Recommended Conditions of Approval:
	According to Idaho State Law and the Middleton City Code, any land use decision City Council makes must be based upon Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law.
	Findings of Facts: Planning Staff has set forth the Findings of Facts above. If the Council agrees with the findings of facts in the staff report and those presented at the hearing on this matter, then Council may affirm the findings of facts while ma...
	Conclusions of Law: Planning Staff finds that the City Council has the authority to hear this application and to approve or deny it, with or without conditions. Planning Staff also finds that all public notice requirements were met, and Staff identifi...
	If the Council is inclined to approve the Hidden Mill Preliminary Plat application based upon the above Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law, then Planning Staff recommends that any approval be subject to the following conditions:
	1. City of Middleton municipal domestic water, fire flow and sanitary sewer services are to be extended to serve the subdivision.
	2. All City Engineer review comments are to be completed and approved.
	3. All City Planner comments to be completed and approved.
	4. All comments from MRFD to be completed and approved.
	5. All Floodplain Administrator comments are to be completed and approved.
	6. Pathway along the slough is to be 10 ft wide with a public access easement.  Developer/HOA to maintain and repair the public pathway.
	7. All landscaping and amenities to be installed in compliance with the submitted landscape plan and preliminary plat.
	8. Developer shall create a plan for operation, maintenance, and repair of stormwater facilities (O&M Plan) contained on the project site. The O&M Plan shall be recorded with the CC&Rs. Developer and/or HOA must maintain and operate the subdivision st...
	9. Sewer and water capacity to be reserved at the time the City approves the construction drawings for the project.
	Lastly, if the Council denies the application, Council should state on the record what Applicant can do, if anything, to gain Council approval.
	Prepared by: Roberta Stewart – Planning & Zoning Official   Dated: 11/30/2022

	Hidden Mill City Council 12.7..22.pdf
	Hidden Mill Subdivision
	A. Public Hearing Date: December 7, 2022 (Public Hearing after Request for Reconsideration was granted on November 2, 2022).
	B. Project Description: Subdivision with 20 single family buildable lots, two common lots, and two private lane lots on 6.65 acres of vacant land located north of Bridgewater Creek Subdivision (Tax Parcels No. R33891010).
	C. Applications: Developer/Owner has submitted an application for Preliminary Plat. A separate administrative application for floodplain permit is proceeding simultaneously with this preliminary plat application.
	Developer brought this preliminary plat application before City Council on September 21, 2022.  Council denied the application based upon information regarding overcrowding in the Middleton School District. Council stated that Applicant may gain appro...
	Developer/Applicant subsequently met with School District Staff and timely submitted a “Request for Reconsideration” of the denial.  The request was heard on November 2, 2022, and City Council granted the Request, triggering the need for this new publ...
	D. Current Zoning & Property Condition:  The property is within City limits.  It is an infill project zoned R-3 (Single-Family Residential). It is surrounded primarily by City property zoned R-3. City property zoned R-4 is located to the north.
	Developer/Builder will contribute to surrounding road improvements by paying $5,050 to the Mid-Star Transportation Impact program for each building permit issued.
	G. Pathway, Sidewalks & Open Space: A 10’ wide paved pathway will run along the Mill Slough. Two benches and pet waste station will be strategically installed along the side of the pathway. The pathway will connect to the existing pathways on each sid...
	Open space for the development is 22% if one considers only the pathway and gathering area with benches.  It is 27% if the 2nd large grassy retention area is included.  Minimum open space required is 5%.
	H. Middleton Rural Fire District: Deputy Chief Victor Islas of Middleton Rural Fire District has requested developer to install a fire suppression sprinkler system in each home to mitigate for lack of a 2nd access. This will result in the subdivision ...
	J. Preliminary Plat Application: The subdivision contains 20 home lots, 2 common lots, and 2 private drive lots, all to be completed in a single phase.
	[A full-size copy of the pre-plat is attached as Exhibit “A”.]
	Applicant is requesting a variance to not place the “perimeter fence” on the actual subdivision perimeter as required by MCC 5-4-11-2.  Council may grant waivers or exceptions to City standards and dimensions when considering a preliminary plat. (MCC ...
	A good portion of the perimeter boundary is located in the middle of the slough so the fence cannot be placed on the outer boundary. It is physically impossible. Therefore, Applicant is requesting that the perimeter fence be placed on the rear boundar...
	FINDINGS:
	Planning Staff finds that the preliminary plat complies with all standards set forth in City and State codes except for the fencing which is part of the waiver request directly above.
	Additionally, City Engineer, Amy Woodruff, has recommended approval of the preliminary Plat.  (See Recommendation Letter attached as Exhibit “B”.)
	F.
	G.
	H.
	I.
	J.
	K. Comprehensive Plan & Land Use Map: Applicant’s project complies with the Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map. The intended use is Residential which is an allowable use in the Mixed-Use area (green) shown on the Land Use Map.
	Additionally, Applicant’s project complies with the Goals, Objectives, and Strategies of the 2019 Middleton Comprehensive Plan as follows:
	a. Goal 2: Preserve and protect private property rights as required by Idaho law.
	b. Goals 3: The project provides safe transportation services by creating on-site sidewalks and pathways as extensions or connections to public pathways or sidewalks.
	c. Goal 4: The project will establish a good quality of life with development that pays through impact fees and property taxes for the public services it receives when infrastructure is installed.
	d. Goals 10, 22 and 23: the addition of pathways increases recreational activity and promotes walkability, social interaction, and health in the Community.
	e. Goal 11: The project will allow dwelling types that match residents’ lifestyles by promoting in-fill housing improvements.
	L. Comments from City Engineer and City Staff:  See attached as Exhibit “C”.
	Staff Comments dated 4/5/2022
	M. Comments from Agencies: See comments from MSD #134, Drainage Ditch #2, ITD and Middleton Rural Fire attached as Exhibit “D”.
	Of note, when City Council denied Applicant’s preliminary plat application at the September 21, 2022, hearing, City Council noted that Applicant may obtain approval once they met with School District Staff to discuss a way to mitigate overcrowding in ...
	N. Comments Received from Surrounding Landowners: See attached Exhibit “F”
	O. Notices:        Dates:
	Neighborhood Meeting      11/1/2021
	Newspaper Notification      11/22/2022
	Radius notification mailed to Landowners within 500’  11/21/2022
	Circulation to Agencies      11/21/2022
	Sign Posting property      11/21/2022
	Q. Applicable Codes and Standards:
	Idaho Code Secs., 67-6503, 67-6509, 67-6511, 67-6513, 50-1301 through 50-1329.
	Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, the Middleton Supplement to the Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction. Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-15, 5-1, 5-2, 5-3, and 5-4.
	R. Planning & Zoning Recommendations & Approvals: The Planning & Zoning Commission heard the Hidden Mill application at the August 8, 2022, public hearing. The Commission recommended that City Council approve the application for Preliminary Plat subje...
	S. Conclusions and Recommended Conditions of Approval:
	According to Idaho State Law and the Middleton City Code, any land use decision City Council makes must be based upon Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law.
	Findings of Facts: Planning Staff has set forth the Findings of Facts above. If the Council agrees with the findings of facts in the staff report and those presented at the hearing on this matter, then Council may affirm the findings of facts while ma...
	Conclusions of Law: Planning Staff finds that the City Council has the authority to hear this application and to approve or deny it, with or without conditions. Planning Staff also finds that all public notice requirements were met, and Staff identifi...
	If the Council is inclined to approve the Hidden Mill Preliminary Plat application based upon the above Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law, then Planning Staff recommends that any approval be subject to the following conditions:
	1. City of Middleton municipal domestic water, fire flow and sanitary sewer services are to be extended to serve the subdivision.
	2. All City Engineer review comments are to be completed and approved.
	3. All City Planner comments to be completed and approved.
	4. All comments from MRFD to be completed and approved.
	5. All Floodplain Administrator comments are to be completed and approved.
	6. Pathway along the slough is to be 10 ft wide with a public access easement.  Developer/HOA to maintain and repair the public pathway.
	7. All landscaping and amenities to be installed in compliance with the submitted landscape plan and preliminary plat.
	8. Developer shall create a plan for operation, maintenance, and repair of stormwater facilities (O&M Plan) contained on the project site. The O&M Plan shall be recorded with the CC&Rs. Developer and/or HOA must maintain and operate the subdivision st...
	9. Sewer and water capacity to be reserved at the time the City approves the construction drawings for the project.
	Lastly, if the Council denies the application, Council should state on the record what Applicant can do, if anything, to gain Council approval.
	Prepared by: Roberta Stewart – Planning & Zoning Official   Dated: 11/30/2022
	EXHIBIT “A”
	Proposed Preliminary Plat
	EXHIBIT “B”
	City Engineer Recommendation of Approval
	EXHIBIT “C”
	Engineering & Planning Comments
	EXHIBIT "D”
	Agency Comments
	EXHIBIT "E”
	2nd letter submitted by MSD #134
	EXHIBIT "F”
	Landowner comments
	EXHIBIT "G”
	P&Z Commission FCR

	Fire Access Exhibit - 36ft.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	C1.0


	Fire Access Exhibit - 50ft.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	C1.1


	Fire Access Exhibit - Fire Sprinkler Lots.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	C1.0


	Fire Access Exhibit - Private Drive.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	C1.2


	Executed FCR - Hidden Mill PZ.pdf
	Hidden Mill P&Z 8.8.22 Staff Report w Exhibits.pdf
	Hidden Mill Exhibits PZ.pdf
	2022.07.21 Hidden Mill Sub Pre Plat Landscape Plan.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	22-2383 100 AR Landscape Plan-L100
	22-2383 100 AR Landscape Plan-L150







	Black Powder Staff Report - CC.pdf
	Black Powder Subdivision
	Snapshot Summary
	A. City Council Public Hearing Date: December 7, 2022 (Continued from November 16, 2022.)
	B. Project Description: Single Family residential subdivision located at 0 Cemetery Road, Middleton (tax parcel no., R38207).  Project contains 105 single family home lots and 17 common lots on 40.28 acres of vacant land. Amenities include park with p...
	C. Application Requests:  Applications include (1) annexation and rezone to R-3 (Single Family Residential), (2) Preliminary Plat, and (3) Development Agreement.
	D. Current Zoning & Property Condition:  The property is currently vacant land in Canyon County zoned “Agricultural.”  It is contiguous to Middleton City limits and is surrounded on three sides by City property zoned R-3.  To the north is County prope...
	E. City Services:  Water and sewer are immediately adjacent to the project site.  Sewer will connect through the sewer line installed in W. Highlands Phase 17.  Water will connect to a large water main located in Cemetery Road.
	G. Traffic, Access & Streets:
	The primary access for the subdivision will be off of Cemetery Road and the future half road portion of Meadow Park Street. Stub roads to the east and south will connect into Phases 17 and 19 of the W. Highlands Subdivision.
	City streets are primarily built by Developers. The Black Powder Developer, at its own cost, will be required to construct the frontage improvements along Cemetery Road and construct the brand new ½ road section of future Meadow Park Street.
	The intersection of Cemetery Road and State Hwy 44 is of concern to City Engineer and City Staff. Additionally, A review of Black Powder’s Traffic Study reveals that in 2023 the Cemetery Road/Hwy 44 intersection will operate at a Level of Service “D” ...
	It should be noted that the Traffic Study also states that all other intersections studied operate at acceptable standards in 2023 and will require no mitigation.
	Developer will be contributing, in part, to the improvements of the Cemetery & SH44 intersection via its Mid-Star Transportation Impact Fee payments.  The fees to be collected will total approximately $530,250.00, and the fees will be used for improve...
	However, recognizing that SH44 & Cemetery Road pose a particular problem, Developer has agreed to pay an additional $150,000.00 as a “Voluntary Payment” over and above Mid-Star fees.  Although the transportation money can be used for any transportatio...
	City Council has recently commissioned a traffic study to consider the intersections along the SH44 corridor.  The Traffic Study project is a collaboration between Middleton and ITD to determine if interim traffic signals are warranted at various SH44...
	To further help with road improvements, Developer has also agreed to pay all Mid-Star impact fees “up front” at each Phase’s final plat rather than piecemeal at building permit. The goal is to accelerate the funding of the Mid-Star program.  Paragraph...
	Finally, the portion of Meadow Park Street to be constructed by Developer will lead to the future Meadow Park School Site. As a condition of approval, Developer should be required to stripe a crosswalk across Cemetery Road to ensure safe pedestrian ac...
	H. Schools:  The Black Powder Subdivision is in the Middleton School District #134. Elementary school children will attend the Heights Elementary School. Superintendent Marc Gee reported recently that Heights Elementary is at 134% capacity. However, h...
	The City has no jurisdiction or control over the School system.  Instead, the City can only support and collaborate with the School officials to try to address the over-crowding problem experienced by the schools.  State law does not allow impact fees...
	I. Annexation and Rezone:  Applicants are requesting that the 40 acre project parcel be annexed into the City of Middleton with a zone change from County “Agricultural” to City R-3 (Single Family Residential).
	There are two findings that must be made before Annexation can be approved: (1) the property must be contiguous to City limits and (2) the annexation is deemed to be an “orderly development” of the City allowing “efficient and economical extension” of...
	An application for rezone requires two findings before City Council can approve the applications: (1) the rezone will not adversely affect the City’s delivery of services and (2) the rezone request is not in conflict with the Comprehensive Plan. (Idah...
	FINDINGS:
	With respect to annexation, Planning Staff finds that Applicant’s project meets the criteria of contiguity and requirement that city sewer and water be adjacent and readily available. Middleton Rural Fire Department has not submitted comments or other...
	As to traffic, the Traffic Study for the project noted that all intersections operate at acceptable levels except Cemetery & Hwy 44 at peak hours. An interim traffic signal would rectify the deficiency, and Developer has agreed to pay an additional $1...
	As to the rezone application, Planning Staff finds that the rezone will not adversely affect the City’s ability to deliver sewer and water. Traffic and schools are impacted, however, as noted above.
	Finally, as will be shown below, Applicant’s project both complies with and conflicts with the City’s Comprehensive Plan.
	J. Preliminary Plat Application:   The preliminary plat shows two phases of development. It also complies with all the standards and dimensions set forth in City Code for the R-3 Zone. Applicant is not requesting any variances from Codes and Standards...
	[A full copy of the proposed preliminary plat is attached as Exhibit “B”.]
	Findings:
	Planning Staff finds that the preliminary plat complies with all dimensional standards and requirements of the Middleton City Code, ISPWC, Supplement to ISPWC, and Idaho State Code.
	K. Development Agreement:  Applications for annexation/rezone are generally accompanied by an application for Development Agreement (“DA”). Attached as Exhibit “C” is the proposed Development Agreement.  The Developer has used the City’s DA form, and ...
	1. Developer will develop the community generally consistent with the concept plans attached to the DA.  (Para. 3.3)
	2. Developer to stripe a crosswalk at the intersection of Cemetery Road and Meadow Park Street to provide safe access across Cemetery Road for pedestrians walking to the future Meadow Park School site to the east. (Para. 3.2)
	3. Developer to provide the following amenities: playground structure, benches, and shade structure with at least two picnic tables.(Para. 3.7)
	4. Developer shall improve the half road sections of Cemetery Road and Meadow Park Street at its own cost. (Para. 3.1)
	5. Developer to make a voluntary payment of $150,000 to City in light of the fact that the intersection of Cemetery Road & Hwy 44 will operate at a Level of Service “D” which is below City’s minimum standard of LOS “C”. Although City has the right to ...
	6. Developers will have two years to obtain final plat approval for Phase 1. Developer may seek two 1-year extensions, thereby allowing a total of 4 years to bring Phase 1 to final plat approval.  After Phase 1 final plat, Developer will have two year...
	7. Developer to construct interior local roads in conformance with the road section shown on the preliminary plat. City local section contains 5’ wide attached sidewalk. Developer will construct roadway with a 5’ wide detached sidewalk with 7’ mow str...
	[A full copy of the proposed Development Agreement is attached to this Staff Report as Exhibit “C”.]
	L. Comprehensive Plan & Land Use Map:  Applicant’s project complies with the Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map because the proposed R-3 zone correlates with the “Residential Use” shown on the Future Land Use Map.
	Applicant’s project also complies with the following Goals, Objectives, and Strategies of the 2019 Middleton Comprehensive Plan:
	a. Goal 4: The project will establish a good quality of life with development that pays through impact fees and property taxes for the public services it receives. Quality lots for residential use also increase the quality of life and general welfare ...
	b. Goal 6: Water, sewer, and adjacent road systems have been expanded in an orderly manner consistent with population growth.
	c. Goal 10: Project provides playgrounds, pathways and outdoor recreational activities.
	d. Goal 11: The housing type matches the residents’ lifestyle in the area the project is located.
	Applicant’s project, however, is in conflict with Goals #1 and 3 to provide safe roads and adequate delivery of services, including adequate schools.  However, contributing additional monies for the improvements to Cemetery Road & Hwy 44 mitigate this...
	M. Comments Received from Surrounding Landowners:  City has received comments from the public. See comments attached as Exhibit “D”.
	N. Comments from Agencies:  City received comments from COMPASS, ITD and Middleton School District #134. (Copies of Agency comments are attached as Exhibit “E”.)
	O. Comments from City Engineer and Planning Staff:   Copies of engineering and planning staff comments are attached as Exhibit “F”.
	P. Application Information:  Applicants are Adam Capell/Toll Brothers and Nicolette Womack/Kimley-Horn Engineering (3103 W. Sheryl Dr. #100, Meridian 83642 / 950 W. Bannock Street, #1100, Boise, 83702).  Application was accepted on 1/25/2022.
	Q. Notices & Neighborhood Meeting:    Dates:
	Newspaper Notification     11/1/2022
	Radius notice to adjacent landowners   11/1/2022
	Circulation to Agencies     10/31/2022
	Sign Posting property     10/31/2022
	Neighborhood Meeting     1/10/2022
	R. Applicable Codes and Standards:
	Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, the Middleton Supplement to the Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-16, 5-1, 5-2, 5-3, and 5-4, and Idaho Code Title 67, Chapter 65 & Title 50, Chapters 2 and 13.   ...
	S. P&Z Recommendation:
	The Black Powder applications were considered by the P&Z Commission in a public hearing held on September 12, 2022.  The Commission recommended denial of all three applications based upon the fact that the governing bodies will not have sufficient inf...
	T. Conclusions and Recommended Conditions of Approval:
	City Council is tasked with denying or approving Developer’s applications for annexation/rezone, development agreement, and preliminary plat, with or without conditions of approval.
	Per State law and the Middleton City Code, any decision and final order must be based upon findings of facts and conclusions of law.
	As to Findings of Facts, Planning Staff has set forth findings of facts above in parentheses.
	As to Conclusions of Law, Planning Staff finds that the City Council has the authority to hear these applications and to approve or deny the applications, with or without conditions.  Additionally, Planning Staff notes that all public notice requireme...
	Annexation/Rezone, Preliminary Plat, and Development Agreement Applications: If the Council is inclined to recommend approval of the annexation/rezone, preliminary plat, and development agreement applications, then Planning Staff recommends that any a...
	1. Developer to stripe a crosswalk at the intersection of Meadow Park Street and Cemetery Road to ensure a safe route for children to walk east to the future Meadow Park School site.
	2. City municipal domestic water, fire flow and sanitary sewer services are to be extended to serve the subdivision.
	3. Developer to comply with all terms of the Development Agreement approved for the project.
	4. Developer to install landscaping and all amenities in compliance with the Landscape Plan and preliminary plat submitted with the application.
	5. Developer shall create a plan for operation, maintenance and repair of stormwater facilities (O&M Plan) contained on the project site. The O&M Plan shall be recorded with the CC&Rs. Developer and/or HOA must maintain and operate the subdivision sto...
	6. Developer to construct, at its own cost, all frontage improvements on Cemetery Road and Meadow Park Street adjacent to the project parcel.
	7. Owner/Developer to pay all City required pro-rata share traffic fees as required by MCC 5-4-3 prior to approval of final plat for Phase 1.
	8. All City Engineer review comments are to be completed and approved.
	9. All Planner comments are to be completed and approved.
	10. All requirements of the Middleton Rural Fire District are to be completed and approved.
	11. Sewer and water capacity to be reserved at the time City approves the construction drawings for the project.
	Finally, if the Council denies the applications, then the Council should state what the applicant could do, if anything, to obtain approval. (Middleton City Code 1-14(E)(8)).
	Prepared by Roberta Stewart         Dated: 12/2/2022 Planning & Zoning Director
	EXHIBIT “A”
	Pages 8 * 23, Black Powder Traffic Study

	Black Powder CC Staff Report.pdf
	Black Powder Subdivision
	Snapshot Summary
	A. City Council Public Hearing Date: November 16, 2022
	B. Project Description: Single Family residential subdivision located at 0 Cemetery Road, Middleton (tax parcel no., R38207).  Project contains 105 single family home lots and 17 common lots on 40.28 acres of vacant land. Amenities include park with p...
	C. Application Requests:  Applications include (1) annexation and rezone to R-3 (Single Family Residential), (2) Preliminary Plat, and (3) Development Agreement.
	D. Current Zoning & Property Condition:  The property is currently vacant land in Canyon County zoned “Agricultural.”  It is contiguous to Middleton City limits and is surrounded on three sides by City property zoned R-3.  To the north is County prope...
	E. City Services:  Water and sewer are immediately adjacent to the project site.  Sewer will connect through the sewer line installed in W. Highlands Phase 17.  Water will connect to a large water main located in Cemetery Road.
	G. Traffic, Access & Streets:
	The primary access for the subdivision will be off of Cemetery Road and the future half road portion of Meadow Park Street. Stub roads to the east and south will connect into Phases 17 and 19 of the W. Highlands Subdivision.
	The intersection of Cemetery Road and State Hwy 44 are of concern to City Engineer and City Staff. ITD owns and controls Hwy 44, and City does not have jurisdiction to mandate any traffic controls along Hwy 44.  ITD has renewed its environmental studi...
	In light of this protracted time-line, City Staff has requested ITD to collaborate on a smaller traffic study (“TIS”) for Hwy 44 regarding interim traffic solutions that could alleviate current traffic congestion while ITD continues with its more comp...
	Until the City can review the commissioned TIS and determine whether there are interim traffic solutions acceptable to ITD, City Staff and Engineer would advise the governing bodies to deny, or at least be very cautious in approving, any new annexatio...
	City Staff further recommends against approval based upon Developer’s traffic study for Black Powder. A review of the TIS reveals that, in 2023, the Cemetery Road/Hwy 44 intersection will operate at a Level of Service “D” (“LOS” D) at peak hours due t...
	Of import, Black Powder’s TIS states at page 8 that installing a traffic signal at the intersection of Cemetery Road & SH 44 will raise the intersection to a LOS “C” during peak hours, thereby meeting City standards.
	Black Powder is a relatively small project with a minor impact on the Hwy 44 corridor.  However, Middleton’s current traffic congestion is created by the accumulation of numerous “minor” impacts.  The City is facing an integrated and “compounded” prob...
	However, if Black Powder Subdivision is ultimately approved, Developer, at its own cost, will be required to construct the frontage improvements along Cemetery Road and the ½ road section of future Meadow Park Street.  Pursuant to MCC 5-4-3, Developer...
	Of note, Applicant has offered to pay all Mid-Star Transportation Impact Fees prior to phase 1 final plat approval in order to accelerate the funding of the Mid-Star Transportation Impact program. So instead of collecting the $5,050 fee in a piecemeal...
	The portion of Meadow Park Street to be constructed by Developer will lead to the future Meadow Park School Site. As a condition of approval, Developer should be required to stripe a crosswalk across Cemetery Road to ensure safe pedestrian access for ...
	H. Schools:  The Black Powder Subdivision is in the Middleton School District #134. Elementary school children will attend the Heights Elementary School. Superintendent Marc Gee reported recently that Heights Elementary is at 134% capacity. However, h...
	The City has no jurisdiction or control over the School system.  Instead, the City can only support and collaborate with the School officials to try to address the over-crowding problem experienced by the schools.  State law does not allow impact fees...
	I. Annexation and Rezone:  Applicants are requesting that the 40 acre project parcel be annexed into the City of Middleton with a zone change from County “Agricultural” to City R-3 (Single Family Residential).
	There are two findings that must be made before Annexation can be approved: (1) the property must be contiguous to City limits and (2) the annexation is deemed to be an “orderly development” of the City allowing “efficient and economical extension” of...
	An application for rezone requires two findings before City Council can approve the applications: (1) the rezone will not adversely affect the City’s delivery of services and (2) the rezone request is not in conflict with the Comprehensive Plan. (Idah...
	FINDINGS:
	With respect to annexation, Planning Staff finds that Applicant’s project meets the criteria of contiguity and requirement that city sewer and water be adjacent and readily available.
	Planning Staff advises the governing bodies to carefully consider whether the proposed annexation is an “orderly development allowing the efficient and economical extension of services” and whether the City’s roadway system can serve the site. The Cit...
	The question in front of the governing boards is further complicated by the fact that a City generally needs growth and annexed property to remain healthy and vital. Moreover, roads in Middleton are built primarily by Developers.  It is the Developers...
	As to the rezone application, Planning Staff finds that the rezone will not adversely affect the City’s ability to deliver sewer and water as already noted above. However, the project may adversely impact the roadway system, affecting the City’s abili...
	However, again, it should be noted that projects such as Black Powder are the main “tool” for getting streets built in Middleton. Moreover, this project upholds many other goals and strategies set forth in the City’s comprehensive plan, as will be sho...
	J. Preliminary Plat Application:   The preliminary plat shows two phases of development. It also complies with all the standards and dimensions set forth in City Code for the R-3 Zone. Applicant is not requesting any variances from Codes and Standards...
	[A full copy of the proposed preliminary plat is attached as Exhibit “B”.]
	Findings:
	Planning Staff finds that the preliminary plat complies with all dimensional standards and requirements of the Middleton City Code, ISPWC, Supplement to ISPWC, and Idaho State Code.
	K. Development Agreement:  Applications for annexation/rezone are generally accompanied by an application for Development Agreement (“DA”). Attached as Exhibit “C” is the proposed Development Agreement.  The Developer has used the City’s DA form, and ...
	1. Developer will develop the community generally consistent with the concept plans attached to the DA.
	2. Developer to stripe a crosswalk at the intersection of Cemetery Road and Meadow Park Street to provide safe access across Cemetery Road for pedestrians walking to the future Meadow Park School site to the east.
	3. Developer to provide the following amenities: playground structure, benches, and shade structure with at least two picnic tables.
	4. Developer shall improve the half road sections of Cemetery Road and Meadow Park Street at its own cost.
	5. Developer to pay all code required Pro-rata Share Traffic Fees pursuant to MCC 5-4-3.
	6. Developers will have two years to obtain final plat approval for Phase 1. Developer may seek two 1-year extensions, thereby allowing a total of 4 years to bring Phase 1 to final plat approval.  After Phase 1 final plat, Developer will have two year...
	7. Developer to construct interior local roads in conformance with the road section shown on the preliminary plat. City local section contains 5’ wide attached sidewalk. Developer will construct roadway with a 5’ wide detached sidewalk with 7’ mow str...
	[A full copy of the proposed Development Agreement is attached to this Staff Report as Exhibit “C”.]
	L. Comprehensive Plan & Land Use Map:  Applicant’s project complies with the Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map because the proposed R-3 zone correlates with the “Residential Use” shown on the Future Land Use Map.
	As noted earlier, Applicant’s project is in conflict with Goals #1 and 3 to provide safe roads and adequate delivery of services.  However, it does comply with the following Goals, Objectives, and Strategies of the 2019 Middleton Comprehensive Plan as...
	a. Goal 4: The project will establish a good quality of life with development that pays through impact fees and property taxes for the public services it receives. Quality lots for residential use also increase the quality of life and general welfare ...
	b. Goal 6: Water, sewer, and adjacent road systems have been expanded in an orderly manner consistent with population growth.
	c. Goal 10: Project provides playgrounds, pathways and outdoor recreational activities.
	d. Goal 11: The housing type matches the residents’ lifestyle in the area the project is located.
	M. Comments Received from Surrounding Landowners:  City has received comments from the public. See comments attached as Exhibit “D”.
	N. Comments from Agencies:  City received a comment from COMPASS in April 2022 and ITD in August 2022. A comment letter from Middleton School District #134 was received on 9/8/2022. (Copies of Agency comments are attached as Exhibit “E”.)
	O. Comments from City Engineer and Planning Staff:   Copies of engineering and planning staff comments are attached as Exhibit “F”.
	P. Application Information:  Applicants are Adam Capell/Toll Brothers and Nicolette Womack/Kimley-Horn Engineering (3103 W. Sheryl Dr. #100, Meridian 83642 / 950 W. Bannock Street, #1100, Boise, 83702).  Application was accepted on 1/25/2022.
	Q. Notices & Neighborhood Meeting:    Dates:
	Newspaper Notification     11/1/2022
	Radius notice to adjacent landowners   11/1/2022
	Circulation to Agencies     10/31/2022
	Sign Posting property     10/31/2022
	Neighborhood Meeting     1/10/2022
	R. Applicable Codes and Standards:
	Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, the Middleton Supplement to the Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-16, 5-1, 5-2, 5-3, and 5-4, and Idaho Code Title 67, Chapter 65 & Title 50, Chapters 2 and 13.   ...
	S. P&Z Recommendation:
	The Black Powder applications were considered by the P&Z Commission in a public hearing held on September 12, 2022.  The Commission recommended denial of all three applications based upon the fact that the governing bodies will not have sufficient inf...
	T. Conclusions and Recommended Conditions of Approval:
	City Council is tasked with denying or approving Developer’s applications for annexation/rezone, development agreement, and preliminary plat, with or without conditions of approval.
	Per State law and the Middleton City Code, any final order must be based upon findings of facts and conclusions of law.
	As to Findings of Facts, Planning Staff has set forth findings of facts above in parentheses.  Staff also noted at great length that the governing boards should carefully consider whether approval of the Black Powder Subdivision will adversely affect ...
	Middleton’s current traffic situation is complicated, and it is further exacerbated by contending needs and requirements. Stopping growth may alleviate some traffic issues, but it can cause other problems.  A solution may take study, time, and collabo...
	As to Conclusions of Law, Planning Staff finds that the City Council has the authority to hear these applications and to approve or deny the applications, with or without conditions.  Additionally, Planning Staff notes that all public notice requireme...
	Annexation/Rezone, Preliminary Plat, and Development Agreement Applications: Although City Staff has recommended against approval of this annexation project, if the Council is inclined to recommend approval of the annexation/rezone, preliminary plat, ...
	1. Developer to stripe a crosswalk at the intersection of Meadow Park Street and Cemetery Road to ensure a safe route for children to walk east to the future Meadow Park School site.
	2. City municipal domestic water, fire flow and sanitary sewer services are to be extended to serve the subdivision.
	3. Developer to comply with all terms of the Development Agreement approved for the project.
	4. Developer to install landscaping and all amenities in compliance with the Landscape Plan and preliminary plat submitted with the application.
	5. Developer shall create a plan for operation, maintenance and repair of stormwater facilities (O&M Plan) contained on the project site. The O&M Plan shall be recorded with the CC&Rs. Developer and/or HOA must maintain and operate the subdivision sto...
	6. Developer to construct, at its own cost, all frontage improvements on Cemetery Road and Meadow Park Street adjacent to the project parcel.
	7. Owner/Developer to pay all City required pro-rata share traffic fees as required by MCC 5-4-3 prior to approval of final plat for Phase 1.
	8. All City Engineer review comments are to be completed and approved.
	9. All Planner comments are to be completed and approved.
	10. All requirements of the Middleton Rural Fire District are to be completed and approved.
	11. Sewer and water capacity to be reserved at the time City approves the construction drawings for the project.
	Finally, if the Council denies the applications, then the Council should state what the applicant could do, if anything, to obtain approval. (Middleton City Code 1-14(E)(8)).
	Prepared by Roberta Stewart         Dated: 11/9/2022 Planning & Zoning Director
	EXHIBIT “A”
	Page 8, Black Powder Traffic Study
	EXHIBIT “B”
	Proposed Preliminary Plat
	EXHIBIT “C”
	Proposed Development Agreement
	EXHIBIT “D”
	Comments from Public
	EXHIBIT “E”
	Comments from Agencies
	EXHIBIT “F”
	Comments from City Engineer & Planner
	EXHIBIT “G”
	P&Z Commission Recommendation
	EXHIBIT “B”

	Pre-Plat update 11-10-22 for CC hearing.pdf
	01 PRELIMINARY PLAT
	01 PRELIMINARY PLAT

	02 PRELIMINARY PLAT DETAILS
	02 PRELIMINARY PLAT DETAILS



	2nd revised staff report.pdf
	Black Powder Subdivision
	Snapshot Summary
	A. City Council Public Hearing Date: December 7, 2022 (Continued from November 16, 2022.)
	B. Project Description: Single Family residential subdivision located at 0 Cemetery Road, Middleton (tax parcel no., R38207).  Project contains 105 single family home lots and 17 common lots on 40.28 acres of vacant land. Amenities include park with p...
	C. Application Requests:  Applications include (1) annexation and rezone to R-3 (Single Family Residential), (2) Preliminary Plat, and (3) Development Agreement.
	D. Current Zoning & Property Condition:  The property is currently vacant land in Canyon County zoned “Agricultural.”  It is contiguous to Middleton City limits and is surrounded on three sides by City property zoned R-3.  To the north is County prope...
	E. City Services:  Water and sewer are immediately adjacent to the project site.  Sewer will connect through the sewer line installed in W. Highlands Phase 17.  Water will connect to a large water main located in Cemetery Road.
	G. Traffic, Access & Streets:
	The primary access for the subdivision will be off of Cemetery Road and the future half road portion of Meadow Park Street. Stub roads to the east and south will connect into Phases 17 and 19 of the W. Highlands Subdivision.
	City streets are primarily built by Developers. The Black Powder Developer, at its own cost, will be required to construct the frontage improvements along Cemetery Road and construct the brand new ½ road section of future Meadow Park Street.
	The intersection of Cemetery Road and State Hwy 44 is of concern to City Engineer and City Staff. Additionally, A review of Black Powder’s Traffic Study reveals that in 2023 the Cemetery Road/Hwy 44 intersection will operate at a Level of Service “D” ...
	It should be noted that the Traffic Study also states that all other intersections studied operate at acceptable standards in 2023 and will require no mitigation.
	Developer will be contributing, in part, to the improvements of the Cemetery & SH44 intersection via its Mid-Star Transportation Impact Fee payments.  The fees to be collected will total approximately $530,250.00, and the fees will be used for improve...
	However, recognizing that SH44 & Cemetery Road pose a particular problem, Developer has agreed to pay an additional $150,000.00 as a “Voluntary Payment” over and above Mid-Star fees.  Although the transportation money can be used for any transportatio...
	City Council has recently commissioned a traffic study to consider the intersections along the SH44 corridor.  The Traffic Study project is a collaboration between Middleton and ITD to determine if interim traffic signals are warranted at various SH44...
	To further help with road improvements, Developer has also agreed to pay all Mid-Star impact fees “up front” at each Phase’s final plat rather than piecemeal at building permit. The goal is to accelerate the funding of the Mid-Star program.  Paragraph...
	Finally, the portion of Meadow Park Street to be constructed by Developer will lead to the future Meadow Park School Site. As a condition of approval, Developer should be required to stripe a crosswalk across Cemetery Road to ensure safe pedestrian ac...
	H. Schools:  The Black Powder Subdivision is in the Middleton School District #134. Elementary school children will attend the Heights Elementary School. Superintendent Marc Gee reported recently that Heights Elementary is at 134% capacity. However, h...
	The City has no jurisdiction or control over the School system.  Instead, the City can only support and collaborate with the School officials to try to address the over-crowding problem experienced by the schools.  State law does not allow impact fees...
	I. Annexation and Rezone:  Applicants are requesting that the 40 acre project parcel be annexed into the City of Middleton with a zone change from County “Agricultural” to City R-3 (Single Family Residential).
	There are two findings that must be made before Annexation can be approved: (1) the property must be contiguous to City limits and (2) the annexation is deemed to be an “orderly development” of the City allowing “efficient and economical extension” of...
	An application for rezone requires two findings before City Council can approve the applications: (1) the rezone will not adversely affect the City’s delivery of services and (2) the rezone request is not in conflict with the Comprehensive Plan. (Idah...
	FINDINGS:
	With respect to annexation, Planning Staff finds that Applicant’s project meets the criteria of contiguity and requirement that city sewer and water be adjacent and readily available. Middleton Rural Fire Department has not submitted comments or other...
	As to traffic, the Traffic Study for the project noted that all intersections operate at acceptable levels except Cemetery & Hwy 44 at peak hours. An interim traffic signal would rectify the deficiency, and Developer has agreed to pay an additional $1...
	As to the rezone application, Planning Staff finds that the rezone will not adversely affect the City’s ability to deliver sewer and water. Traffic and schools are impacted, however, as noted above.
	Finally, as will be shown below, Applicant’s project both complies with and conflicts with the City’s Comprehensive Plan.
	J. Preliminary Plat Application:   The preliminary plat shows two phases of development. It also complies with all the standards and dimensions set forth in City Code for the R-3 Zone. Applicant is not requesting any variances from Codes and Standards...
	[A full copy of the proposed preliminary plat is attached as Exhibit “B”.]
	Findings:
	Planning Staff finds that the preliminary plat complies with all dimensional standards and requirements of the Middleton City Code, ISPWC, Supplement to ISPWC, and Idaho State Code.
	K. Development Agreement:  Applications for annexation/rezone are generally accompanied by an application for Development Agreement (“DA”). Attached as Exhibit “C” is the proposed Development Agreement.  The Developer has used the City’s DA form, and ...
	1. Developer will develop the community generally consistent with the concept plans attached to the DA.  (Para. 3.3)
	2. Developer to stripe a crosswalk at the intersection of Cemetery Road and Meadow Park Street to provide safe access across Cemetery Road for pedestrians walking to the future Meadow Park School site to the east. (Para. 3.2)
	3. Developer to provide the following amenities: playground structure, benches, and shade structure with at least two picnic tables.(Para. 3.7)
	4. Developer shall improve the half road sections of Cemetery Road and Meadow Park Street at its own cost. (Para. 3.1)
	5. Developer to make a voluntary payment of $150,000 to City in light of the fact that the intersection of Cemetery Road & Hwy 44 will operate at a Level of Service “D” which is below City’s minimum standard of LOS “C”. Although City has the right to ...
	6. Developers will have two years to obtain final plat approval for Phase 1. Developer may seek two 1-year extensions, thereby allowing a total of 4 years to bring Phase 1 to final plat approval.  After Phase 1 final plat, Developer will have two year...
	7. Developer to construct interior local roads in conformance with the road section shown on the preliminary plat. City local section contains 5’ wide attached sidewalk. Developer will construct roadway with a 5’ wide detached sidewalk with 7’ mow str...
	[A full copy of the proposed Development Agreement is attached to this Staff Report as Exhibit “C”.]
	L. Comprehensive Plan & Land Use Map:  Applicant’s project complies with the Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map because the proposed R-3 zone correlates with the “Residential Use” shown on the Future Land Use Map.
	Applicant’s project also complies with the following Goals, Objectives, and Strategies of the 2019 Middleton Comprehensive Plan:
	a. Goal 4: The project will establish a good quality of life with development that pays through impact fees and property taxes for the public services it receives. Quality lots for residential use also increase the quality of life and general welfare ...
	b. Goal 6: Water, sewer, and adjacent road systems have been expanded in an orderly manner consistent with population growth.
	c. Goal 10: Project provides playgrounds, pathways and outdoor recreational activities.
	d. Goal 11: The housing type matches the residents’ lifestyle in the area the project is located.
	Applicant’s project, however, is in conflict with Goals #1 and 3 to provide safe roads and adequate delivery of services, including adequate schools.  However, contributing additional monies for the improvements to Cemetery Road & Hwy 44 mitigate this...
	M. Comments Received from Surrounding Landowners:  City has received comments from the public. See comments attached as Exhibit “D”.
	N. Comments from Agencies:  City received comments from COMPASS, ITD and Middleton School District #134. (Copies of Agency comments are attached as Exhibit “E”.)
	O. Comments from City Engineer and Planning Staff:   Copies of engineering and planning staff comments are attached as Exhibit “F”.
	P. Application Information:  Applicants are Adam Capell/Toll Brothers and Nicolette Womack/Kimley-Horn Engineering (3103 W. Sheryl Dr. #100, Meridian 83642 / 950 W. Bannock Street, #1100, Boise, 83702).  Application was accepted on 1/25/2022.
	Q. Notices & Neighborhood Meeting:    Dates:
	Newspaper Notification     11/1/2022
	Radius notice to adjacent landowners   11/1/2022
	Circulation to Agencies     10/31/2022
	Sign Posting property     10/31/2022
	Neighborhood Meeting     1/10/2022
	R. Applicable Codes and Standards:
	Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, the Middleton Supplement to the Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-16, 5-1, 5-2, 5-3, and 5-4, and Idaho Code Title 67, Chapter 65 & Title 50, Chapters 2 and 13.   ...
	S. P&Z Recommendation:
	The Black Powder applications were considered by the P&Z Commission in a public hearing held on September 12, 2022.  The Commission recommended denial of all three applications based upon the fact that the governing bodies will not have sufficient inf...
	T. Conclusions and Recommended Conditions of Approval:
	City Council is tasked with denying or approving Developer’s applications for annexation/rezone, development agreement, and preliminary plat, with or without conditions of approval.
	Per State law and the Middleton City Code, any decision and final order must be based upon findings of facts and conclusions of law.
	As to Findings of Facts, Planning Staff has set forth findings of facts above in parentheses.
	As to Conclusions of Law, Planning Staff finds that the City Council has the authority to hear these applications and to approve or deny the applications, with or without conditions.  Additionally, Planning Staff notes that all public notice requireme...
	Annexation/Rezone, Preliminary Plat, and Development Agreement Applications: If the Council is inclined to recommend approval of the annexation/rezone, preliminary plat, and development agreement applications, then Planning Staff recommends that any a...
	1. Developer to stripe a crosswalk at the intersection of Meadow Park Street and Cemetery Road to ensure a safe route for children to walk east to the future Meadow Park School site.
	2. City municipal domestic water, fire flow and sanitary sewer services are to be extended to serve the subdivision.
	3. Developer to comply with all terms of the Development Agreement approved for the project.
	4. Developer to install landscaping and all amenities in compliance with the Landscape Plan and preliminary plat submitted with the application.
	5. Developer shall create a plan for operation, maintenance and repair of stormwater facilities (O&M Plan) contained on the project site. The O&M Plan shall be recorded with the CC&Rs. Developer and/or HOA must maintain and operate the subdivision sto...
	6. Developer to construct, at its own cost, all frontage improvements on Cemetery Road and Meadow Park Street adjacent to the project parcel.
	7. Owner/Developer to pay all City required pro-rata share traffic fees as required by MCC 5-4-3 prior to approval of final plat for Phase 1.
	8. All City Engineer review comments are to be completed and approved.
	9. All Planner comments are to be completed and approved.
	10. All requirements of the Middleton Rural Fire District are to be completed and approved.
	11. Sewer and water capacity to be reserved at the time City approves the construction drawings for the project.
	Finally, if the Council denies the applications, then the Council should state what the applicant could do, if anything, to obtain approval. (Middleton City Code 1-14(E)(8)).
	Prepared by Roberta Stewart         Dated: 12/2/2022 Planning & Zoning Director
	EXHIBIT “A”
	Pages 8 & 27, Black Powder Traffic Study


	Revised DA-Black Powder 12-2-22.pdf
	RECITALS
	AGREEMENT
	Article I  LEGAL AUTHORITY
	Article II  ANNEXATION AND ZONING ORDINANCE
	Article III  CONDITIONS OF DEVELOPMENT
	3.1 Frontage Improvements. Developer shall, at its own cost, improve the fifty foot (50’) half-road section of the west half of Cemetery Road, a collector roadway, abutting the Property and dedicate the full fifty foot (50’) right of way from centerli...
	3.2 Cross-Walk. Developer to stripe a crosswalk at the intersection of Cemetery Road and Meadow Park Street to provide safe access across Cemetery Road to the future Meadow Park School to the east of the Property.
	3.3 Concept Plan: The conceptual site plan for the Project is attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B (“Concept Plan”). The Property shall be developed substantially consistent with the Concept Plan.
	3.4 Voluntary Roadway Payment: Developer agrees to voluntarily pay to the City $150,000.00 (the “Voluntary Payment”) as a condition precedent to recording the first final plat for the Project. The Voluntary Payment may be used by the City for any tran...
	3.5 Prepayment of Transportation Impact Fees. City may elect to have Developer prepay, as a condition to record a final plat within the Project, the City’s then-current Idaho Development Impact Fee Act (I.C. § 67-8201-16) compliant transportation impa...
	3.6 Final Plat Requirements: Notwithstanding the provisions in Article IV of this Agreement, Developer shall obtain City Engineer’s signature on the Phase 1 final plat within two (2) years of the preliminary plat approval for the Project. Said signatu...
	3.6.1 Developer may obtain a one (1) year extension to obtain the City Engineer’s signature on Phase 1 final plat by submitting an administrative written request for extension to the Middleton Planning & Zoning Official before the expiration of the in...
	3.6.2 If Developer does not obtain City Engineer’s signature on the final plat for Phase 1 within the time frame noted above, City may, at its sole discretion, terminate this Agreement after complying with the Middleton City Code provisions for legal ...
	3.6.3 After final plat approval for the first phase of the Project, Developer shall obtain City Engineer’s signature on the final plat for each subsequent phase in two (2) year intervals (subject to the requirement by the City to process such applicat...

	3.7 Amenities: Developer shall provide the following amenities for the Project: Playground structures, benches, and shade structure with at least two (2) picnic tables.
	3.8 Project Local Street Design: City’s Local Roadway Typical Section per the City’s Supplement to ISPWC generally requires a fifty foot (50’) right of way that contains five foot (5’) attached sidewalks. Developer, however, shall construct local road...

	Article IV  FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH AGREEMENT
	4.1 Subject to the notice and opportunity to cure provisions herein, if the Developer fails to comply with any of the terms or conditions in this Agreement, then the portion(s) of this Agreement pertaining to the breach may be modified or terminated b...
	4.1.1 If after a breach, the City Council determines that the terms of this Agreement applicable to the breach should be modified, the term(s) of this Agreement shall be amended and the Developer shall comply with the amended terms.
	4.1.2 Any breach waived by the City shall apply solely to the breach waived and shall not bar any other rights or remedies of the City or apply to any subsequent breach of any such or other covenants and conditions.

	4.2 If after a breach, the zoning shall remain R-3 and Developer hereby consents to such zoning.
	4.3 Upon a breach of this Agreement, any of the parties in any court of competent jurisdiction, by action or proceeding at law or in equity, may secure the specific performance of the covenants and agreements herein contained, may be awarded damages f...
	4.4 NOTICE OF FAILED PERFORMANCE. Upon any failure of any party to this Agreement to perform its obligations under this Agreement, the party claiming such failure shall notify, in writing, the party alleged to have failed to perform of the alleged fai...

	Article V  GENERAL PROVISIONS
	5.1 This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties respecting the Property and supersedes all prior discussions and written and verbal agreements between the parties respecting the Property.
	5.2 Any amendment or addendum to this Agreement shall be in writing and made only after the City has complied with the notice and hearing provisions of Idaho Code § 67-6509 and Middleton City Code Title 5, Chapter 2.
	5.3 Any notice that a party may desire or is required to give to another party must be in writing and shall be given by one of the following: personal delivery, by mailing the same registered or certified mail with a return receipt requested. Notice s...
	5.4 If either party shall fail to perform under this Agreement and said failure is cured with the assistance of an attorney for the other party, as a part of curing said failure, the reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred by the other party shall be reim...
	5.5 This Agreement shall be effective after being fully executed and recorded in the real property records of Canyon County. This Agreement shall be executed only upon its approval by the City Council. After its execution, the Agreement shall be recor...
	5.6 Each commitment and restriction described in this Agreement shall be a burden on the Property and run with the land and shall be appurtenant to and for the benefit of the Property.
	5.6.1 This Agreement shall be binding on the City and Developer, and their respective heirs, administrators, executors, agents, legal representatives, successors and assigns. Provided, however, that if all or any portion of the Property is divided, th...
	5.6.2 The new owner of the Property or any portion thereof (including, without limitation, any owner who acquires its interest by foreclosure, trustee’s sale or otherwise) shall be liable for all commitments and other obligations arising under this Ag...

	5.7 The Property that is the subject of this Agreement is located in Canyon County, Idaho and the terms of this Agreement shall be construed according to the laws of the State of Idaho in effect at this time this Agreement is executed. Any action brou...
	5.8 If any term, provision, commitment or restriction of this Agreement or the application thereof to any party or circumstance shall to any extent be held invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this instrument shall remain in full force and effect.
	5.9 Time is of the essence for performance of each obligation in this Agreement.
	EXHIBIT “A”
	Legal Description of Property
	EXHIBIT “B”
	Concept Plan
	EXHIBIT “C”
	Project Local Street Design



	Waterford East FCO.pdf
	In the Matter of the Application of Patrick Connor/Hubble Homes for preliminary plat and Development Agreement Termination with respect to the Waterford East Subdivision located at 0 Foothills Road (Tax Parcel Nos. R338540 & R33854011):
	A. Findings of Fact:
	1. Hearing Facts: See Staff Report for the hearing date of November 16, 2022, which Report is attached hereto as Exhibit “A’ and incorporated herein by this reference.
	2. Process Facts: See Staff Report for the hearing date of November 16, 2022, Exhibit “A”.
	3. Application and Property Facts: See Staff Report for the hearing date of November 16,  2022, Exhibit “A”.
	4. Required Findings per Middleton City Code 1-14-2(E)(7), Idaho State Statue Title 67, Chapter 65, Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction and Middleton Supplement thereto, Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-15, 5-1, 5-3, and 5-4:  See Staff Report fo...
	B. Conclusions of Law:
	1. That the City of Middleton has exercised the powers conferred upon it by the “Local Land Use Planning Act of 1975,” codified at Chapter 65, Title 67, Idaho Code (I.C. §67-6503).
	2. That due consideration has been given to the comments received from the governmental subdivisions providing services in the City of Middleton planning jurisdiction, comments received from individuals of the public, and comments from City Planning S...
	3. That notice of the application and public hearing was given according to law.
	4. That City Council’s public hearing was conducted according to law, and the City has kept a record of the application and related documents.
	5. That codes and standards applicable to the application are the Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, the Middleton Supplement to the Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, and Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-15, 5-1, 5-2, 5-3, and 5-4 ...

	6. That public facilities and services required by the proposed development will not impose expense upon the public if the attached conditions of approval are imposed.
	7. That this order is subject to the Conditions of Approval set forth in the attached Staff Report for the hearing date of November 16, 2022, Exhibit “A”.
	C. Decision and Order:
	Pursuant to the City Council’s authority as provided in Middleton City Code 1-5-2, and based upon the above Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law, it is hereby decided and ordered:
	1. That the application of Patrick Connor/Hubble Homes for Preliminary Plat with respect to the Waterford East Subdivision is approved subject to the conditions of approval set forth in the Staff Report for the November 16, 2022, public hearing.
	2. That the application of Patrick Connor/Hubble Homes for Development Agreement Termination with respect to the Waterford East Subdivision is approved subject to the conditions of approval set forth in the Staff Report for the November 16, 2022, publ...
	Please take notice that pursuant to MCC 1-14-2(E)(10), applicant shall have 14 days after a signed final decision to request reconsideration by the final-decision maker. Such request must identify specific deficiencies in the final decision. Failure t...
	Finally, please take notice that Applicant has a right to request a regulatory taking analysis pursuant to Idaho State Statute section 67-8003.

	ADP4E27.tmp
	Roll Call: Kiser – Yes, Huggins – Yes, Murray – Yes, O’Meara – Yes. Approved unanimously.
	Roll Call: Kiser – Yes, Huggins – Yes, Murray – Yes, O’Meara – Yes. Approved unanimous.
	Roll Call: Kiser – Yes, Huggins – Yes, Murray – Yes, O’Meara – Yes. Approved unanimous.

	Sign sheets.pdf
	ADP351E.tmp
	Roll Call: Kiser – Yes, Huggins – Yes, Murray – Yes, O’Meara – Yes. Approved unanimously.
	Roll Call: Kiser – Yes, Huggins – Yes, Murray – Yes, O’Meara – Yes. Approved unanimous.
	Roll Call: Kiser – Yes, Huggins – Yes, Murray – Yes, O’Meara – Yes. Approved unanimous.





